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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A Bl LL for an Act to create and enact subdivision nn of subsection 2 of section 12-60-24 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to criminal history record checks; to amend and reenact 
sections 43-25-05, 43-25-05.1, and 43-25-09, subsections 2 and 3 of section 43-25-10, section 
43-25-14, and subsection 1 of section 43-25-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the governance of the board of massage and the regulation of massage therapists; to provide a 
penalty; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: 1 - 10 

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on S B  2294 .  

Representative Meier, District 32: Testif ied to introduce the bi l l  and i n  s upport of the bi l l. 
T here are several others to testify on the bi l l  and I have s poken with them about their 
testimony and I bel ieve you wi l l  get a good understand ing of what the bi l l  is about. 

(4:35)Diane Aull, Massage Therapist: See Attac hment #1 for testimony in support of the 
bil l and explanation of the b i l l .  

( 1 7:35)Chairman Dever: Regard ing continu ing education, how do the requ irements in  
North Dakota compare to other states? 

Diane Aull: We requ i re more continu ing education by far than any other state. The next 
h ighest is 24 hours of CE every two years and we requ i re 32 hours .  

Chairman Dever: A re there adequate opportun ities to obtain the nec essary CEU's? 

Diane Aull: T here are a lot of opportun ities . It is an expens ive process though .  Because 
our continu ing education programs are set up for  most states , wh ic h  requ i re about 10 to 12 
hours per years ,  we have to go to multiple courses or go to the c onvention that would 
provide the fu l l  1 6  hours per year. The continuing education is redundant real ly in  a lot of 
cases .  It gets to a point over time where you are real ly not learn ing anything new and you 
are starting to learn things that are not related to your  f ield. 
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Senator Nelson: O n  the appointment of people to the board ,  sometimes inbreed ing 
happens because the board kind of finds their budd ies and recommends them. Do people 
from your profess ion actual ly apply to the Governor l ike other boards do or is he j ust picking 
from a smal l  group? 

Diane Aull: It general ly has been a smal l  pool in the past because the information has not 
been going out that there is a vacancy coming up or that there are opportun ities to serve. 
T here has not been a lot of c ommunication between the board and the massage therapists 
about that type of thing. 

Chairman Dever: Do I understand that the make- up of the board involves 2 practic ing 
massage therapists ,  1 teac hing massage therapist, 1 publ ic member, and 1 ch i ropractor? 

Diane Aull: The ch i ropractor and the other person are both publ ic members .  We have 2 
cons umer members and 3 massage therapist, but c urrently on of the massage therapist is 
not even a practic ing massage therapist and it has been that way for qu ite some time. 

Chairman Dever: Do I a lso  understand that one of the consumer members is the Pres ident 
and the c h iropractor is the Vice Pres ident and the sc hool therapist is the 
Sec retary/T reas urer? 

Diane Aull: T he Sec retary/T reasurer is the c h iropractor and the Pres ident is the other 
cons umer member and the Vice Pres ident is the teacher. 

Senator Nelson: Who elects the off icers? 

Diane Aull: T hey are elected by the board so w hen they vote i t  is general ly a 3 to 2 vote. 

Senator Poolman: We had SB 2385 in  Industry, B us iness , and Labor and we already 
passed it through the Senate. I am confused w hy we are here w ith a separate bi l l  and w hy 
there was no attempt to have this conversation in the hearing w here the in itial b i l l  came 
through.  

Diane Aull: We had brought a l l  of these issues before the board. T here were committee 
meetings prior to the board dec iding w hat bi l l  to s ubmit and a l l  of these items were 
d ism issed by the board members w ho did not l ike the c hanges and so  that is why this is 
before you .  T he reason for the redundancy has to do w ith the bi l l  d rafting . It was drafted by 
a temporary guy w ho was j ust starting out. 

Senator Poolman: Are you asking us to referee inter-board problems? 

Diane Aull: We have done everything that we can think of to deal w ith this over the past 
several years .  As I sat at a board meeting recently when we were questioned about whether 
we s hould testify or not, we have talked to people in d ifferent parts of the state government 
inc l uding the Governor's off ice w here they make the appointments and they told us that they 
make the appointments depend ing on how the law is w ritten and that it was perhaps an 
iss ue that the legis lature might look at. 
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Chairman Dever: T hat m ight be the genes is of the rumor that the Governor's off ice asked 
for the bi l l. 

Diane Aull: T hey did not ask for the bi l l, but they said they cou ld not do anyth ing because 
they are bound by how the law was w ritten. 

Senator Marcellais: How muc h  are the bac kground c hecks? 

Diane Aull: I th ink i t  is $47.50 . That is born by the appl icant for the l icense and i t  would j ust 
help us to make su re that we have got people who should be working in  one to one settings 
w ith people. 

(24: 1 0) Gail Hovden, massage therapist: See Attac hment #2 for testimony in support of 
the b i l l .  

(33:25) Senator Flakoll: What are the costs of the CEU's? 

Gail Hovden: It depends on the location of them. If you can stay in  North Dakota it 
probably w i l l  be a l ittle more reasonable. Some private entities are $350 on up. If you 
belong to a certain organ ization you can get them a l ittle at a d iscount but you are sti l l  
paying the member fee. 

Senator Flakoll: How many C EU's is that for? 

Gail Hovden: T hat is for j ust sections of them. About 1 6  hours a year. 

(34:45) Pat Berg, Member of the North Dakota State Board of Massage: See 
Attac hment #3 for testimony in support of the bil l against the board's standing on th is b i l l .  

(40:40)Senator Cook: I understand now that there was another bi l l  that passed the 
Senate; d id you or Diane oppose that b i l l  when they had that hearing? 

Pat Berg: No. 

Chairman Dever: Were you opposed to that bi l l  or would you prefer further c hanges than 
were involved in that b i l l? 

Pat Berg: We are adding to that b i l l .  

Senator Poolman: I am wondering w hy you wou ld not have come to that hearing to amend 
that b i l l? 

Pat Berg: T hat b i l l  was s ubmitted by the board and they deleted the c hanges that we are 
now working on today. 

Senator Poolman: T hen w hen it had a hearing,  w hy d idn't any of these  people come to 
that hearing to offer amendments to that b i l l  if you noticed that the pieces you wanted were 
not in  there? 
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Pat Berg: We were there representing the stance of the board and that is w hat they 
wanted proposed. 

(42:50) Steve Olsen, Massage Therapist: See Attac hment #4 for testimony in  support of 
the b i l l .  

(57:30) Allen Galster, Massage Therapist: Testified in  s upport of the b i l l .  I have been 
doing massage therapy for over 25 years .  T he CEU course requ irements are excess ive 
and often times they do not pertain to our profess ion. T he board does have a tendency to 
buddy up in that board pos ition and they put things on a therapist, w ho is h igh ly qual ified, to 
go to these CEU courses ,  some of wh ic h  we cannot even practice or they don't perta in .  I n  
the 25  years I have been doing massage, there is not one  thing I have c hanged from my 
train ing at the Humanity Center at Al l ied I nstitute of Health in Florida. I sti l l  use the 
tec hn iques that I was trained to do. These are put on us to burden us and we are treated 
as though we are not qual ified w hen we were given that l icense to work. T hose that m ight 
be found to be practic ing incorrectly maybe s hould be made to get additional c red its of 
C EU's . I have been waiting for these c hanges to be done for a long t ime. 

( 1 :01 : 1 5) Tilman Jones, Massage Therapist: See Attac hment #5 for Testimony in 
oppos ition to the bi l l .  

( 1  :04: 1 0) Chairman Dever: Is your only issue w ith the bi l l  the C EU's? 

Tilman Jones: Yes. T he rest of the bi l l  appeared to be good c ommon sense to help our 
profess ion grow. I strong ly agree that you should throw the baby out w ith the bath water if 
the word ing is left in that b i l l  to take away the continued education after 1 5  years as it is 
stated. 

( 1  :05: 1 0) John Simmons, Chairman, Board of Massage Therapists: See Attac hment #6 
for testimony in  oppos ition to the bi l l .  

( 1  : 1 6:00)Senator Cook: You talked about injuries. How many cons umer reports of inj uries 
do you get? 

John Simmons: Several each year. A half a dozen or so and it can be anyth ing from 
bruis ing to musc le stra in .  It could be jo int iss ues. 

Senator Cook: What do you do w ith the reports? 

John Simmons: When we get a report of an inj ury or some kind of an action that needs to 
be taken ,  we d isc uss it as a board , we cons ult w ith our counc i l  to determine if any 
enforcement action needs to be taken,  and we make su re that we  stay w ithin the bounds of 
the law. We have done everything from requiring mental health c hecks to c ontinued 
tra in ing,  ethics courses ,  and in some cases we have had to use board funds to go after 
massage therapists that have flouted their res pons ibi l ity to make things right in terms of 
going into legal action . 
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Senator Cook: Do you keep a paper tra i l  of a l l  this and it is open record? 

John Simmons: Al l  of  it  is open record. 

Senator Cook: I heard you say that renew al fees are $100. You have 726 licensed 
massage therapists in the state. Is that your only source of revenue? 

John Simmons: Yes .  New massage therapists who are applyi ng pay $1 50 and there is a 
s mal l  s ou rce of revenue from late fees and those are $50. If an entity wou ld l ike to be in 
contact with the massage therapists in the state, they can purchase a mai li ng list and that is 
$50. 

Senator Cook: Do you have an annual conference? Where do these therapists get thei r  
c ontinui ng education? 

John Simmons: We do not regulate continui ng education and we do not p rovide i t .  It is up 
to the open market to provide that. Those are third parties from other states and providers 
here that provide education. Nationally people come i n  and do c onferences. We only 
approve c ontinui ng educ ation. They s ubmit their syl labus and it is reviewed and approved 
meeti ng the c riteri a  fo r c ontinu ing education. We do not c harge or generate revenue on 
c onti nu ing education at a l l .  

Senator Davison: The first night that you went to a board meeting d id you know any of the 
board members ?  

John Simmons: I d id not. 

Senator Davison: How d id you come to decide to get on the board? 

John Simmons: I moved to North Dakota that year and I w anted to be i nvolved in the 
community and loca l  government and I was told about the opportunity to serve on boards to 
see how loca l  government worked. So, I fi l led out the appl ication and the i nformation that I 
had to send in and I w as appointed. 

Senator Davison: S o  they are open records? 

John Simmons: Yes. 

Senator Davison: If I go  to your  webs ite, I wi l l  see the detai led min utes of you r  meetings 
and some of these discussions ?  

John Simmons: What you w il l  see is mi nutes posted . Over the last year w e  j ust 
implemented that. We have had a c hange in the board webs ite a cou ple of years ago. Al l  
approved contin uing  educ ation courses are listed there and any set of m in utes that you 
w ant going bac k  for 1 5  years you can get from our off ice i n  paper form. 

Senator Davison: I thought you j ust told me you did not regu late w hat w as approved for 
c onti n ui ng education. 
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John Simmons: We approve the courses ,  but we do not w rite , teac h ,  or c harge for them.  

Senator Davison: B ut you regu late them i f  you have to approve it. 

John Simmons: We approve them saying they meet the min imum requirements for 
continuing education c red its. 

Senator Davison: So can someone go outs ide of those c lasses to get other c red its and 
they have to get it approved by you first? 

John Simmons: We prefer that they do that first. T hey can send it sec ondarily and most of 
the time it is going to qual ify. We would hate for them to spend the money and have it not 
count. T he l ist is there as a benefit to the massage therapists . 

Senator Davison: Do you have a long term vis ion of how this board is going to enhance the 
industry in  itself? Is not the m iss ion of the board to try to set a long term col laborative vis ion 
for the group of people so  that i t  enhances the industry? 

John Simmons: It does not. T hat is not the purpose of the board .  T he purpose of the 
board is cons umer protection .  

( 1  :22: 1 0) Senator Flakoll: T here seems to be a lot of people that don't l ike you guys very 
wel l .  What are you doing to engage some of the members that are dues paying members i n  
some of these dec is ions to bui ld some col laboration to find out w hat they care about? 

John Simmons: We have quarterly meetings that we post to our webs ite, we send an e 
mail blast to over 700 LMT's that is inviting them to the meetings, and on average we have 6 
massage therapists that come to the meetings. It has been that way for five years. Five 
years ago we d id not even have an e mai l  l ist. 

Senator Flakoll: You say that cons umer protection is on the top of the l ist, but yet you are 
on a 60 year inspection cyc le. Make me feel good about that. 

John Simmons: T he inspections are rotating, random inspections , but we reserve the right 
to go to any plac e  w here we have a complaint or a concern. Our  law is not mandating a 
certain number of ins pections but it leaves the door open for us to do w hatever we need to 
do. Whether that is get law enforcement involved , ins pect, and then the random ones are 
there as wel l .  

Senator Flakoll: Looking at the numbers on the boards , and I wou ld take a l ittle affront i f  I 
was a practic ing massage therapist to say that they don't have the best interests of the 
healthc are, welfare, and safety of the c l ients over the c ons umer. Why are you more 
qual ified to have the best interest of the c l ient as the cons umer on the board? 

John Simmons: I think the cons umer member is there as a c hec k and balance for the 
same reason that this committee does not have a ten person mandate that they be 
veterans. Having other views out there and other aspects that you can look at is important. 
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If the state government here was run 90% to 10% one way, it would be very d iff icu lt to say 
that you have fair representation .  Because al l  of our enforcement actions are taken against 
l icensed massage therapists ,  i t  makes it very easy for a four  person massage therapist run 
board - it is the same argument either way. If we have people that say the two consumer 
members are runn ing the board (wh ic h  I don't agree) and they are getting away w ith 
murder; turn ing it the other way, fl ipping it to four to one does not get you any better place. I 
think this kind of even m ix is about as c lose as you can get to have a balanced place. 

Senator Marcellais: What is the financ ial status of the board? 

John Simmons: When I jo ined the board ,  there was $17 ,000 in their  c hec king account. At 
this point, there is $ 1 14 ,000. T hey are in the blac k  and they run in  the blac k  every year. 

( 1  :26:22) Yolanda Karas, MPH: Testified in oppos ition to the b i l l .  I n  20 1 1  I became the 
d i rector of a local  massage therapy program at a col lege. I have worked w ith the state 
board ,  not in a pos ition ,  but I was one of the s ix who has continuous ly s hown interest in 
pol icy and the board doings. When I became the d i rector I sought out the board for help as 
to how to c reate a program that would follow the laws and be the best for the students .  
During that t ime I began working on  my  Masters in Publ ic Health and Disaster Management. 
When I heard about this ,  I was concerned . My publ ic health s ide is very concerned about 
this b i l l .  (Reads through the bi l l  and notes several points in the bi l l  that concerned w ith) .  I 
th ink we need to separate the North Dakota State Board of Massage and the profess ional 
assoc iation , the AMTA. T he North Dakota Board of Massage is here to protect the 
cons umers and the publ ic as wel l  as work w ith the l icensed massage therapists. T he AMTA 
is a profess ional assoc iation who is here to offer opportun ities for continued education and 
other things through their organization. The profess ional board is made up of al l  massage 
therapists .  T he burnout rate for massage therapists is 3 to 5 years and that could be a 
reason for the dec rease in  numbers at the board .  We have had two or three massage 
therapy sc hools. O ne opened in 2006,  wh ic h  is the one that I ran and we had a high 
number of students , and that went through 20 1 1 .  We then had three sc hools ac ross the 
state c lose and that combined w ith the burnout rate wou ld indicate the reason for lower 
numbers. (Talked about the board make- up and the need for male representation) I think we  
need to cons ider prevention rather than reaction w ith this .  I am extremely concerned about 
human traffic k ing .  Publ ic safety and eth ical  violations are my main concern w ith this. Some 
of the things the board does do is l ist the non- l icensed and l icensed massage therapists on 
the board and that is valuable for people to be able to access for that information . My main 
concern is e l iminating C EU's after 15  years of practice. I th ink that onc e  we th ink that we 
know it a l l  we are in  b ig  trouble. 

( 1  :35: 1 8) Wendy McGinley, LMT and Vice President, North Dakota Board of Massage: 
See Attac hment # 7 for testimony in  oppos ition to the b i l l .  

( 1  :39: 1 5) Brandi Malarkey, Licensed Massage Therapist: See Attac hment #8 for 
testimony in oppos ition to the b i l l .  

( 1  :45:03) Carla Anderson, Licensed Massage Therapist: See Attac hment #9 for 
testimony in oppos ition to the b i l l .  
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( 1  :50:25) Todd Salwey, North Dakota State Board of Massage Secretary and 
Consumer Member: See Attac hment #10 in oppos ition to the b i l l .  

Karen Wojohn, Executive Director of the North Dakota State Board of Massage: 
T estified in oppos ition to the bi l l. I am for SB 2085 and that is w hat they al l  voted on .  I don't 
think it is right w hen it does n't go your way and you do someth ing tota l ly d ifferent. If it was 
not for the two c onsumers that we  have on the board, we would never have had a human 
traffic king awareness campaign and we have shut some down  in the state because if  i t .  I 
thank them for w hat they have brought to the board .  When they ta lk about inspections , I do 
think that it wou ld be an expense to the board to do inspections for everyone but we usual ly 
do 40 or more through the year. If we el iminate the requ irements of continu ing education 
after 15 years - the field is always c hanging and it is a hea lthcare field. SB 20 85 already 
lowers the continu ing education from 32 hours to 24 hours. 

( 1  :54:45)Senator Davison: Are you a part time or full time director? 

Karen Wojohn: T he off ice is Monday through Friday. T here is always someone there. 

Chairman Dever: I th ink you are under contract? 

Karen Wojohn: T hat's right. 

Chairman Dever: C losed the hearing on SB 2294. 
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Chairman Dever: Opened the d isc uss ion on SB 2294.  See Attac hment #1 for 
amendments proposed to the bi l l. T he committee was reminded that there was another b i l l  
regarding the massage therapists (SB 2085) that was heard by IB L and was passed on the 
floor. Th is b i l l  was at the request of two of the members of the board and one other 
massage therapist .  T heir  primary point is to c hange the makeup of the board so that four 
members of the board would be massage therapists. T he board of massage therapy has a 
long h istory of not getting along w ith eac h other and we hear b i l ls every once in a wh i le. 
Part of their concern is that the three members that hold off ice are the non-practic ing 
massage therapists. I th ink i t  is typica l  to have one cons umer member, and th is one has 
two and one of them happens to be a ch i ropractor, and we have turf wars between 
c h iropractors and massage therapists too. T he other point of contention was that after 15 
years the c ontinu ing education requ i rements go away. T hat one I could argue e ither way. I 
am s uggesting that we remove that provis ion on page 4 so that we  would be continuing to 
subject them to c ontinu ing education. One of the points that is not i n  this b i l l  but is in  the 
other one is a red uction in  continuing education from 36 hours to 24 hours .  I would leave 
that i n .  The amendment also makes the effective date Ju ly 1st i nstead of immed iately. I 
would l ike to move the bi l l  forward and then the House could get that both b i l ls in the same 
committee and get them reconc i led. 

(4:52) Senator Flakoll: Moved Amendments proposed. (Attac hment #1)  

Senator Cook: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Carried. 

Senator Cook: Moved a Do Pass As Amended. 

Senator Flakoll: Seconded. 

Senator Poolman: I am going to vote no on this because these people came and testified 
in favor of the other b i l l  and did not say a word about any confl ict .  I th ink this is some sort of 
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pass ive aggress ive inter- board pol itics and trying to come to the leg is lature to kick  certa in 
people off of the board. That is a l l  that is left of this new bi l l  that is not i n  the other b i l l .  

Chairman Dever: I understand that. You are on I BL and heard the other b i l l .  I w is h  that 
they would have testified there but they d id not. That is the nature of the conflict. 

Senator Poolman: T hey did testify in favor of the other b i l l  and said nothing about the 
confl ict. 

Senator Marcellais: I agree w ith Senator Poolman and I wou ld add that I think the 
Governor has the authority to replace the whole board if he wants to as their terms come 
up .  

Senator Cook: I agree w ith Senator Poolman and Senator Marcel la is .  I say the same 
th ing .  I think one way or another we should have this bi l l  out of here. We spend two hours 
of testimony on this nu isance.  I think we get this out of here and it be heard at the same 
time and I wou ld also argue that if it does not happen that this cou ld turn into s uggested 
amendments to SB 2085. The iss ue is not going away. 

Senator Davison: I agree but I s upport the bi l l  because it s hows that we as a committee 
recogn izes that there are some c hal lenges and that they s hould take some time to l isten 
and think about the groups coming forward and it needs some real sc rutiny. 

Chairman Dever: Th is is not the only board that has confl icts and w here we say that the 
Governor s hould be more carefu l w hen they make appointments .  

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 3 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Carried. 

Senator Dever will carry the bill. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2294 

Page 1, line 6, after the second semicolon insert "to provide an effective date;" 

Page 4, remove lines 15 through 17 

Page 6, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2015." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0913.01001 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2294: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Dever, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Governance of the board of massage & regu lation of massage therapists, provide a 
penalty, appl ication, and effective date. 

Minutes: II Attac hments 1-5 ,5a ,6-8 .  

Chairman Keiser: Opens the hearing on  SB 2294.  

Senator Dick Dever-District 32: introduced SB 2294. T here is two bi l ls involving the 
board of massage therapy. SB 2085 was heard in your  committee on the 9th . Th is bi l l  was 
i ntroduced at the request of three massage therapists ,  two of w hom are members of the 
board .  I wou ld encourage you reconc i le the two bi l ls and let one of them go and I don't 
care wh ic h  one. SB 2294 has one overrid ing concern and that is the board of massage 
therapy has two consumer members and it has a member w ho teac hes massage therapy 
and two members that are practic ing massage therapist. T he three other members are the 
pres ident, vice pres ident and sec retary/treasurer so the massage therapists feel they are 
under represented on the board . It is typical  for profess ional boards to have one consumer 
member and th is one has two and I th ink this is a problem. Everyone l ikes the reduction of 
the education c red its that they need . We had in the orig inal  b i l l  and emergency c lause and 
we left it in but put an effective date of July 1st because that is w hen there board turns over. 
T he emergency c lause fai led in the Senate but you sti l l  have the effective date of July 1 5 , 
201 5 and you know if you have an effective date prior to August 1st it needs to have an 
emergency c lause. I th ink the governor's office if they know that c hange is there as they 
appoint members to the board w i l l  appoint a massage therapist. T he c urrent pres ident of 
the board is a consumer and h is term is expiring and he w i l l  be leaving the board by the 
term l im its anyway. T here are other provis ions that are more detai led and I w il l  let other 
s peak to that. I would l ike to see both bi l ls come together and that partic u lar provis ion 
addressed . 

Representative Hanson: I'm not seeing the urgency in the c hange in representation on 
the board .  Do you have an idea how many other boards are s imi lar and what kind of 
representation they have on them? 

Senator Dever: Most boards have one consumer member generally not two and certa in ly 
not a majority. 
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Representative Hanson: Do the c urrent members of the board feel the cons umers on the 
board hurt them and their industry? 

Senator Dever: They are here and I w i l l let them speak to that. Let me mention this is not 
about personal ities but I think there is some merit to the fact massage therapists need to be 
better represented on their ow n board. 

Chairman Keiser: Why didn't the Senate pul l  these together? 

Senator Dever: T hey were in d ifferent committees. 

Chairman Keiser: I wou ld l ike someone to h igh l ight and compare the d ifferences between 
the two bi l ls. 

Gail Hovden-Represent Self: in s upport of SB 2294 .  I have brought along thirty letters of 
s upport from other massage therapists practic ing in North Dakota. (See Attac hment # 1 ). 

1 3:20 

Representative Hanson: Do you know how the current board came to be if it's so  far off? 

Hovden: T here used to be three massage therapists that were the board and as the 
numbers grew they dec ided to make the board five a nd I don't know w hy they c hose  two 
cons umers vers us Licensed Massage T herap ist's . 

Representative Hanson: Do you know what year that was? 

Hovden: I wou ld have to say at least 12 or  15 years ago. 

Representative Hanson: You a lso stated you thought someone being a massage teac her 
being on the board w as a conflict of interest. Cou ld you elaborate on how that wou ld be a 
confl ict of interest, are they d i recting members towards themselves or w hat? 

Hovden: When I was serving on this board that is what I felt, w hen you have a teac her 
representing a certain sc hool and she is giving teac h-out plans ,  their sc hool is going to be 
generating money to get those  extra hours they need . To come in to our state we need 
750 hours. We are the s ixth h ighest in the nation. 28 states have 500 hours. We are 
d iff icu lt to get into anyway and w hen you are s hort 250 hours you have to ma ke it up 
somew here. Why wou ld this person on the board that is a sc hool teac her get to g ive these 
teac h-out plans and let them come to their sc hool. What about the other sc hools a re they 
having options to do that as wel l? Plus the teac her is getting paid on this board to look at 
these transc ripts. 

Representative Hanson: You think it's a fairness issue? 

Hovden: Yes. 
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Representative Hanson: The proposed make- up of this board would resu lt in it spending 
a l ittle more c onservatively, I am confused as to how is in the leg is lature preview to say 
how your  board is run .  I think it is your industry that is making those des ignations I don't; 
know if I feel l ike it s hould be ours? 

Hovden: I don't know how to answer that. 

Representative Lefor: Who brought this forward d id the massage board approve of this 
b i l l? 

Hovden: I d id w ith a couple other massage therapists on the massage board. For my 
experienc e  on the board this is w hat I have been seeing happening. 

Representative Lefor: What is the d ifference between the two bi l ls?  

Hovden: There is n't muc h  there ,  bas ical ly the board's makeup and i n  the previous bi l l  I 
had asked if there cou ld be the C EU's d iscontinued af ter so many years. That is what they 
amended . I guess after 25  years I have done so many CEU's the c ost of it, they are 
lowering the C EU's dow n  but cost w ise we are wearing out. 

Representative Lefor: On page 2, l ine 30 it says "the board s hal l  period ically ins pect". 
You have 666 therapists ,  would the board have the labor force to accompl ish  that. Is that 
an in person vis it to a l l  666 therapists? 

Hovden: Yes ,  they take turns by doing inspections phys ically. 

Representative Beadle: When you were on the board ,  you never saw the income or 
expenditure reports you were just told what it was ,  I am looking for the statute regard ing 
powers and duties of the board and subsection 3 says a sec retary/treasurer may submit a 
biannual report, it says may in there are indicating that is not being done? 

Hovden: I bel ieve that is part of the job of the off ice admin istrator? 

Representative Beadle: Does the report exist? 

Hovden: As far as I know ,  I never got told what it was ,  it w as taken care of by one 
person .  

Representative Beadle: The Continuing Eduaction Un it requ i rements you have, what 
courses do you take and are you presented w ith options that are avai lable for you to take? 

Hovden: When I fi rst started there weren't a lot of options , there was n't even any massage 
sc hools local ly, but now in North Dakota you can get access to Continued Education 
because more massage therapists are teach ing C EU's . You can get them but they are 
c ostly. 

Representative Beadle: Does the board have to approve the C EU c lasses?  
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Hovden: T he board does approve them but for the last many years I have not seen any 
get past the board c onsens us it has been one person going through those. 

Representative Beadle: Are there any onl ine vendors or options?  

Hovden: T here is a l imited amount onl ine. 

Vice Chairman Sukut: O ne of the duties of the board is to serve the publ ic. Can you tel l  
me how the c urrent board is not serving the publ ic and how the c hanges in  this b i l l  wou ld 
correct those  problems?  

Hovden: I feel w ith the ins pections that haven't been done over the years is not protecting 
the publ ic .  When the board doesn't go and inspect them . When there has been money 
there to do them. I don't know w hy they have not been doing them. With a massage 
therapist they wou ld probably get a l ittle more information on w hat is going on w ith in  the 
board. It has been sec retive and it should al l  be publ ic. 

Vice Chairman Sukut: T he expenses and the spending, w hat does that have to do to 
protecting the publ ic ?  

Hovden: They are not doing the i nspections. 

Vice Chairman Sukut: Are you a cu rrent member of the board? Do you have some input 
to the board as a c urrent massage therapist? 

Hovden: No I am not and I have done that in meetings and I've been shut dow n  w ith that. 

Vice Chairman Sukut: Looking at the construction of other boards in this area, w hen you 
look at the ped iatric board ,  they have 6 members and 4 are pod iatrists have two that are 
not practic ing that profess ion. A lot of the construction of profess ional boards in general 
have two members on them that are not practic ing that profess ion but the profess ionals st i l l  
have control of that board. What you are currently propos ing is qu ite d ifferent from w hat is 
traditional ly being done on other boards. T hey apparently are figuring the input from 
outs ide of the profess ion serves a good purpose .  Do you want to comment to that? 

Hovden: We have the two publ ic members but we feel we have three. T he third person 
on the board is a teac her and I see her as publ ic person. When I look at the board I see 
two practic ing therapists .  

Vice Chairman Sukut: When I look at the desc ription of the board, it says that three of the 
members are practic ing massage therapists. So if you had 3 therapist on there and the 
other two people one being the educator and the other being a consumer, wou ld that 
satisfy you? Would that solve the problem? 

Hovden: I can't answer that. I just thought that if you had more practic ing LMT's wou ld 
understand better w hat we  have to face w ith our finances. T he cost and expenses that are 
involved it. 
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Representative Kasper: C urrently the board is made up of three massage therapists and 
it does n't say practic ing massage therapists. So is a teac her cons idered a massage 
therapist because they are l icensed? Your proposal is to have four  massage therapists 
who are practic ing and one would be from some other area, wh ic h  would take back the 
c ontrol of the board by the profess ion that is in the profess ion, is that w here we are 
head ing? 

Hovden: Correct. 

Representative Kasper: How often does your board meet? 

Hovden: Four times a year. 

Representative Kasper: How are you notified of the meeting? 

Hovden: On the web s ite or in  an emai l .  A tentative meeting is set for May 1st wh ic h  is not 
even on the web yet, you can't see it in  the minutes and it is not posted right now. T hey w i l l  
e ither send it  out a week or two before but why wait to the last m inute w hen you have a 
month or two in advance of the meeting. 

Representative Kasper: What I am getting at is c urrently, the practices of the board is 
haphazard ly at best, there is no system,  you don't see minutes , your  notices are coming out 
late and you have never seen a budget or how the money is s pent. Are those correct 
statements?  

Hovden: Some of those are correct, the budget I have seen is a bank statement. We 
don't get a l isting of exactly w here the money goes it is j ust a piece of paper from the bank 
and you figu re it out. 

Representative Kasper: How often does the board hold inspections and how many do 
they hold in a 1 2  month period of time? 

Hovden: We voted for 3 inspections per quadrant, 4 quad rants that would be twelve 
inspections a year. 

Representative Kasper: Are there always new massage therapy tec hniques to learn or is 
there bas ically no new tric ks you provide your  services w ith? 

Hovden: T here are no new bas ics but they are offering new objects to use in massage. 

Representative Kasper: O n  the ethics of being a massage therapist, does that ever 
c hange? It seems to me if you deal w ith a person's body and doing the massage 
treatments those ethics are pretty c lear on what you s hould do and shouldn't do and 
s houldn't c hange very often ,  is that a correct statement? 

Hovden: Yes 
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Representative Kasper: Once you have learned your eth ical procedures , it is sort of l ike 
r id ing a b icycle you just know you don't have to go back and learn it again, is that cor rect? 

Hovden: Correct and if we cont inue with ethics every two years ,  when you t hink of it if 
someone is going to  do someth ing wrong it is either in them or it isn't .  

Representative Kasper: With the every two years ethics, is there a longer period of t ime 
that would be adequate and you have to th ink of new people coming in. For the people that 
have been l icensed in North  Dakota for a period of t ime, if you have been here for 6 years 
and you wou ld have to  do an ethics course every 4-6 years would that be good enough or 
should it be sooner or longer? 

Hovden: Longer and it wou ld st i l l  protect the publ ic. 

Representative Amerman: SB 2085 under the board size says 3 members of this board 
must be massage therapists  who are l icensed in th is state and act ively pract icing massage 
in th is state and it keeps the 2 consumer ones, doesn't SB 2085 say t hey have to be 
pract icing in th is state and doesn't that address your issue as far as a teacher? 

Hovden: I don't bel ieve so because she is not pract icing. 

Representative Amerman: If we pass SB 2085, it would have to  be three act ively 
pract icing massage therapists. Wouldn't that take care of your concern because she is not 
act ively pract icing? 

Hovden: I t must not have, but there must be someone who can better answer that 
quest ion too. Oh,  but that is in the new language. I am sor ry I am not t h inking clearly r ight 
now. 

Chairman Keiser: I t h ink we can remedy the inspect ion problem . 

Pat Berg-Licensed Massage Therapist-On the North Dakota Board of Massage: in 
support of SB 2294.  (See Attachment # 2 ) .  

45:20 

Representative Louser: How does a board member becomes a president of t he board? 

Berg: Through elect ions every year. 

Representative Louser: Some boards have a chairman,  vice chairman that rotates and 
t he dut ies of the secretary/treasurer falls on the administ rator. Would a revolving chairman 
solve your issues? 

Berg: Yes .  

Representative Amerman: The board members are appointed by  the Governor .  Are 
t here recommendat ions for the members to the governor?  
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Berg: Yes. B ut there is no formal notification of when a position comes open. 

Representative Amerman: When a new board member is needed the therapists don't 
know that? 

Berg: The info rmation is not on the website and there is no newsletter. 

Representative Amerman: Is  there a system for a removal or an appointment or can you 
approach the governor? 

Berg: I don't th ink so, we can work on it as a board and my first suggestion would be to get 
it out on the web site. 

Representative Beadle: I've read minutes from the board on the website, they reference 
an  external audit that was done. I n  June someone proposed doing an additional audit and 
the board decided to wait for another audit in June of 201 5, can you answer to the status of 
the audit that was being done. It looks l ike it was regarding the practices of the financials of 
the board? 

Berg: It has not been started. 

Representative Beadle: Do you know when the last audit was done? 

Berg: I have been on the board since July 2014. I believe it' s  a two year  cycle. 

Chairman Keiser: You are currently on the board and do you feel you r  p rofession is not 
in control of the majority? 

Berg: Yes. 

Chairman Keiser: Can you share with us why you have that feel ing. 

Berg: A lack of information number one and I have been on  the board for over a half a 
year and I cou ld not answer any questions on the budget. 

Chairman Keiser: Have you requested it. 

Berg: Yes.  

Representative Laning: Most of the boards have a l imit of how many terms they can 
serve before they have to be replaced. 

Vice Chairman Sukut: Do you hold a position on the board and does the board have a 
treasurer? 

Berg: No, I don' t  hold a position and yes it has a treasurer. 
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Vice Chairman Sukut: Some of the responsibi l ities wou ld fal l  on the treasurer to provide 
information if you ask for it. 

Berg: The treasu rer and the office administrator. 

Dianne Aull-Officer for the AMTA North Dakota: in su pport of SB 2294(See Attac hment 
# 3) . 

1 :00:58 

Representative Becker: 35 % of the onl ine cou rses for CE U's are " energy"? What do 
you mean by energy? Is that l ike Chi? 

Aull: Like Reiki or Diamond Dousing , c leansing the energy of you r workspace. I guess 
that might be important for safety. 

Steve Olson-Resident of Fargo North Dakota: in support of SB 2294 (See Attac hment 
# 4). 

1 : 1 1 :50 

Representative M Nelson: We have boards al l  over the state and awhi le bac k  there were 
efforts made to kind of c onsolidate things. The board is appointed by the Governor so to 
see the board members and when the board expires you go the website for the Governor's 
office. I don't know that members are aware that you go to the Sec retary of State's web site 
for the meetings and you can subsc ribe for email a lerts for al l  those boards. 

Olson: I knew that the Sec retary of State had some impact on boards. The board shou ld 
put that on the web site. The information maybe is avai lable but it is not presented in a 
good spot. 

Representative Kasper: I want to as a practical  question,  my wife loves massages. How 
long wou ld it take to get someone l ike me who has never had a massage into shape? 

Olson: After one massage you wou ld feel better. It doesn't solve al l  your problems. 

Representative Hanson: I had a bi l l  in earlier this session to try to make the governors 
website l ist the minutes and when the committee terms were expi ring but the board 
assoc iations came in  and stopped it. We do try to have more transparency. 

Olson: This is the issue,  there is just no information being g iven out .  

Chairman Keiser: Anyone else here to testify in  support of SB 2294,  any opposition to 
2294? 

Wendy McGinley-Vice President of the North Dakota Board of Massage: in opposition 
to SB 2294. (See Attac hment # 5 & 5 A) .  
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1 :24:50 

Representative Louser: When you asked the question about actively practic ing, I am 
going to reference the board we have been talking about. The language for that board 
says "actively practic ing" ,  because this is a consumer protection related board wou ld you 
be comfortable with accepting the defin ition of "actively practic ing" meaning someone who 
is performing massage with the publ ic for income? 

McGinley: If that is what it is. Other boards do say actively practic ing for income. 

Representative Kasper: How often do you think a massage therapist location shou ld be 
inspected? 

McGinley: Every five years or so if they do an annual  self-report. 

Representative Kasper: On the bottom of page two, when you reference the word 
period ical ly, it is a l ready in statute it is not something new, when you question period ically 
cou ldn't the board put in the ru les what you consider period ical ly and if you haven't why 
not? 

McGinley: Yes,  we do inspections every year. Yes we cou ld do that. It is a fai rly new 
board .  

Representative Kasper: I t  appears to me that you testify that two members of the board 
wou ld have to be gone, do you not bel ieve a professional board shou ld have the majority 
of the board members be people who are in the practice that is regu lated. 

McGinley: The way it was written prior to and when I appl ied for the position , as long as 
you were l icensed . 

Representative Kasper: I am asking your opinion on a board that is not made up  of a 
majority of the members that are in the practice of what it is regu lating .  

McGinley: I n  my mind and vision I am practic ing but I'm not c harg ing .  

Representative Hanson: When was the board's makeup c reated as i t  is  right now with the 
majority of non-professional members? 

McGinley: 200 1. 

Representative Hanson: Since 2001 and previous to that was the majority of the board 
professionals? 

McGinley: It was three LMT's .  

Representative Hanson: There has also been testimony that someone who serves on the 
board and who is also a massage therapist teacher wou ld have a c onflict of interest. You 
have not d irected anyone up  to Wil l iston? 
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McGinley: I have not. 

Representative Amerman: SB 2085 was at the request of the board and SB 2294 was 
put in by Senator Dever by the massage therapists. The biggest problem is about the 
board make-up. The on ly d ifference I can see is the board of massage keeps the three 
members but it states is actively practic ing in the state. This one makes it fou r members 
actively practic ing massage therapy in the state . Do you su pport 2085 and don't support 
2294 because you don't know what actively means, I am confused? 

McGinley: I support SB 2085 over SB 2294 more so with the board composition going to 4 
and 1 and losing the consu mer member, we are here to protect the publ ic and I feel we 
shou ld have the consu mer member on the board . Some states requ ire a c h iropractor to be 
on the massage board. 

Representative Amerman: With either b i l l  it seems you wil l  lose you r  position .  

McGinley: Yes. 

Vice Chairman Sukut: If we were to take 2085 and we work with it the way it is but we 
define "actively practic i ng" using Representative Louser's  defin ition .  What is you r 
reaction to this suggestion because it wou ld el iminate you at this point in  time although you 
wou ld sti l l  have the abi l ity to become one of the consumers? 

McGinley: No because I am dually l icensed. 

Vice Chairman Sukut: That wou ld have to be in the other section where we are defin ing 
the consumer areas. That wou ld have to be a l ine item where we wou ld spec ifica l ly say 
that one of the consumers c ou ld be a massage therapist or a c h iropractor. So if we wou ld 
do that it wou ld g ive the therapists the majority vote in what is going on and sti l l  have some 
representation from the educational part of massage. 

McGinley: This is part of the process, if that is the way it goes. I take the educational 
part of massage very seriously but if it  el iminates me from the board , my question wou ld be 
then if I wou ld actively practice ,  if I d id a couple a week, cou ld I qual ify for the board? 

Chairman Keiser: We wil l  get to that, the concept is, if you th ink of agricu ltu re we define 
farming, you have to have so many ac res or l icensu re and have a certain percent of you 
income from the farm. That prevents people l ike me, l iving in the c ity and buying 640 ac res 
and c laiming I am a farmer. When we talk about actively practic ing here the concept is it 
means this is your income. 

Representative Ruby: If you are not on the board that does not mean you cou ldn't provide 
or assist with the c ontinu ing education requ irements that they might access you r expertise 
as a l icensed massage therapist or do you th ink you wou ld be out of it completely? 

McGinley: I am not too su re. I have spoken at the spring conference just to g ive the board 
an u pdate on what is going on in North Dakota last year. I was asked to do that again this 
year and to host a table du ring the breaks to give them a face to talk to. Wou ld I be doing 
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that i f  I wasn't on the board. I don't know if I can represent the board if I 'm not on the 
board. 

Jon Simmons-Chair of the North Dakota Board of Massage: in  opposition to SB 2294.  
(See Attac hment # 6). 

1 :45:40 

Representative Kasper: We've sat through two hearings, from the perspective besides 
you rself and from the testimony they have g iven whic h  has been d i rect and using examples 
that concerned them can you explain to me why you say the board is working? 

Simmons: It's regrettable that we found ourselves on the last day of the b i l l  dead l ine fi l ing 
having two of ou r board members submit leg islation in opposition to the b i l l  that they had 
voted on with us ,  debated on and served on the committee on and testified on behalf of that 
passed in committee. It had a u nan imous passing in the Senate. I have been here for 5 
years and I have been through 2 Yi of these and I 've seen the board push forward with 
what ou r goal is and not let the personal preferences of how people wou ld l ike people to 
ru n get in the way. It hasn't made us popu lar but we are doing what is right. 

Representative Kasper: You didn't answer my question,  frankly. We have heard about a 
lac k  of transparency on budgets, how the minutes are posted and how the money is spent 
and in one person's perspective the fool ishness of spend ing 1 /3 of the budget spent on a 
marketing campaign that had noth ing to do with the helping the massage therapists. Give 
me some information on those areas . 

Simmons: We have c onsistently and continue to have a th i rd party aud it every other year 
whic h  we submit to the state. We've never had a problem. Our financ ials are very strong 
at th is point. We had about  $1 8 ,000 when I started and there is about $1 18 ,000 now. With 
regard to the marketing campaign ,  this was d iscussed , debated , and voted on with the 
board. We were trying to draw a d istinction between massage therapy industry and human 
traffic king that sometimes h ides out u nder the gu ise of massage. We provided access to 
points of contact for the publ ic to email or cal l  in if they saw anyth ing of c oncern to them. I 
do d isagree that it had nothing to do with the field because we know some i l l ic it behavior 
h ides out u nder the gu ise of leg itimate business. 

Representative Kasper: You r  answer as far as the transparency to your membership is to 
wait for the aud it every two years and you wil l see how our money is being spent because 
you are not publ ishing a monthly minutes whic h  reflect the inc ome and expenses of the 
board in that month, whic h  if a board is functioning properly wou ld do so the membership is 
informed. 

Simmons: We do have a balance sheet at the quarterly meetings. All of ou r meetings are 
open to the publ ic. All of ou r records are open records. When I first came to the board 
there was no tec hnology abi l ity for us  to post minutes, wh ic h  there are now is and we have 
over the last getting that fine-tuned. It has been bumpy. I can take the blame for that but it 
has noth ing to do with the board composition though. 



House Industry, Business & Labor Committee 
SB 2294 
March 17, 2015 
Pag e 12 

Representative Kasper: The overal l  the dec ision we need to dec ide is in  the overal l  wel l­
being of the board. Again so your answer is we review the budgets quarterly and the board 
knows it is ok, but I wou ld submit it appears to me that the membership does not. 

Simmons: The l icensee has fu l l  access to that if they want. If we have a request, we 
cou ld post those things onl ine it is easy enough to do. 

Representative Kasper: The fact of the matter is you have fai led to do it though. 

Representative Louser: I went to the Governor's site and it seems it wou ld be an easy 
l ink to post to the other site and it shows you r appointment date was September of 2010 
and you r term ends the end of Ju ly this year. How long have you been the president or do 
you reference i t  as Chairman? 

Simmons: Three years. 

Representative Louser: How do you feel about a rotation of those positions instead of an 
election? 

Simmons: It wou ld be fine. I wou ld suggest brand new members to the board wou ld 
rotate to the end of their term because of the history of cases you wou ld be deal ing with. 

Representative Beadle: Wou ld it be possible for us to get a copy of the previous  aud it? 

Simmons: Yes, I can get you that. 

Representative Beadle: How many l icensed therapists were there when you came on to 
the board? 

Simmons: I bel ieve there were 550 .  It is always a nebu lous number based on how many 
people have renewed their l icense or are in a suspended status .  We don't know if they are 
totally off of the rol ls for a fu l l  1 Yi years it takes to go through a whole renewal cyc le. 

Representative Beadle: You referenced the fact there was about $1 8 ,000 in the boards 
account when you came on and there is about $11 8 ,000 so there is about $100 ,000 
inc rease. Is that just from the l icensees that have come on? 

Simmons: No, I came in after they had legislation c rafted that inc reased the l icensing fee. 

Representative Beadle: What is your typical  annual  revenue versus expend itu res? 

Simmons: Approximate income is $80 ,000 dol lars and expend itu res approximately 
$60 ,000 . 

Representative M Nelson: What in your opinion wou ld be actively practic ing? 

Simmons: I don't know that I cou ld comment on Wendy's situation , I do know some 
massage therapists that work once a month . That is out of my scope I wou ld say someone 
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who is  consistently teac hing and educating and working hands on wou ld probably meet the 
barrier, but if the c ommittee dec ides someth ing else. I wou ld be d ifficu lt to vet l icensed 
massage therapists u nless we got into aud iting tax retu rns to see where their income was 
coming from. 

Representative M Nelson: I thinking for gu idance for the Governor because the bi l ls 
come up and say these people shou ld be actively practic ing and just what does actively 
practic ing mean .  

Simmons: We do rely a lot on of these things at  the Governor's disc retion. 

Representative Kasper: Is there a piece of paper or an appl ication that a massage 
therapist fi l ls out to renew their l icense or what is the process to renew their l icense? 

Simmons: They go to the web site and pay with a c heck card or c red it card and then they 
u pload their certific ates of c ontinued education and then they can print their l icenses. 

Representative Kasper: Cou ld you not mod ify you r appl ication renewal appl ication with 
one l ine asking ,  how many hours d id you practice massage therapy in the last 1 2  months? 

Simmons: Absolutely. 

Todd Salwey-Serves on the North Dakota State Board of Massage: in opposition of SB 
2294. (See Attac hment # 7). 

2:00:00 

Representative Kasper: Are you famil iar with INTU IT? It is a very easy software package 
where you can provide information in a very easy way. I use it and if I can anyone can. 
You have heard the testimony here today and how do you react to what you 've heard? 

Salwey: I am not fami l iar with INTU IT and I can see their point, but on the other side too 
they are not stating what they spec ifically want and in what form. 

Representative Kasper: I th ink they have been very c lear with what they want whic h  is 
c hanging Continu ing Education hours and g ive them control of the board. The don't feel 
the board is doing for their profession what they think it shou ld. 

Robert Benson-: Licensed Massage Therapist, Physical Therapist and educator 
from Williston: (See Attachment # 8) .  I was the orig inal educator on the board. The 
Governor's office approac hed me in 2006 to serve on the board ,  I did not apply. Prior to 
2006 I was just volu ntarily helping the board look at transc ripts from people that were 
moving into this state without  any legal authority to do so and the wou ld ask me my opin ion 
because of my educational bac kgrou nd .  I served from 2006 to 201 2 on the board and 
there has been a lot of growth on the board. Minutes were kept by the boards head and 
there were no paper work at a l l. A lot of the c hanges have come because of the 
tec hnology now. If you are going to revamp the board ,  please look at what the federation 
has put together as far as a model. As a whole profession around the cou ntry we are trying 
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to get together to the point where we can final ly get so that if someone gets l icensed in one 
state is pretty easy to go to another state and be able to practice. We do not want to lower 
ou r standards at a l l  we want them to bring their standards u p .  In Canada you have to have 
a bac helor's degree to be a massage therapist and they even have master's degrees and 
now in Maryland you have to have an assoc iate's degree plus 500 hou rs of massage 
instruction and now we have ou r first bac helor degree program in M ic h igan. So the wave is 
coming but as an educator I know how hard it is for me to try to fit in the information I wou ld 
l ike my massage therapists to know in ou r 1200 hou r  program . Even if ou r law says 750 
we do 1 200 hou rs because we want ou r people to be wel l  prepared and ready to practice 
when they go out. It is evolving into a health care profession . We do no d iagnosis but 
people are trusting that the massage therapists wil l cause them no harm. 

Representative Beadle: I am looking through existing statute and what you are passing 
out regarding the continu ing education hou rs nationally. I see a lot of states reference 24 
hou rs every 2 years. It seems to be pretty standard language, are therapists going to one 
24 hou r  intensive cou rse where you are there for a few days and you get it al l  done at one 
shot, it seems odd that everyone is pretty standard? 

Benson: General ly c ou rses are done on a weekend and typical ly you can get about 16 
hou rs in. We want to make it 24 hou rs every 2 years , so it shou ld be fai rly easy to get that 
continu ing education. 

Representative Beadle: The board wou ld need to approve the continu ing education 
c ou rse but it doesn't have that same requ i rement for a non- onl ine cou rse? 

Benson: I don't remember the language, but I know if they want to teac h a cou rse in North 
Dakota they su bmit their resu me and a desc ription of what they wil l  teac h and it is 
reviewed. It isn't reviewed by the whole board but it is reviewed by the office before they 
are al lowed to use it for c ontinu ing education. 

Chairman Keiser: Anyone else here to testify in opposition to SB 2294? Anyone here to 
testify in the neutral position to SB 2294? Seeing none. We do have two bi l ls and we are 
going to put these together into one bi l l. I am appointing a subcommittee: Vice Chairman 
Sukut, Representative Amerman , Representative Kasper wil l be on the subcommittee. 
They wil l  meet on this and we want you people to have some access to this. Wil l  be heard 
in the u pstairs conference room in  the House Chambers that has telecommun ications and if 
you want to be in on the Conference cal l  let ou r c lerk know, we need your emai l  and phone 
nu mber and we will send you a d ial-in number. This is a publ ic and we are very out front 
you can l isten and if we have a question we can go to you for an answer. We know a lot of 
you are from out of town. We are not reopen ing this hearing per say. We wi l l  send you the 
information of when we wil l  meet. The one thing I wou ld rea l ly suggest that is not rea l ly 
addressed in this b i l l  but in  the futu re, we don't l ike it when we have the highest standards 
in the cou ntry, general ly speaking, that is what we call fence bu ild ing. We don't want to be 
the lowest, but we are going to be coming back in the futu re and saying , if we are the 
h ighest, "why"? Be prepared to defend that because it is a way to keep people out in some 
professions. We don't real ly l ike that in a business oriented c ommittee , whic h  we are. Are 
there any fu rther questions? Seeing none. Closed the hearing on SB 2294 .  
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Chairman Dever and Members of the Committee, 

My name is Dianne Aull. I have been a massage therapist since 1998, taught massage therapy as an 

employee of Williston State College for 5 Yz years, and served as an officer for the North Dakota AMT A 

chapter for 5 years. Prior to my massage career, I was an educator and later an administrator for 

statewide and regional adult continuing education entities. 

Although I serve on the board of massage, which opposes this bill, I personally support this bill. 

Massage therapists are over-regulated in North Dakota and this bill will take real steps to 
rectify that problem. 

The Massage Registration Act was enacted in 1959 creating the North Dakota Board of Massage to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the people of the state. The board was to: 
1. Prescribe regulations for the practice of massage 
2. Conduct inspections of massage establishments 
3. Make available the necessary requirements for licensing massage therapists. 

The law was established at the request of a group of massage practitioners. Massage therapists desire 
and appreciate our Jaw which works to shield our profession from people who would attempt to practice 
massage therapy without proper training. 

There is opposition to this bill from people who represent massage therapy schools and other CEU 

providers including organizations that provide CEUs. The Board o(Massage is to protect the interests 

of consumers and not to protect the interests of massage schools. 

North Dakota's Board of Massage is configured in a way that allows non-massage therapists to take 
control. The result has been over-regulation of our industry. This is evidenced by: 

o higher licensing requirements than most other states 
o greater continuing education requirements for license renewal than any other state in the 

nation 
o license fees that are generally charged twice as often are thus are relatively twice as high 

as most other states. 
o a static (or declining) number of LMTs in our state for the last several years, in spite of 

the growth in our state in general 
o a reciprocity policy that is virtually ineffective 

SECTION 2 AMENDMENTS 

We need better representation of LMTs on the Board of Massage. 
• Our board is unusual - few other boards in our state have people outside their profession or 

industry controlling their boards. Attached is a list of boards and their composition. 



• As massage therapists, we are trained to know what our job is, and what it is not. It is easy for a 
massage therapist: 

o to identify people who are not qualified to do massage, 
o to identify violations of our state practice act, 
o and to identify problems in a massage setting. 
o Massage therapists know what our scope of practice is, and 
o have a clear understanding about when a client should be referred to a health care 

professional. These specific skills make massage therapists uniquely qualified to regulate 
our own profession. 

• LMT board members should be actually practicing massage therapists and not simply licensed. 
LMT board members not engaged in the profession may not be in touch with current issues in 
the profession and decisions would not carry the weight of importance to them that they would to 
a bona fide massage therapist. 

• The solution to over-regulation by the board is to return control of the massage therapy board to 
professional massage therapists who truly represent and understand this profession. 

Our board needs more specific criteria for a consumer member 

• As I said before, few other boards in our state have people outside their profession or industry 
controlling their boards. 

• Our board needs more transparency, accountability, and fiscal responsibility. 
o The present board operates without a budget as it has done for at least the past eight years 

and probably more. 
o Financial reports are nothing more than a copy of a checking account statement, 

sometimes for a little as one month. Income and expenses are not reported at meetings or 
between meetings; at least not to the massage therapists on the board. 

o The board' s lack of transparency has been, and continues to be, a recurring theme in 
complaints we hear from members of the profession. 

o The majority vote is given over to people who do not make their living doing massage 
therapy and the monies collected and dispersed do not impact them personally. 

• Massage therapy is not a medical field. Our scope of practice is quite limited and we are trained 
to know our limitations are. 

Attached is a list of medical professions and another of health care occupations that are related but 
not medical. · 

• Health care workers from medical professions may try to impose regulations on massage 
therapists based upon their professional lens or biases that go beyond the scope of massage 
practice. Therefore, if a member of our board is affiliated with another health care profession_,_ 
that member should also be an actively practicing massage therapist. 

• Massage therapists are also consumers of massage therapy services. 

• Some other states have massage therapy boards composed of three massage therapists and two 
consumer members, but underlying that is the fact that in almost all instances, the boards are not 



independent as North Dakota's board of massage is, but are rather found within a state agency, 
such as the health department or the department of human services. 
Attached is a list with composition of massage boards in other states. 

There is excessive influence of massage schools on the board 
• Although our board does not regulate massage schools, for the past decade one of the LMT 

positions on our board has been filled by someone who represents schools instead of representing 
LMTs. 

• Where other states have a school representativt: on their board, that board also regulate schools. 

Enhanced term limitation language 
• With about 720 licensed massage therapists in North Dakota, and an undetermined but large 

number of consumers, there is no reason for board members to be permitted to serve again unless 
sufficient time has elapsed. 

• The problems this board faces now are related to lack of turnover on the board. A lapse of ten 
years between returning to the board would help prevent a repeat of this cycle of over-regulation. 

• By bringing on new members at least every 8 years, administrative problems would get more 
notice and new expertise applied for solving problems. 

SECTION 4 AMENDMENTS 

The amendment to reduce continuing education hours from 32 to 24 hours per biennium will 
help bring continuing education requirements more in line with accepted industry standards. 

• North Dakota presently requires far more continuing education than any other state. 

• Excessive continuing education is another example of over-regulation. 

It is reasonable to dispense of continuing education requirement after 15 consecutive years. 

• Continuing education courses seldom address consumer issues, sanitation, or public safety. 

• Continuing education for highly experience massage therapists does not increase public 
safety. 

We would prefer item 3-D in amendment 4 to read: 

A massage therapist who has been practicing for compensation and licensed in good standing 
with no violations for a minimum of fifteen consecutive years qualifies for license renewal with 
no additional continuing education required. 



EXAMPLES OF THE COMPOSITION OF SIMILAR NORTH DAKOTA BOARDS 

Profession Professional members Public Members 
Addiction Counselors 5 Addiction Counselors 2 Laypersons 
Athletic Trainers 3 Athletic trainers, 1 MD 1 Public member not 

affiliated wl any 
healthcare field 

Architecture 3 Architects NIA 
Audiologist & Speech 2 Speech Pathologists, 2 Audiologists, 1 Consumer 
Pathologist 1 Hearing Aid Dealer, 

1 Otolaryngologist 
Barbers 5 Barbers NIA 
Chiropractors 5 Chiropractors NIA 
Cosmetology 3 practitioners 2 Consumers 
Dental Examiners 5 Dentist, 1 Dental Hygenist 1 Consumer 
Dietetic Practice Board 3 Dieticians, 1 Nutritionist 1 Consumer 
Funeral Service Board 3 Funeral Practitioners & 1 State NIA 

Health Officer 
Education Standards & 5 Teachers, 2 School board members, NIA 
Practices 2 school administrators, 1 Dean of 

College of Education 
Integrative Health Care 1Naturopath, 1 MD or DO, 1 Nurse NIA 

Practitioner, 1 Pharmacist, 1 Music 
Therapist 

Nursing 5 RN s, 1 Advanced Practice RN, 2 1 Public memb~r 

LPNs 
Optometry 5 Optometrists (7 members altogether) 
Occupational Therapists 3 Occupational Therapists, 1 OT 1 Consumer 

assistant 
Pharmacy 5 Pharmacists, 1 Pharmacy 1 Public member not 

Technician affiliated wl any 
healthcare field 

Physical Therapy 3 Physical Therapists, 2 MDs 1 Public member not 
affiliated wl healthcare 

Podiatry 4 Podiatrists, One other MD 1 Public member 
Private Investigators and Between 5 & 11 members - majority At least 1 public 
Security must be actively engaged in PI or member 

Security 
Psychological examiners 5 Psychologists - 1 who is currently a NIA 

Psychology service provider and 1 
primarily a teacher or researcher 

Respiratory Tperapists 4 Respiratory Therapists, 1 MD, 1 1 Public member 
polysomographic technologist 



Massage therapy is a healthcare related field but it is not a medical field and not covered 
by medical insurance in North Dakota. 

Our scope of practice prohibits us from diagnosing, prescribing, or treating. 

Medical and covered by insurance 

Physicians 
Nurses 
Physical Therapists 
Respiratory Therapists 
Lab technicians 
Nursing home care 
Dentists 
Pharmacist ' s  
Radiologists 
Osteopaths 
Psychiatrists 
Naturopaths 

Wellness related but not medical 

Massage therapists 
Yoga 
Fitness and Exercise 
General Nutrition 
Meditation 
Energy work 
Lifestyle consultants 
Herbal and traditional remedies 
Reflexologists 



MASSAGE THERAPY BOARDS 
State #of Members LMTs Public/Professional/Other Agency 
Alabama 6 5 1 
Arizona 5 3 2 with interest in consumer 

rights or law enforcement 
Arkansas 7 6 1 
California 19 
Connecticut 5 Dept of Public Health 

Delaware 7 4 3 Division of professional regulation 

Georgia 5 4 1 

Hawaii 5 3 2 Dept of Commerce 

Idaho 5 4 1 

Illinois 7 6 1 

Indiana- has six professional 5 3 2 Part of Indiana 
staff • board does hearings Professional Licensing 

Agency 
Iowa 7 4 .. 3 Part of board of Professional 

Licensure - Administered by Dept. 
of Health -

Kentucky 7 5 (1 MT must own school) 2 (1 may be health Part of Public Protection Cabinet -
professional - none w/ direct Office of Occupations and 
or indirect interest in Professions 
massage 

Louisiana 7 5 1 and 1 Physician 

Maryland 11 6 chiros, 3 LMTs 2 Dept of Health & mental Hygiene; 
Board of Chiropractic and Massage 
Therapy Examiners 

Massachusetts - agency 7 Part of Consumer Affairs and 
regulates practioners, salons, Business Regulation 
and schools 
Michigan 11 7 4 Dept of Licensing and Regulatory 

Affairs 
Mississippi 6 4 .. 1 + 1 health professional Chairperson must be massage -0 therapist c::-. 
Missouri 7 6 1 public member + 1 non- Division of Professional 

voting member Registration 
Montana 5 3 1 public + 1 healthcare Dept ofLabor andlndustry 

. provider 



MASSAGE THERAPY BOARDS 
Nebraska 4 3 f Dept of Health & Human Services 

Nevada 7 6 1 public +1 non-voting law 
enforcement member 

New Hampshire 3 3 - Board of Licensing and 
. -

Certification • Dept of Human 
Services 

New Jersey 9 6 2 public + 1 member of Consumer Affairs Dept of Law and 
executive branch Public Safety 

New Mexico 5 3 2public Regluation and Licensing division. 
Massage law sunsets in 2016 

New York 7 4 3 physicians State Education Dept. 

North Carolina 7 5 1+1 MD 

North Dakota 5 3 2 

Ohio 7 7 Advisory committee for state 
medical board 

Oregon 7 4 2 public+ 1 healthcare 

Pennsylvania 8 6 - 2 public Part of Dept. of Health 

Rhode Island N/A N/A N/A Dept. of Health - no board 

South Carolina 7 6 1 public Dept of Labor Massage/Bodywork 
Panel 

South Dakota 5 4 1 not an LMT 

Tennessee 7 5 2 Part of Dept of Health 

Texas N/A N/A N/A Dept of State Health Services 

Utah 5 4 1 public Occupational and Professional 
Licensing 

Virginia N/A N/A N/A Regulated by the Board of Nursing 

Washington 5 4 1 Dept of Health 

Washington DC 4 Dept. of Health 

West Virginia 5 3 1 lay person w/ no healthcare 
affiliation & 1 Osteopath or 
Chiroptactor 

Q? Wisconsin 7 . ' 6 - 1 a technical college rep .1 public member Dept of Safety and Professional 
& 1 a school rep Services 

_J 
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Good morning Chairman Dever and committee members: 

My name is Gail Hovden and I am in favor of SB2294. I am here representing myself, but have 
brought a number of letters of support from many Licensed Massage Therapists (LMT's) 
practicing in North Dakota. I have been a self-employed practicing massage therapist for 26 
years in Bismarck. I have volunteered my time and services over the years with different local 

organizations two of which are the ND chapter of American Massage Therapy Association and 
the ND State Board of Massage. I have had the opportunity to hold office on these boards, and 

other committees as well. As such, I have had the opportunity to speak with numerous LMT's 
and the public about their concerns of the massage industry, regulations, etc. Questions like 
'Why is it so difficult to get licensed in your state?, Why did the relicensing fee double?, How 
much longer do I have to take CEU's?'. After many hours of listening and discussion, I feel that 

SB2294 addresses these concerns. 

Page 1: 

Line 15 - The ND massage board is comprised of a five member board, three LMT's and two 
public members. Currently only two members are practicing LMT's. The third LMT is not a 
practicing LMT but a massage teacher and also a physical therapist assistant. Having a massage 
teacher on the board is not only a conflict of interest, but can be an income generating venue 

as well. As a member of the board, a teacher. of massage reviews applicants' transcripts to see 
if they qualify for licensure, then can check students' transcripts and decide if they then need 
more hours and set up a teach-out plan. There has been an LMT teacher/physical therapist on 
this board since 2006, approving teach-out plans and assisting in proposed changes to ND law 
regarding class requirements. I feel this job can be done through the paid administrative office. 

Currently, no practicing LMT holds office on this board, and no LMT has held the office of 
president since 2004. The board president is a public member who has at times not posted 

meeting times until a few days before the meetings are held, or does not post important issues 
such as upcoming legislation on the website. He maintains the website for a fee when we have 
an office administrator who should be doing this as it is part of their job description. Vice 
president is the teacher I mentioned earlier. The secretary-treasurer position is held by a public 
member who is a chiropractor. He also teaches MT in Fargo and offers massage therapy in his 
office. 

This board has not had a formal budget for years. It is our licensing fees that fund board 
activities and I feel that having four practicing LMT's on this board would bring a more 
conservative approach to board spending. 

Having four actively practicing LMT's would facilitate better communication and understanding 
in what they feel is important for the massage community and the public. LMT's have training in 
ethics that is specific to the massage setting, boundary issues, and other matters that might 
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occur in the form of complaints and concerns presented to the board. Public members should 

not be able to over-ride the expertise LMT's bring to the board. 

Practicing LMT's have a better understanding of the financial obstacles l-MT's face that are 
intrinsic to the profession. A public member should have no financial interest relating to 
massage if that individual is to be charged with representing the public only. Representing any 

interests of massage therapists or related businesses is a conflict of interest. 

Page 2: 

Line 15 - Reflects change needed in number of years per term to prevent term overlap. 

Line 20 - Covered in 582085 

Line 30 - Requires inspections. Over the last 10 - 12 years inspections were done very 
sporadically. In 2010, a request was made to double our licensing renewal fees since money 

available to the board was low. Legislation was passed with the stipulation that inspections 
would be done on a more regular basis. The board did then increase our fees and at their next 
meeting voted to do three inspections per quadrant within the state - a total of 12 per year. ND 
has 726 therapists. If we minimally do 12 per year, it would take 60 years before each one is 
inspected. At that rate, most LMT's will never be inspected. In fact, there are many LMT's who 

have said that they have never been inspected during their career. If the board's primary 
objective is public safety, shouldn't there be a greater number of inspections performed? 

Page 3: 

Line 8 - Covered in 582085 

Line 20 - ND has always had an excessive amount of required continuing education units 
(ceu's) compared to other states, as is evident in the included chart. After completing massage 
school in Oregon in 1991, I passed my licensing exam in ND. Not only was I struggling to start 
a business, I was also a single parent. Seven months later I had to take another 18 ceu's, and 
18 ceu's each year thereafter until 2010 when the requirements changed from 18 ceu's per year 

to 32 ceu's every two years. 582085 is requesting that the ceu's be changed from 32 every two 
years to 24 hours every two years. This will help somewhat but I didn't realize that I was 
committing to being a lifetime student to a profession that is clearly not a medical profession. 

Our scope of practice is quite limited and we are trained to know our limitations and when to 
refer to other professionals. We are required to earn more ceu's than many other professions. I 
have provided a list for comparison. This list also shows the number of hours required for 

graduation for various states and their ceu's. Because of the high number of required ceu's in 
this state, a number of ND LMT's have shifted their focus from providing massage to taking 
advantage of the ND ceu market. It is not the purpose of this board to facilitate money-making 
side businesses. 
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Page 4: 

Line 13c - This is requested for those times when a person needs to take time for medical 
purposes, becoming a caregiver, or other times of hardship. Currently, letting your license lapse 
results in not only late fees and license renewal fees, but also jumping through the state's 
stringent ceu requirements thus creating more costs and hardship. Not only that, but you get 

your name posted on the "Not Licensed to Practice in ND" column on the state's webpage. We 
have 726 LMT's in this state and in spite of the population growth in ND, the number of LMT's is 
dropping. Many LMT's have decided not to renew because of the difficulty faced when trying to 

rel icense after a time of hardship. In fact, if for any reason, whether through the fault of the 

massage therapist or the administrative office a renewal is late, the office sends out an 
intimidating letter to the therapist. A copy is provided for you. 

Line 15 - Massage therapy training includes many hours of classroom education as well as 
many lab hours. I have always felt that amount of required ceu's was excessive, and after 26 
years of taking continuing education in this field I feel that I have reached a level of 
professional expertise that allows me to practice my trade quite successfully. I don't think more 

ceu's after this many years will improve my skills. In fact, many of the classes I am taking now 
are a repeat of familiar techniques with the added instruction of incorporating a new tool or 
such into the technique. At this point I am not interested in learning a new modality. But if I 
should choose to further my skills and specialize in a certain modality or acquire a new 
modality, I would still have that option. 

Ceu seminars can refresh and enhance skills that you already know, and I will say that I have 

learned from and enjoyed some of these classes. Yes, they can be helpful but they can also be 
harmful when you only get an introduction to a certain type of massage technique. For 
example, I did go to a weekend seminar on hot stone massage. Since we worked with cold 
stones, we did not have training in heating the stones or checking for the correct temperature, 
where you could potentially burn a client. At the end of the seminar there is no requirement 
testing for competency. I did get a certificate stating that I was now qualified to utilize stone 
massage in my practice. I was very uncomfortable to do so. Yet many of the class participants 
were very excited to get started with this new technique. 

The four basic strokes of massage - effieurage, tapotement, friction, petrissage - have not 
changed over the years. I can see why the teachers of massage school and education 
promotion organizations such as the American Massage Therapy Association are concerned if 
ceu's are cut or even dropped at some point in one's career because this is a large part of how 
they are financially supported. I myself have 456 ceu's in my career. I can't afford to be 
supporting them anymore since I can't work as much as I used to at this time in my life. I have 

read that the average career span for a massage therapist is eight to ten years and after that 
many LMTs go to a different career and keep massage as a part time job. 

Line 4 - Covered in 582085 

I want to thank you for your time. 



We noticed a mistake that was an oversight in the drafting process and request 
wording be added in Section 4 amendment part d. found beginning on line 15 of page 
4 so that it would read as follows: 

A massage therapist who has been practicing for compensation and licensed in 
good standing with no violations for a minimum of fifteen consecutive years 
qualifies for license renewal with no additional continuing education required. 



l '. e .. ----... 
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Liability 
Insurance Educational hours Renewal 

CEU* hrs I ear 
16 2 

Use this cord to check out eoch state's regulatory requirements for massage therapy. To get the most up-to-dote information, log in 
at www.obrnp.com and click on the legislative state map member section, or coll 800-458-2267. lost update Morch 2014. 

-·---·- ·-·-------·----·-----·-··-··---·-·------~ 

Exam(s) Required Additional Requirements Telephone 

MBLEx OR NCBTMB and Stole exam Accredited school only 866-873-4664 

Loco! req~rements apply 

MBLEx OR NCBTMB i·~les1 grodlr~] A/USOl cmfili~ildicJi Background check 

MBLEX or NCBTMB + 250 hrs=CMT Background check 

MBlEx OR NCBTMB BoCkground cheJ:k 

Local requirements apply 
. MBLEx OR NCBTMB , 

MBLEx OR NCBTMB Provisional license available, Background check 
-----l---'----+-=---~ 

·· MBlEx OR NCBTMB oltemotive to educotton CPR, boCkgrou.nd check 

Accredited school only, CPR, jurisprudence exam, 
background check 

MBLEx: licensing exam offered by the Federation of Stole Massage Therapy Boards. · cEU : continuing education hours required for renewal of license. NCBTMB offers 2 exams, the NCETMB and NCETM; check with your state to determine which if accepts. 



Background check, jurisprudence exam 

8ockground dieck, jurisprudence exam 
Background check, jurisprudence exam, temp. license avail. 

~--.......,.....-------·----------- L;~r~~~(;;~~~~-~~·~-. -·~:--·--- ............... -:··~-·t:--:.•-:·-.:..,,,..,.-~:ry-c 

Provisional certificotion available 

MBLEx licensing exam offered by the Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards.• CEU - Continu ing education hours required for renewal of license. NCBTMB offers 2 exams .. NCETMB and NCETM. check your stale lo determine which it accep1s. 



North Dakota State Board of Massage 
PO Box 218 

Beach, NO 58621 
Phone 877-268-8139 

Fax 877-815-6337 
Email kareri.wojahn@ndboardofmassage.com 

January 30, 2015 

In the process of compiling a list of unlicensed therapists in the State of North Dakota for 
publication, it has come to our attention that you have not renewed your License. This may 
be for a couple of reasons. Either you did not inform us of a name or address change and 
you did not complete the online renewal, we have not yet received your ceu hours required to 
complete your renewal or you choose not to practice in the State of North Dakota at this 
time. 

In the event the reason is the former, you must contact us immediately, for your renewal 
code to complete the online renewal, so that we do not publish your name. Because your 
renewal is late you will now need to pay the required fee of $100.00 for the renewal as well 
as the $50.00 late fee, if you are an odd licensed #you will also need to attach a copy of 
your of ceu's. 

' If you do not renew your license before December 31, 2015 your license will lapse. If you let 
your license lapse you will need to reapply for licensure, pay the required $150.00 application 
fee, submit an affidavit of compliance, a current CPR certificate, a recent passport type photo, 
a photocopy of confirmation of repeating and passing the NCBTMB or MBLEX exam and also a 
statement from your physician. 

If you do not wish to renew your license, we would appreciate a telephone call, e-mail or 
letter informing us of this decision so we can update our files. 

Just to make it clear YOU ARE NOW AN UNLICENSED PRACTITIONER! That means that it is against 
the law for you to be practicing massage, even if you are not charging a fee. As stated in Title 49 
Administrative Rules, 49-01-02-03, (Paragraph 2.) Practicing massage after a massage therapist's 
license has expired constitutes the unauthorized practice of massage. Practicing massage under an 
expired license is a violation of North Dakota Century Code Section 43-25-03 and is grounds for the 
board to refuse to renew the person's license under subsection 3. 

Practicing massage without a license is a class B misdemeanor under North Dakota Century Code 

(N.D.C.C.) § 43-25-19. The maximum penalty for a class B misdemeanor is thirty days 

imprisonment, a fine of $1,000 or both. N.D.C.C. § 12.1-32-01(6). 

We will be publishing a list of list of therapists in the State who are no longer licensed, so it is in 
your best interest to contact us immediately to update your standing. 

Very Truly Yours, 



January 1 6, 20 1 5  

I am in favor of the bill supporting that the North Dakota State Board of Massage be 

made up of four Licensed Massage Therapists and only one consumer member. 

I am in favor of the bill supporting that after 1 5  years of being a Licensed Massage 

Therapist you should not have to continue doing continuing education every year. 

Kristin Helland, LMT # 1 084 

Mandan, ND 
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January 23, 2015 

Attention : Legislative Assembly of N orth Dakota 

To Whom It May Concern : 

My Name is, Dra l i n n  J .  Koe nig, LMT. I have been a Licensed 

Massage Th erapist, at my busi ness of Guided Hands 

Thera peutic Massage, i n  Bismarck, N D, practici ng for com i ng up 

on 22 yea rs.  

I am writin g  to i nform you that I a m  in su pport of SB NO. 2294. 
Sincerely, 

U�\f/\J y KO� , U'YfT 
Dra l i n n  J .  Koen ig, LMT 
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Cenb.lrylink Webmail hands4u@q.com 

±Font Size: 

Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal 
History Record Checks - LC# 15.0511.02000 

From :judy jacobson <vmassage@cableone.net> 

Subject: Re: Gail sending a copy of bm - Bill Draft Relating to Crininal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

To: hands4u@q.com 

Sun, Jan 25, 2015 03:54 PM 

Gail, yes I support this bifl and I know you left the bat # on my call phone but I have nisplace it and if you send it to me again I can 
say on this ema~ or the nest one I send you that I do support the bill. Judy Jacobson RN, LMT 

On Jan 14, 2015, at 1:48 PM, CenturyLink Customer wrote: 

From: "CenturyLink Customer" <hands4u@q.com> 
To: vmassage@cabelone.net 
Sent: Wednesday, January 14, 2015 1:41 :30 PM 
Subject: Fwd: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

JI•' . ,· 



ventUf)UnK vveomau 

Centu rylink Webmail 

senate bil l-2294 Thank you Gai l ! !  

From : ss�krran@ndsupernet.com 

Subject : senate bill-2294 Thank you Gail! ! 

To : hands4u@q. com 

� 2  P3 \ 3  
hands4u@q.com . 

± Font Size : 

Thu, Jan 29, 201 5  0 1 : 3 1  AM 

to whom it rray concern, I have been a rrassage therapist since 1983 and I a m  very rruch in favor of senate bill 2294! I would like 
to be able to choose, at this point in rll{ career, to attend the conventions if I so desire! thank you for your support of this 
bill! Sincerely, Sharon Silkrran, 135 hwy 8 south, Hettinger, N.D. 
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±Fonts~: 

Centurylink Webmail 

Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal 
History Record Checks - LC# 15.0511.02000 

From : Virgil Vetter <virgilvetter5@grrail.com> Tue, Jan 27, 2015 ii i44 AM 

Subject: Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - BiU Draft Relating to Crininal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

To : CenturyUnk Custorrer <hands4u@q.com> 

I got it and yes I would support you on that BiH Virgil Vetter. 

On Jan 27, 2015, at 9:50 AM, CenturyLink Custorrer <hands4u@g.com> wrote: 

let me know if you got 

From: "CenturyLink Customer" <hands4u@q.com> 
To: "gail bovden" <hands4u@g.com> 
Sent:Monday,January 19,2015 7:22:31 PM 
Subject: F\\d Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal History Record Checks - LC# 
15 .0511 .02000 

<15.0511.02000.pdf> 



January 1 6, 20 1 5  

I am in favor of the bill supporting that the North Dakota State Board of Massage be 

made up of four Licensed Massage Therapists and only one consumer member. 

I am in favor of the bill supporting that after 1 5  years of being a Licensed Massage 

Therapist you should not have to continue doing continuing education every year. 

�� � 
Jennifer Gensburg, LMT #10'70 
Bismarck, ND 



Novemb e r  1 3 , 2 0 1 4  

N e u r oMu s c u i a r  The r a py and We l l n e s s  
1 3 3  H i ghway 8 S o u t h  
H e t t i ng e r , N . D .  5 8 6 3 9  

T o  Whom I t  May C o n c e r n : 

I have b e e n  a L i c e n s e d  Ma s s a g e  The r a p i s t i n  N o r t h  D a k o t a  
f o r  3 4  y e a r s  a n d  f o r  2 y e a r s  p r i o r i n  S o u t h  D a k o t a . I 
c o n t i n u e  t o  m a i n t a i n  a f u l l t i me p r a c t i c e . A f t e r  th i s  many 
y e a r s  of e d u c a t i o n a n d  p r a c t i c a l  expe r i e n c e  I do n o t  f e e l  
t h e  c o n t i nu i ng e d u c a t i o n h o u r s  s ho u l d  b e  m a n d a t o r y . I 
wou l d  s t i l l  a t t e n d c l a s s e s  that I m i gh t  b e  . p a r t i c u l a r l y 
i n t e r e s t e d  i n . I f e e l  a f t e r  1 5  y e a r s  the c o n t i nu i ng e d u �  
c a t i o n c o u l d  b e  wa i ved f o r  l i c e n s e  r e n ewa l w i thout t h e r e  
b e i n g a n y  p r o f e s s i o n a l  r a m i f i c a t i o n s . 

A l s o , I s u p p o r t  the N o r t h  Dako t a  B o a r d  o f  Ma s s a g e  be i ng 
c ompr i s e d  o f  4 L i c e n s e d  Ma s s a g e  The r a p i s t s , a n d  1 consumer 
membe r . 

I a p pr e c i a t e  your t i me a n d  c o n s i d e r a t i o n t o  t h e s e  i s s u e s . 

R e s p e c t f u l l y , Q1 1a«iCJtl.b� 
Ma r y  J E g g eb o , LMT 



# 2- PJ 11 
I a m  writ ing t h is l ette r i n  support of Se nate B i l l  No .  2294. 

I strongly s u p port c h a ng ing t h e  boa rd of massage to consist of 

five m e m bers with fou r  of the mem bers to be l icensed i n  th is  

state and active ly pra ctic i ng m assage thera py for at  least t h ree 

consecutive yea rs i m med iate ly prece d i ng a ppoint m e nt to the 

boa rd .  

I fee l  having fou r  p ract ic ing m a ssage the ra p ists on t h e  boa rd is 

crucia l to m a ke i m portant decis ions rega rd i ng o u r  p rofess ion .  I 
a lso su ppo rt h avi ng o n ly cu rre ntly practic ing m assage 

thera pists on the boa rd as we know the day to day cha l le nges 

of m a i nta i n i ng a s uccessfu l a n d  eth ica l b u s i n ess . 

I a lso s u pport c h a ng ing t h e  req u i re m e nts for l icensed massage 

t h e ra pists w h o  h ave bee n p ra ct ic ing for fifteen consecutive 

yea rs to n o  a d d it io n a l  cont i n u i ng ed ucatio n  req u i re d .  The 

m ajority of u s  in those s h oes consta ntly resea rch a nd l ea rn n ew 

m ate ria l o n  o u r  own a nyway.  

I wou l d  l i ke to u rge the se n ate to pass th is  b i l l  as  it  is  writte n .  

Th a n k-you 

Ka re n  La n g  LMT 



Centu rylin k  Webmail 
± Font Size : 

Re: Gail send ing a copy of bill  - Bil l  Draft Relating to Criminal 
History Record Checks - LC# 15.05 1 1.02000 

From : Mary Apple <rraryapple62@yahoo.com> 

Subject : Re: Gail sending a copy of bHI - BiH Draft Relating to Crirrinal History Record Checks - LC# 
15. 051 1 . 02000 

To : CenturyLink Custorrer <hands4u@q.com> 

Reply To : Mary Apple <rraryapple62@yahoo. com> 

Dear Gail, 

Sat, Jan 17, 2015 06: 56 AM 

I am writing to say that I am for your bill. And mt erra� address is rraryapple62@yahoo.com I live in Mandan ND and work as a 
rrassage theirpist in Mandan a lso. 

Mary Degner 

On Monday, J anuary 12, 2015 9:41 AM, CenturyLink Custorrer <hands4u@q.com> wrote : 

Thank you Mary, What I need is a email from you saying you are in favor of this bill, with your name and where you are from. you are 
also more than v.elcome to come to the captial and tell them too. I will take your written email with me when i go to the capital, if you 
can write me one. thank you gail 

From: "Mary Apple" <maryapple62@yahoo.com> 
To: "CenturyLink Customer" <hands4u@q.com> 

Sent: Monday, January 1 2, 20 1 5  9 :34:21 AM 
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Centu rylink Webmail 

massage bil l  support 

From : Laura Kraenzel <chloecolty@outlook.com> 

Subject : massage bill support 

To : CenturyLink Customer <hands4u@q. com> 

Sent from Windows Ma� 

± Font Size : 

Tue, Jan 20, 2015 1 1 :06 AM 

My name is Laura Kraenzel. I am from Dickinson, ND. I have been a licensed massage therapist since 1997. I agree with this bill and 
I fully support it. I am in full support of the 4 L.MT's and the no rrore CEU's after so many years. We are losing older therapists 
that are not being treated right and I this would really help the problem Thank you for your careful consideration. 

Sincerely, 
Laura Kraenzel 



Centurylin k Webmail 

Proposed bi l l  

Fr:o.m : rrassey@bektel.com 

�J?J#ct : Proposed bHI 

To : hands4u <hands4u@q. com> 

Reply To : rrassey@bektel.com 

This is for Bill # 582294. 

I have read the bill and agree of the changes being rrade. 

Bobbie Jo Brindle. L.MT#2 10 

vermJl)UnK vveoman 

han s4u@q.com 

± Font Size = 

Thu, Jan 22, 2015 09:48 AM 



Centu rylink Webmail 

From : Rowan Dahners < bernadetteschnidtl@msn.com> 

Subject : <No Subject> 

To : g h <hands4u@q.com> 

Hi Gail Hovden, 

'°'"" IWI )'UI II\ YY�llClll 

± Font Size : 

Thu, Jan 08, 2015 1 1 : 54 AM 

I totally support to have 4 LMTs on the State Board, LMTs would understand of what massage therapist needs and wants are. Also 
to have the continued education stop after so many years of being a massage therapist, I have been a therapist for 22 years and I 
don't see how rruch nnre continue ed can help rre in Ill{ practice. I would like to have the choice to go to nnre classes if I choose to 
and it not be manditory! 

Thank you 
Bernadette Schrridt. 



January 1 9, 20 1 5  

Gail Hovden 
424 N 1 5th St 
Bismarck, ND 5850 I 

Dear Ms. Hovden, 

Lucia s. SRJametz 
216 6th Ave NE 

Jamestown, ND 58401 
(701) 252-0816 

I am writing in support of your efforts in testifying to the Legislature concerning the ND State Board of 
Massage Therapists. After 33 years as a massage therapist, I have interest in seeing legislation enacted to 
protect the interests of licensed massage therapists. 

I am glad to s�e the recent increase in required hours from 500 to 750 within the ND Massage Therapy 
schools. More hours will better prepare students to complete the ND State Boards successfully. 
However, I do have a concern with the cost of the l icense renewal continuing to increase without 
sufficient reason behind the increase. For many years it was consistently set at $50, in 20 1 2  it doubled to 
$ 1 00, the last I understood there is discussion it will increase another $50 in 20 I S .  

I also support the proposed measure 43-25-05 (3.d) stating licensed massage therapists having a paying 
practice for over 1 5  consecutive years should not be required to complete continuing education in order to 
have their license renewed. I agree with the concept, however l would suggest 20 years of consecutive 
years of service. As was my experience, many of the continuing education opportunities I encountered 
had already been covered in previous years and it was material I was using and new well already. So it 
was a burden of time away from my employment and extra expense in attending the conferences. 

It is disappointing to still see the number of people within the state of ND that continue to practice 
massage therapy without a val id license. There needs to be regulations in place and consequences for 
those not meeting the guidelines. 

One other area I would like to address is the ND State Board of Massage Therapists and how it is 
comprised. Statutes need to be implemented to l imit the number of years one can serve on the board in 
any capacity and once the term is up, stepping down should come without any problem. 

In the past, the ND State Board used funds collected to send representatives to the National Massage 
Therapy conventions. I feel this was a waste of funds, as the representatives would not bring anything 
back to share from what they had learned while in attendance. However, I do recall once instance, where 
Mr. Olson from Fargo attended a convention in China and brought back wonderful videos of new 
massage techniques that were very helpful. 

I am so grateful for Gail Hovden to take on this task of bringing this before the Legislative assembly on 
behalf of the ND State Massage Therapists. I hope for the best and glad I could be a part of it. 

�£� 
Lucia S. Steinmetz 



Centurylink Webmail 

bill 2294 

From : Bonny Kerrper <breatheagain@srt.com> 

Subject : bill 2294 

To: hands4u@q.com 

ve1 owi )'LJ 111\ vveomau 

-:If ;J P5~ 
hands4u@q.com 

±Font Size : 

Tue, Feb 03, 2015 04:27 PM 

I have been a massage therapist in North Dakota for 11 years . I have been practicing in Minot for all those years. It would be greatly 
appreciated if you would support Bill 2294. Thank you for your consideration . Bonny Kemper, BS, LMT,LR 

Bonny Kerrper 
(701) 721-1492 mobile 
breatheaqain@srt.com 



Centu rylin k Webmail 
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Fwd : support of 2294 

From : CenturyUnk Customer < hands4u@q. com> 

Subject : Fwd: support of 2294 

To : gail hovden <hands4u@q.com> 

From: 

--- Begin Forwarded Message --­

From : Heidi< 'strainheicli@yrmil.com> 
Date: Feb 4, 2015, 3:25:53 PM 
To: 
Subject: support of 2294 

hands4u q.com 

± Font Size : 

Wed, Feb 04, 2015 10:24 PM 

I also feel we need bill 2294 to pass. Our rressage board needs to be run BY rressage therapists. We need to take control of 
our own boar.d. We need some changes and I strongly feel this biU will help get these changes rmde. We need people on the 
board who understand this profession in this day and age and understand what it means to be a rrassage therapist, they 
need to truly understand how the profession works a nd I feel that this absolutely can not be done unless you are a rrassage 
therapist. I support this bill. I I think you should too. 
Thank you for your time and consideration, 
"' Heidi Strain, LMT # 847 
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� Centu rylink Webmail hands4u@q.com 

± Font Size : 

�'--���-�--�-
� Education cred its 
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A-om : The Hearing Aid Company <thehearingaidco@srt.com > 

Subject : Education credits 

\To : hands4u@q.com 

April 30, 2013 

Board of Massage Therapy 

Massage for Body Benefits 
Lisa Risovi 
Lie #468 
1809 So Broadway Ste. I 
Minot, ND 58701 

Tue, May 21,  2013 02: 59 PM 

I received a cal l  this morning asking my opinion on continued education for veteran therapist. I am a therapist of 14 years. 

I am cutting back to part-time for my body cannot work the ful l  time hours any longer. I would like to see the continued education hour's change 
as the years of service get higher. 

We get very redundant when it comes to educating and don't feel the need to have as many hours of continued education to fulfi l l  our license 
unless there are extreme changes in the law or modalities. . They take a new named class and we get refreshed after the many years we have 
educated. It is tough to get new material for continued education. 

My vote would be to reduce education and try get more people involved in the board meetings. I myself have never been to one because of time 
and timing. 

Lisa Risovi 
Massage for Body Benefits 

rrd29.qua1z.s�.com'zintira/hlprintmessage?id=45020 
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From: Heather J hljorstad@aol.co{Tl 
Subject: In support of Senate Bill'~ 

Date: January 30, 2015 at 7:52 AM 
To: Udemin@nd.gov 

Hello, 

I am in support of Senate Bill 2294. Being a massage therapist for the past 14 years I believe it is important for us Licensed 

Massage Therapists to have a votce on how our state board is run. 1 am tn favor that our Massage state Board should consist of 

4 Practicing Licensed Massage Therapists and 1 Consumer Member. Our board currently consists of 3 Licensed Massa,ge 

Therapists, 2 of which are currently doing massage as there profession and 1(it is my understanding) who is teaching m.assage 

but not currently doing massage on a daify basis. We also currently have one of our consumer members as President of our 

Massage Board. I strongly disagree with this, and think that only Practicing Licensed Massage Therapists on the board should 

hold office as President. Currently all consumer members are holding office and the LMTs are not. This is causing conflict on our 

Board and l believe should be changed. 

In section 4 Number 3d. I will say that I do not agree with the bill stating after a Licensed Massage Therapist has been licensed 

for 15 years that they will no longer need continuing education. I am one for education, and believe that every individual always 

has room to learn and grow, whether you have been in the business for 1 year or 15. 

Thank you tor your time, please consider supporting Section 2 of Senate Bill 2294. 

Sincerely, 

Heather Jorstad, LMT 



Centurylink Webmail 

Fwd: 

From : CenturyUnk Custorrer <hands4u@q.com> 

Subject: Fwd: 

To: gail hovden <hands4u@q.com> 

From: "p berg'' <lmtberg@gmail.com> 
To: "Gail Hovden" <hands4u@q.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 12:19:30 AM 
Subject: Fwd: 

--Gail, 
One rrore for your support group. 

--------- Forwarded rressage ----------
From: Arlene Pozarnsky <lakelooprrassaqe@yahoo.com> 
Date: Tue, Feb 10, 2015 at 7:53 PM 

Centur)Unk Webmail 

=1/;2 ~;19 
hands4u@q.com 

±Font Size: 

Wed, Feb 11, 2015 01:13 PM 

hey girl, just a little note to say I am in favor of bm 2294, change does need to be rrade. I like the idea of 15 yrs and then no rrore 
ceo's, actually 10 or 12 years would be good. If u stay in it after 10 u know that is what u want to do and you will autorratically 
keep or take your own continuing education. I like the idea of inspections. Changes to board rrerrbers is great. what about Karen 
W. job, I think 10 year status is good and then off for a few and back on. What is up with all the rroney we have? just get it passed 
and then work on changes, 
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Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal 
History Record Checks - LC# 15.0511.02000 

From :judy jacobson <vmassage@cableone.net> Wed, Feb 11, 2015 01:25 PM 

Subject : Re: GaU sending a copy of bHI - Bill Draft Relating to Crirrinal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

To : CenturyLink Customer <hands4u@q.com> 

Yes Yes I am in favor of the SB 2294----------Judy Jacobson RN\LMT 

On Feb 11, 2015, at 1: 11 PM, CenturyLink Customer wrote: 

bill is being heard on fri am. please send ASAP if you are in support of SB 22 94 thank you gail 

From: "Century Link Customer" <hands4u@q.com> 
To: snpboe@qmail.com 
Sent: Saturday, February 7, 2015 8:04:06 AM 
Subject: F~ Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511 .02000 

thought i'd try again, here is a mnnber you can call your legisltors and leave a message , asking them to vote yes on SB 
2294. everybit helps!!!! thanks gail 

From: "CenturyLink Customer" <hands4u@g.com> 
To: "gail hovden" <hands4u@q.com> 
Sent: Monday, January 19, 2015 7 :22 :31 PM 
Subject: F~ Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal History Record Checks - LC# 
15 .0511.02000 

<15.0511.02000.pdf> 



To whom it may concern, 

I am writing in regards to the continu ing education hou rs.  I have been an active 

massage thera pist i n  the state of North Da kota for 8 yea rs. I own my own 

business i n  B inford, N D  a nd have a thriving business i n  a l ittle town of 180 people. 

A town this size req uired people l i ke myself to become vol untee rs in  our 

com m u n ities. 4 yea rs ago I joined the Cooperstown Ambula nce Squad as a 

vol unteer Emerge ncy Medica l  Tech nician ( E MT) . I am nationa l ly recogn ized as a 

practicing LMT a n d  EMT. Contin u ing education i n  these two professions is held at 

a h igh sta n d a rd i n  the state of N D. It is my proposa l that these two professions be 

a l lowed to joi n i n  rega rds to contin u i ng ed ucation. Continu ing education 

req u i rement for EMT is 20 national  hou rs, 10 loca l hours, a nd 10 ind ividua l  hou rs 

every 2 yea rs.  LMT req u i rements a re 32 hours every 2 yea rs with at least 3 hours 

dedicated to eth ics. 

Boa rd members a re a critica l resou rce to people l i ke me.  I support the proposa l 

that the State Boa rd of Massage be made u p  of 5 members, 4 being LMT's and 1 
being a consumer member. We need people on the boa rd that u nd ersta nds our 

profession as a whole.  This is a growing industry which needs a sol id fou ndation 

sta rting at the top with the boa rd members. This profession was chosen by each 

l ice nsed massage thera pist practici ng in N D. Let us put i nto place a board that 

protects a nd u ndersta nds the issues that massage thera pists encou nte r. 

Tha n k  you for you r t ime a n d  con sid eration.  

S i n cere ly, 

The resa A. Iverson 969 

In The Zone Massage Thera py 

Bi nford . N D  58416 



Centu rylink Webmail 

FW: Senate Bill  

From : Shasta Held <ShastaHeld@gatecitybank. com> 

Subject : FW: Senate Bill 

To : hands4u@q.com 

Hello 
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Thu, Feb 12, 201 5  10:25 AM 

I am writing to agree with Senate Bill NO 2294. I am a part-tirre Massage Therapist I have been active therapist since 2003. I 
agree that 32 hours every two years is way too rrany. 
I feel that it is just a rmney garre for CEU'S they a re way overpriced. For being a Therapist for 12 years I feel it should be ITT{ 
choice if I want to take Continuing Education. I feel 8 hours would be plenty for a Massage Therapist rTlf husband is an electrician 
and he only needs 8 a year . Massage Therapy is a hard profession to stay active in. I believe by adjusting the hours this would 
rrake a huge difference for us therapists. Training takes away tirre that we can be in the office rrake a difference for a client. 
Thank you for your time in considering this change. 

Shasta Held #779 
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RE: CU E'S 

From : Carla Anderson <scrapbooker@bektel. com> 

Subject : RE: CUE'S 

To : hands4u@q. com 

G a i l, 

Centur�lnk Webmail 

hands4u@q.com 
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Thu, May 02, 2013 09 :33 AM 

I know th is  is something t h a t  I h a ve bee n  bri ngi ng up for awhi l e .  It is a ctua l ly s omething that  I wou l d  do more res ea rch on before s u bm itti ng it before the State Board.  I do not know if 
it  i s  being practiced i n  a ny oth e r  states.  

Here i s  w h a t  I know and what I fe e l .  I h ave h e a rd that the average work expect a n cy of a n  LMT i s  8 yea rs beca use of severa I reasons, one being that the work i s  too h a rd for some 

people's ha nds to d o .  

Thi s  i s  myself a nd h o w  I fee l .  Ove r the yea rs,  I have t a ke n  severa l d iffe rent courses,  a s  l i ke everyone e l s e, a nd I s e e m  to t a ke a l i ttle b it  from e a c h  course a n d  a d d  it  to my pract i c e .  At 

th is  poi nt, I wa s l icensed i n  1996 a nd ove r the yea rs I have developed my own m a s s a ge techniques from a l l  the d i fferent s p e a kers that  we see, a ga i n  l i ke everyone e l s e  that h a s  
been i n  th is  profe s s i o n .  As I t a ke cont i n u i ng e ducation that  relates to what I d o ,  it  i s  a refre s h e r, but gets boring a n d  monotonous . Ove r the l a st few yea r s ,  I know myself  a nd othe rs 

t h a t  h a ve been i n  the profession ove r 10 yea rs fi nd the cont i n u i n g  e d .  to be a waste of money a n d  l ost  t ime from our b u s i n e s s .  

As I l oo k  a t  e·a ch profe s s i on a n d  s e e  how e ducation a l  requ i rements a re required for e a ch profe s s i on s uc h  a s  e l ectri c ia ns, home inspectors, a ppra ise rs that h a ve 

code/s a fety/requirement c h a nges every yea r  or other yea r, doctors, n urses, medica l  profe s s i o n a l s  they have new medic ines,  a dva nced medica I e q uipment, n e w  cures for 

d iseases,  I see where It is i mporta nt for th e m  to get cont i n u i ng e d u cat ion every yea r. As for ma ssage therapi sts, once you sta rt h itt i n g  10-15 yea rs, you've gone beyond o u r  

expected work expectancy a n d  there i s n't m a ny new t h ings that  pop up for us  e a c h  yea r. I feel that once y o u  start hitting 15-16 y e a  r s  o f  conti nued work i n  t h e  profe s s i on, no brea ks 
in betwee n  so that cont i n u i ng ed was t a ke n  each yea r, we s h o u l d  c h a nge the education requirement of a n  LMT to what is requi red of our biggest m a s s a ge affi l i at i on, the AMTA, 48  

hours every 4 yea rs . Now, I would l i ke to s a y, cha nge it t o  6 hours a yea r, but, I t h i n k  w e  should at l e a s t  kee p  it within  nat ional  sta ndards .  

Ga i l, p lease give my a pol ogies to t h e  State Boa rd a s  I know we typ i c a l l y  use to have a representat ive from the AMT A-ND Cha pter at  the meet ings a nd I do not know i f a nyone pla ns to >k attend yet a ga
.
in ,  but the rea s o n  I h a ve not sta rted atte n d i ng the 

.
meetin

.
gs myself  i s  beca use I h a ve been the breadwi n n e r  of my fa m i ly for the l a st 2 yea rs while my h u s b a nd works 

t h rough some issues  a n d  I ca n not a fford to t a ke m a ny d a ys off, Fri d a y  b e i ng one of my best days of work. Als o, as we a re p l a n n ing our Fa l l  Works h op, we were interested in u s i ng 
l o c a l  people to kee p  our costs down, but the people we a re thi nking of a s ki ng certa inly do not hold nat iona l  cert ifi cation #'s .  Are we a bl e  to h i re a nd h a ve people s pe a k  that do not 

have NCBTMB certifications? Anothe r  q uestion is, one of the people I woul d  l i ke to a s k  does a 4 hour cours e  on pediatric ma ssage that  dea I s  with severa I d i ffi c u l t  cases such as 

cerebral  p a lsy, a ut ism,  a dhd,  a n d  etc. I be l i eve she has a NCBTMB number, BUT, we wou l d  not h a ve h e r  trave l out here, I woul d  l i ke to do l i ke a web i n a r  where we woul d  h a ve her 

project on a s creen a nd i ntera ct with the c l a ss .  L ike onl ine  school i ng. Is this  a ccepta ble? Seems s i l ly  to t a ke s o  much away from a s pe a ker a n d  spend s o  much money for a 4 hour 

course.  It  i s  ma in ly  lecture.  If  you could l et m e  know, we have a meeting on Monday the 5th a nd w i l l  be sta rt i ng our p l a ns for the works hop then.  

Tha nks much a n d  if you need more i nfo., p lease contact m e  at  400-7841.  

Carla A. 

PS: What is a l l  expected of a person b e i ng on the state board? 

--- · ----· -·- ..... 

From: hands4u@q. com [rrailto: hands4u@q. com] 

nl;129.q uirtz.syiacor .CO!lVzirrtira/h/printmessag e?id=44047 
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Centurylink Webmail 

Fwd: Fw: 2294 bill support of 

From : p berg <lrrtberg@grrail.com> 

Subject: Fwd: Fw: 2294 bill support of 

To: Gail Hovden <hands4u@q.com> 

Centur~nk Webrrai I 

On Thursday, February 12, 2015 2:37 PM, Karla Hoffert <karla hoffert@hotrra~.com> wrote: 

*2 pj34 
hands4u@q.com 

± Font Size : 

Thu, Feb 12, 2015 09:32 PM 

I would like Illy' support of bill 2294 be known that I agree with the proposed changes to this bill, I believe the changes will help to 
support the Massage Profession, now and further in the future. 

Sincerely, 
Karla Hoffert LMT 



Chairman Dever and members of the committee: 
My name is Pat Berg. I am a practicing licensed massage therapist (LMT) and a member of the N D  

State Board o f  Massage. I a m  testifying i n  favor o f  SB2294 which i s  similar to the board's bill 

SB2 085; however, with some major differences. By favoring this bill I am in opposition to the 

official position of the board on this bill. 

Section 2 Amendment: 

Pertains to the structure of the Board of Massage 

The present makeup of this board does not have a majority representation of practicing LMT's. 

With only two fully practicing LMT's sitting on this board and neither one holding office, this 

board does not represent the best interests of our practicing LMT's, nor that of the massage 

therapy industry in this state. The practicing massage therapists are kept "out of the loop" on the 

regular operations of the board, do not have free access to financial information, to l icensing 

decisions, to continuing education decisions, nor any of the regular operations of the board. 

Requests for information are generally ignored. 

This board has used up to one-third of its revenues in a single year in payment to a marketing fi rm 

for a campaign completely unrelated to massage therapy. This board chose to hire an office 

administrator for thousands of dollars more than either of two other viable bids tllat included 

more services. This board overspends in duplication of services. This board is lax in accountability. 

Leadership is floundering and North Dakota LMT's have lost their voice. SB2294 would give this 

board the necessary tools to correct many of these issues. 

Section 3 Amendment: 

Pertaining to inspections and background checks 

Inspections inform the board and therapists about safety and sanitation issues, as well as provide 

an opportunity to impart information to correct or prevent problems should they arise. Along with 

random board inspections, self-inspection forms can be submitted as a requirement for l icensure 

renewal. The self-inspection forms are in-depth and very informative, allowing a therapist to 

understand what is required of them. A board member or hired inspector could do follow-up 

inspections where problems have been detected. 

Provided we can resolve the issues stated above, inspections can be affordable to this board 

should we find it necessary to hire an inspector on occasion. 

Section 4 Amendment: 

Pertains to continuing education units 

1 
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The N D  State Board of Massage and the massage community of this state need to focus on what is 

happening at the national level. As the massage industry evolves and becomes regulated and 

licensure becomes required by more states, the need has arisen for industry standards. Presently, 

41 states require licensure, along with the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico. Of the remaining 

states, two require either state licensure or state certification, two require state certification, and 

five require local certification - three of which currently have pending Ii  censure legislation. The US 

Virgin Islands also require certification under its Department of Health. There is a large variance 

in statute from state to state, making for difficulties in regulation and reciprocity. 

In 2 0 1 1, representatives of seven national professional organizations for massage met to discuss 

the challenges facing the massage industry. This "Coalition of National Massage Therapy 

Organizations" did an in-depth study to identify and address opportunities to advance the 

massage therapy profession. A 266 page Practice Act Blueprint was developed. 

An attachment l ists the organizations and very briefly summarizes their findings and outcomes. 

The report website is listed as well. Please note that the American Massage Therapy Association is 

on this list. Over one-third of massage therapists in ND are members of AMT A. 

In essence, the Coalition is seeking a standardization of education and continuing education 

requirements throughout the nation. It is recommending legislation guidelines to bring a 

cohesiveness to the massage therapy industry. It is the coalition's hope that states now lacking 

regulation and/or licensure utilize their template as a guide, and that states already requiring 

licensure take a fresh look and consider implementing suggested changes to their current 

licensing laws. 

Among its recommendations, the Coalition is raising the bar on the quality of the massage therapy 

student by requiring a higher standard of entry level education. It is recommending 625 industry 

entry-level hours required to graduate from an accredited school. Most states currently require 

500 hours. North Dakota requires 750. The Coalition is recommending classroom hours for 

modality specialization rather than becoming certified at a weekend workshops. Focus wil l  shift 

away from yearly required ceu's to maintaining core competencies, with a recommendation of 6 

ceu hours per year. M ost states currently require 24 hours every two years. North Dakota requires 

32 hours every two years. 

Because of these national recommendations and because ND requires much higher ceu hours than 

any other state, ND would do well to lower the ceu requirements to allow voluntary compliance 

within these guidelines. To keep ourselves isolated from the majority creates difficulty for anyone 

moving into N D  who wishes to practice massage therapy. It  gives us an unapproachability and 

does not advocate the growth of the massage community in North Dakota. 

I thank you for your time today . 

2 
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Coalition of National Massage Therapy Organizations: 

• Alliance for Massage Therapy Education 

• American Massage Therapy Association 

• Associated Bodywork and Massage Professionals 

• The Commission on Massage Therapy Accreditation 

• The Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards 

• The Massage Therapy Foundation 

• The National Certification Board for Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork 

Findings: 

• Inconsistency in quality, depth, quantity and focus of entry-level massage therapy 
education skills and knowledge 

• No national standards for massage teachers 

• Lack of Ii censure portability 

Outcome: 

• Agreed upon core elements of entry-level massage therapy instructional programs 

• Developed the Entry-Level Analysis Project (ELAP), a 266 page report outlining an Entry­
Level Massage Education Blueprint consisting ofresearch-informed conclusions in 
classroom instruction, curriculum development, instructional design, and assessment 
expertise. 

• Shifting the focus of licensure renewal requirements from requiring continuing education 
hours to maintaining core competencies 

The complete report can be found at http://www.elapmassage.org/final report.php 

3 
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Steve Olson 

2808 Maple Street N.  

Fargo, ND 5 8 1 02 
70 1 .293 .9482 
District 44 

To: Senate Government and Veterans Affair  Committee 

Senator Dick Dever, Chairman; Senator Nicole Poolman, Vice 

Chairman; Senators Dwight Cook, Kyle R. Davison, Tim Flakol l ,  

Richard Marcel lais, and Carolyn Nelson, Legislative Members 

Section 2 Amendment. 

I strongly s upport the changes in com position of the Board of Massage 

to fou r  p racticing massage thera pists and one consu mer member. I 
agree that the consumer member should not hold a boa rd office. I do 

not believe that consu mer protections will be com prom ised by having 

one rather than two mem bers. 

I su pport language that wil l  lead to b roader rep resentation of l icensees 

on the Boa rd of Massage. I suggest adding an additional l i m iting clause 

that restricts the n u m ber of America n Massage Therapy Association 

(AMTA) mem bers that can serve on a board. 

Section 4 Amend ment. 

I appreciate the proposed exem ption from the continu ing ed ucation 

req u i rement for massage practitioners l icensed for 1 5  consecutive yea rs. 

This wil l  benefit me since I have been practicing for 30. However, I 
don't think that the Board of Massage needs to be involved with this 

aspect of the massage industry and recom mend that all CEU 

req u i rements be el iminated. 

I do not su p port mandating 3 CEUs on Eth ics . 



02/13/2015 

__ Cha irman a n d  mem bers of the co m mittee, my name is T i lman J o nes from 

Pa lermo N D. I have practiced massage i n  ND s i nce 2003. I a m  aga i nst Sen ate B i l l  

2294 because o f  Section 43-25-09 item 3 su bsection d on page 4 o f  t h e  b i l l .  

Th is su bsection d states a massage therapist w h o  h a s  practiced massage fo r 1 5  
consecutive yea rs q u a l ifies for l icense renewal without a d d it iona l  education 

req u i red.  

I feel  conti nued ed ucation is more than j u st a chance to learn someth i ng new.  The 

cha l lenge of learn ing someth i ng new can often times sti m u l ate better 

u n dersta nd ing of existing knowledge. It a lso is a cha nce to refresh our  outl ook on 

the profess ion by networking with our  peers . It is very i m porta nt to have cu rrent 

i nformation a n d  tec h n iques to provide the best possible massage thera py. 

I know of no profession that tel ls its practitioners "Ok you now know enough" . 

To sto p learn i ng after 15 yea rs of practice means we become stagna nt.  

I bel ieve passi ng SB 2 294 as is wou l d  be the begin n i ng of the end of q u a l ity 

ma ssage in  North Dakota . 

I ask you to a mend SB 2294 by stri k ing Section 43-25-09 item 3 su bsection d .  

Tha n k  you 

Ti l ma n  J o nes 
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Good mor ning .  I am h er e  today to sp eak in opposition to proposed SB2294. 

My name is Jon S immons. I am th e curr ent chair of th e ND Boar d of Massag e. I hav e  
serv ed on th e boar d i n  some capacity sinc e lat e  in 2010. I am a consu mer memb er. My 

fi el d  is th e f inancial serv ic es indu stry. 

Proposed SB 2294 al low s for cri mi nal backg rou nd ch eck s to b e  r equir ed. Th is 
component i s  important but alr eady contained in SB 2185 .  SB 2085 is l eg islation r elat ed 
to th e massag e th erapy fi el d  that was dev elop ed by a committ ee of massag e th erap ist s, 
boar d memb er s, and educator s i n  lat e  su mmer. Th e committ ees r eport was pr esent ed 

to th e boar d, debat ed, and vot ed on. Th e proposed bi l l  was th en su b mitt ed for thi s 
l eg islat iv e session. It passed through committ ee with a u nani mou s vot e. It passed 
through th e senat e w ith a u nanimou s vot e. 

Today SB 2294 cal l s for th e chang e  in th e composit ion of th e boar d. Chang ing th e 
boar d composit ion in thi s manner coul d work against th e v ery r eason th e boar d exi st s, 
consu mer prot ection. Th e pr imary rol e of th e l ic ensing boar d is consu mer prot ection. 
L ic ensur e of massag e th erap ist s, di scipli nary actions, inv est igations, and l egal action 
ar e al l way s th e boar d fulf il l s it s rol e to prot ect th e consu mer. It i s  b enefic ial to hav e  
div er se backgrou nds on a boar d. In fact, y ear s ago it was th e l eg islativ e body of ND 

that mandat ed th e boar d composit ion chang e from a total of 3 massag e th erapi st to 3 
massag e th erapi st s  and 2 consu mer memb er s. M innesota is curr ently worki ng on 
r egu lat ing massag e th erapy in a similar fashion and has curr ently proposed a 5 memb er 
boar d w ith th e same spl it that w e  curr ently hav e. Th e dec isions at th e boar d l ev el ar e 
many t ime those of eth ic s, enforc ement, and admi nistrat ion. Th ese dec isions do not 
nec essitat e a backgrou nd i n  massag e th erapy. In my y ear s on th e boar d I can r ecal l  

one issu e that r eq u ir ed a high er l ev el of t ech nical u nder standing to b e  abl e to vot e. In 
th e same way you hav e  al l b een el ect ed to you r  positions, you do not need to b e  exp ert s 
i n  each f iel d  to mak e dec isions on b ehalf of your const itu ent s. Th e consu mer memb er s  
hol d a vital rol e ju st as you hol d v ital but diff er ing rol es. 

Th is b il l  obl igat es th e boar d to p erfor m insp ections of ev ery facil ity ev ery y ear. Thi s 
wou l d b e  an onerou s law. It woul d consu me most most if not al l of th e ent ir e annual 
r ev enu e  of th e boar d. How ev er, I woul d point out that th e boar d has th e ab il ity to dec ide 
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to i nsp ec t ev ery faci l i ty ev ery y ear under c urr ent law. Changi ng th e law i n  th i s  r egar d 
woul d forc e th i s  obl igation for al l ti me wi thout r egar d  to fi scal i ssues and logi stic s. 

Proposed SB2294 woul d el i mi nate th e need for conti nui ng education for th erapi sts who 
meet a 15 y ear thr eshol d. Many of th e oth er s hav e  spok en to th i s  or wi l l  sp eak to th i s  
b ut hav e  two poi nts to mak e i n  thi s  r egar d. Th e fi r st i s  that th e boar d' s pri mary 

r esponsi b i l i ty i n  consumer protec tion. Th e boar d deal s i n  cases wh er e  th erapi sts 
seriously i nj ur e  th eir cl i ents. Th ese i nj uri es can i mpac t th e consumer for w eek s, 
month s, and y ear s of th eir l iv es. Whil e conti nui ng education wi l l  not pr ev ent al l i nj ury 

from happ eni ng , i t  wi l l  provi de assuranc es that w e  ar e hol di ng th e high standar d i n  
accor danc e wi th our mandate. A s  a boar d w e  woul d hol d a l ev el of r esponsi b i l i ty if a 

th erapi st i nj ur ed a cl i ent due to lack of ongoi ng trai ni ng . Thi s i s  why w e  voted thi s  
provi sion dow n i n  our boar d di sc ussions. U nfor tunately th i s  r esponsi b i l i ty now lay s  wi th 
thi s  commi ttee. Many of th e proponents of th i s  b i l l  hav e  serv ed as massag e th erapi sts 

for a decade or mor e. Th ei r  dedication to th e fi el d  i s  unq uestioned and I thank s th em 
for th eir servi c e. How ev er th e law s  r elated to massag e th erapy ar e not i n  plac e  to serv e 
th e massag e th erapi sts. Th e second poi nt i s  that clauses such as thi s  shoul d r ei nforc e 
th e val ue c urr ent boar d composi tion. If chang ed to a 4 to 1 b l end from massag e 
th erapi sts to consumer memb er s  i t  coul d throw off th e ch eck s and balanc es and r un th e 
ri sk of b ecomi ng a self- servi ng enti ty. 

Thi s b i l l  declar es i tself an emerg ency forci ng di r ec t  ac tion by th e Offic e of th e Gov er nor. 
Tak en as i t  i s  wri tten th e Offic e of th e Gov er nor woul d b e  obl igated to el i mi nate two of of 
th e c urr ent memb er s  of th e boar d due to th e cri teria p ut i n  plac e  r eg ulati ng who may 
serv e on th e boar d. I hav e  r ec eiv ed no contac t wi th q uestions or conc er n  from those 
that k eep th e boar d staff ed at th e Gov er nor' s offic e. My poi nt i s  th e gov er nor has tool s 
to addr ess i ssues at th e boar d l ev el if deemed nec essary. Th e gov er nor can si mply 
r eplac e  us. My ter m  i s  potential ly comi ng to an end i n  th e comi ng month s due to th e 
ter m  l i mi ts I was i nstr umental i n  dev elopi ng and passi ng a r ec ent l eg i slativ e session. 

Thi s woul d l eav e th e two most j unior boar d memb er s  to conti nue th e work of hol di ng th e 
h igh standar ds w e  hav e  work ed so har d  to mai ntai n. 

In concl usion, as a boar d w e  though tf ul ly consi der ed each of th ese ar eas wh en w e  
constr uc ted and approv ed our proposed b i l l .  W e  hav e  broad- based suppor t for S B  
2285.  Wi th that i n  mi nd I woul d urg e th e commi ttee to vote agai nst S B2294. I am 
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happy to answ er any and all qu es tions at th is ti me. 

R esp ec tfu l ly  

Jon S immons 
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North Dakota Board of Massage 
Attn: Jon Simmons 
P.O. Box 2 1 8  
Beach, ND 5862 1 

January 29, 20 1 5  

Re: Senate Bill 2294 & 2085 

F S M T B  
F E D E R AT I O N  O F  S TAT E 
M A S S A G E  T H E R A P Y B O A R D S  

Dear Chairman Simmons and Board Members: 

The Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards (FSMTB) appreciates the board's  invitation to 
assist you by offering formal opinion on SB 2294 and SB 2085. The mission of the FSMTB is to 
support our 4 1  member boards, including North Dakota, in their work to ensure that the practice 
of massage therapy is provided to the public in a safe and effective manner. FSMTB serves the 
regulatory community and provides benefit from the knowledge gained by combining individual 
state resources into a larger Federation, the FSMTB . 

Based on this knowledge gained and the FSMTB ' s  mission to support our member boards, 
FSMTB supports the board's  decisions to support SB 2085 and oppose SB 2294. This opinion 
has been reached following examination of the bill, FSMTB ' s  comprehensive knowledge of 
known best practices, and our mission to support our member boards. There are three main areas 
that provide concern in SB 2294 that we believe SB 2085 adequately addresses. 

1 .  Structure of the Board: FSMTB supports the structure of the board as proposed in SB 2085. 
Consumer members offer an invaluable and unique perspective that contribute to the 
regulation of massage therapy in North Dakota. SB 2085 provides an adequate and fair 
balance of consumer and practitioner input into regulating the profession. 

2.  Continuing Education: The evolution of professional changes and best practices that arise 
within the industry require a continuance of education throughout a practitioner's career. The 
FSMTB believes these such continuing education offerings are consequently needed beyond 
a practitioner' s  initial 1 5  years. SB 2085 provides for this continued educational 
enhancement over a practitioner' s career. 

3 .  Inspections: Under the language proposed i n  S B  2085, inspections are able to b e  performed. 
The lack of a mandate in SB 2085 does not preclude the option from being exercised. The 

10801 Mastin Blvd.  I Su ite 420 I Overland Park I KS 66210 I P 9 1 3 .681 .0380 I F  9 1 3 .681 .0391  
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board should have at its discretion the ability to make decisions when inspection is most 

appropriate. 

4. We appreciate the opportunity to be available to you to discuss the issues salient to the two 

legislative initiatives on your board conference cal l ,  yesterday and support your board's  

position on the aforementioned bills.  

FSMTB's  miss ion i s  always to support our member boards i n  their efforts to ensure the practice 

of massage therapy is provided to the public in a safe and effective manner. FSMTB agrees that 

SB 2085 maintains the level of public protection expected by the FSMTB. Again, FSMTB 

appreciates the opportunity to provide a formal opinion. If you have further questions, please 

direct them to either myself, Sally Hacking, or Brock Ingmire at FSMTB. 

S incerely, 

Sally Hacking 

Director of Governn1ent Relations 

(p) 727-686-0966 
(e) shacking@fsmtb.org 

Brock Ingmire 

Government Relations Specialist 

(p) 9 1 3-68 1 -0380 
( e) bingmire@fsmtb.org 
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Senate B i l l  No. 2294 

Wendy McGin ley, LMT and Vice Pres ident, N D  Board of Massage 

February 13, 2015 

:#1 P3 3 

Good morn i ng Chai rman Dever and members of the Government and Veterans Affai rs 

Committee. My name is Wendy McGin ley and I am the Vice President of the N D  Board of 

M assage.  I am a l i censed massage therapist, a l icensed physical therapist assistant and 

the Prog ram Coord i nator and I nstructor for the massage therapy program at Wi l l iston 

State Col lege.  I am here to explai n why the N D  Board of Massage stands i n  opposit ion of 

Senate B i l l  No. 2294. 

Section 2 - U nder  #la - The Board of Massage does not support chang ing  Board 

membersh ip  to 4 LMTs and 1 consu mer member. There was a legis lative mandate a 

n u m ber of years ago that put 2 consumer members on the Board . The Board is i n  p lace 

to p rotect the pub l ic  and by removing the voice of a consumer member it wou ld  do j ust 

the opposite; therefore, g iv ing the consumer a l im ited voice on the Board . 

U nder #lb - The Board of Massage does not support the l i sted l im itat ions p laced on who 

cou ld qual ify fo r the consumer member posit ion .  The Board has asked for i n put and 

based decis ions made by the suggestions from those who hold other  healthcare l i censes 

that have been or  who are cu rrently on the Board. S i nce the mandate to have consu mer 

members on  the Board we have had a physical therapist, educator and RNs on the Board 

and we cu rrently have a physical therapist ass istant, educator and ch i ropractor on the 

Board . Those ho ld ing  any other  healthcare l icense could not be considered for the 

consumer member posit ion .  

Sect ion 3 - U nder #2 - The Board of Massage does not support chang ing the word "may" 

to "shal l "  u nder  i nspections of massage establ ishments. Th is wou ld  requ i re the Board to 

have al l therapists/estab l ishments i nspected each year. There are currently over 700 

l i censed massage therapists i n  N D  and th is wou ld  be a very d ifficu l t  task. The Board is  

req u i red to do i nspections and we adm in istratively requ i re at least 4 inspections i n  each 

quadrant of the state. We cou ld change the number of requ i red i nspections i nternal ly, or 

ad m in istratively, and therefore if not able to i nspect al l  estab l ishments sti l l  be in 

• compl iance with our  law. 



Sect ion 4 - Under  #3d - The Board of Massage does not ag ree with e l im i nat ing conti n u i ng 

education req u i rements for l icensure if a therapist has been l icensed and practic ing  for a 

m i n i m u m  of 15 consecutive years. Massage therapists want to be cons idered 

profess ional and to be profess ional you should always be look ing for ways to i m prove 

you r  techn iques, better serve you r  c l ients and to not become complacent. I personal ly do  

not know of  any other  profess ion that e l im inates conti nu i ng education after a certai n  

nu m ber of years i n  a profess ion .  

Al l  other  sect ion changes are s im i lar to or  the same as what the N D  Board of  Massage 

i ntroduced in Senate B i l l  No. 2085 and heard on January 12"' by the I ndustry, Bus i ness and 

Labor Committee where it received a 7-0 Do Pass vote and heard by the fu l l  Senate on 

January 14� and received a u nanimous vote of 43-0. 

I wou ld  l i ke to thank you for you r  ti me and I wou ld be happy to answer any questions you 

may have for me at th is t ime.  

• 

• 

• 



MT Board Members - as of November 2014 

State #of Members LMTs Public Professional/Other 

Alabama 6 5 1 

Arizona 5 3 2 

Arkansas 7 6 1 

California 19 

Connecticut 5 Dept of Public Health 

Delaware 7 4 3 

Georgia 5 4 1 

Hawaii 5 3 2 

Idaho 5 4 1 

Illinois 7 6 1 

Indiana 4 2 2 1 MT with 1 MT vacancy 

Iowa 7 4 3 

Kentucky 7 5 (1 must own MT 2 

school 

Louisiana 7 5 1 1 Physician 

Maryland 11 6 Chiras; 3 LMT 2 

Massachusetts 7 5? 2? 2 vacancies 

Michigan 11 7 4 

Mississippi 6 4 1 1 Physician 

Missouri 7 6 - 1 is educator 1 

Montana 5 3 1 1 Health Care Provider 

Nebraska 4 3 1 

Nevada 7 6 (divided by 1 nonvoting advisory member 

counties) 

New Hampshire 3 3 0 

New Jersey 6 1 Professional 

New Mexico 5 3 2 

New York 7 4 3 Physicians 

North Carolina 7 5 1 1 Physician 

North Dakota 5 3 2 

Ohio 7 7 2 Independent, 2 Educators, 2 

at-large, 1 prof assoc member 

Oregon 7 4 3 (1 is a 

health 

member) 

Pennsylvania 6 2 

Rhode Island Not the correct link 



South Carolina 5 4 1 vacancy 

South Dakota 5 4 1 

Tennessee 7 5 2 

Texas Advisory cmte list 

Utah 5 3 1 1 vacancy 

Virginia 5 4 - 1 is faculty 1 Under board of nursing 

Washington 5 4 1 

Washington DC 4 Under dept of health -

West Virgini a 5 3 1 1 physic ian 

Wisconsin 7 6 (2 facu lty) 1 3 vacancies 

14 Boards have 5 members 

5 Boards have 4 LMTs and 1 Consumer 

7 Boards have 3 LMTs and 2 Consumers 

At least 4 Boards state that at least one LMT must be an educator/own a school 

At least 8 Boards have a position filled by a physician or healthcare provider 



• • 
North Dakota Boards and Commissions 

Memberships that include Public/Consumer Member 

As of February 8, 2015 

Board/Commission Total# of Members # Professional #Public Additional Info 

Addiction Counseling 7 5 LAC (1 private pract) 2 
Examiners 

Athletic Trainers 5 3 ATCs 1 1 physician 

Barber Examiners 3 3 0 
Chiropractic Examiners 6 3 2 1 public is physician 
Clinical Laboratory Pract ice 7 1 CLS, 1 lab tech, 1 admin 2 1 physician 

non-physican lab director 

• 

Cosmetology 5 3 States 3 most be cosmetologists, doesn' t 
state who other 2 are 

Dental Examiners 7 5 dentists, 1 hygienist 1 
Hearing Aid Specia lists 10 4 hearing aid specialists, 1 2 

otolaryngologist, 3 
audiologists 

Massage 5 3 2 
Med ical Examiners 13 1 PA-C, 9 MDs, 1 DO 2 
Nursing 9 5 RNs, 1 APRN, 2 LPNs 1 
Occupational Therapy Practice 5 3 OTs, 1 OTA 1 

Physical Therapy 6 3 PTs, 1 2 physicians 

Social Work Examiners 6 2 LSWs, 1 LCSW, 1 indep 2 
clinical social worker 

_....... ................ _._. __________________ ~~~ 



North Dakota Bill Actions: SB 2085 

• 
North Dakota Legislative Branch 
Bill Actions for SB 2085 

Send me to Bill No. (9999) : 

HJ=House Journal; SJ=Senate Journal 

Introduced by Industry, Business and Labor 

(At the request of the North Dakota Board of Massage) 

~I Ptj2 
Page 1 of 1 

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 12- 60-24 and section 43- 25- 08.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to criminal history record checks for massage therapists; and to amend and reenact sections 43- 25- 05, 43- 25- 09, 43- 25-10, 43 - 25- 14, and 43- 25- 18 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to massage therapist licensure. 

Date Chamber Meeting Description Journal 

01/06 Senate Introduced, firs t reading , referred Industry , Business and Labor Committee SJ 30 

01 /12 Senate Committee Hearing 10:45 

01 /13 Senate Reported back, do pass, place on calendar 7 O O SJ 84 

01/14 Senate Second reading , passed , yeas 43 nays o SJ 91 

01 /20 House Received from Senate HJ 186 

Back to top 
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McGinley, Wendy 

A,m· 
�nt: 

To: Subject: 

FYI 

Karen Wojahn < k_wojahn@yahoo.com> 
Wednesday, February 04, 2015  1 1:21 AM 
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Jon S immons; Todd Sa lwey; Edward E. Erickson; McGinley, Wendy 
Fw: AMT A Chapter News Alert 

On Tuesday, February 3, 201 5 1 0 :37 P M ,  AMTA North Dakota Chapter <hansonv@msn . com> wrote : 

• 

• 
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PEACE GARDEN STAT 
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-:tt-1 P] t \ 
-----

r (Contact First Name), 

The AMTA-North Dakota Chapter would like to inform you that bill 2085 has been presented before 
the Legislature concerning changes to our state law that have been approved by our North Dakota 
State Board. This bill has currently been approved in the Senate and is on its way to the House. A 
second bill, 2294, has now been presented before the Legislature, one that contains changes in the 
law that were not approved by the North Dakota State Board along with the changes that were 
previously presented and approved in the Senate. The National AMTA and the AMTA-North Dakota 
Chapter feel these additional changes proposed may be too vague in nature and may cause 
financial strain to the State Board's budget and possible loss of protection to our consumers. Your 
IMMEDIATE ACTION is asked. A link below has been provided for you to access these 2 bills. You 
can write a letter to your Senators, link below, and you can also contact your State Board, 
http:Jlwww.ndboardofmassage.com/, with further questions about bill 2294. 

Yours in Health, 

Carla Anderson 
AMTA-ND Chapter President 

T your representative, click below: 

http://www.legis.nd.gov/assemblv/64-2015/members/ 

To see the status of the bills, click below: 

http://www.legis.nd.gov/lcn/council/billtracking/mainmenu.htm 

Senate Bill 2085 

SB 2085: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 
12-60-24 and section 43-25-08.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
criminal history record checks for massage therapists ; and to amend and reenact 
sections 43-25-05, 43-25-09, 43-25-10, 43-25-14, and 43-25-18 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to massage therapist licensure. 

Click the link below to see the full version of the proposed bil l. 

http://www.legis.nd.gov/assembly/64-2015/documents/15-8037-01 OOO.pdf?20150202195659 

Senate Bill 2294 
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SB 2294: A BILL for an Act to create and enact subd ivision nn of subsection 2 of section 
12-60-24 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to criminal history record 
checks; to amend and reenact sections 43-25-05, 43-25-05.1, and 43-25-09, 
subsections 2 and 3 of section 43-25-10, section 43-25-14, and subsection 1 of 
section 43-25-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the governance of 
the board of massage and the regulation of massage therapists; to provide a 
penalty; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency. 

Click the link below to see the full version of the proposed bill. 

• 

http://www.legis.nd.gov/assembly/64-2015/documents/15-0913-01 OOO.pdf?20150202195843 

Proposed Legislative Changes 

The AMT A-ND Board members feel that Senate Bill 2085 more closely aligns with the interests and future vision of massage 
therapists. We feel Senate Bill 2294 may contain vague wording that could eventually prove harmful to our consumers. Furthe 
the conflict between the two bills and how bill 2294 is being presented, could negatively impact both the ND State 
Massage Board, AMTA-ND members, and all ND massage LMT's as a whole. 

We ask that each therapist contact your senators to let them know how you feel about bill 2294. 

Please click the link below to go to the Administrative codes for the ND Massage Board. 

http://www.legis.nd.gov/information/acdata/html/Title49.html 

Forward this email 

This email was sent to k_wojahn @yahoo.com by hansonv@msn.com I 
Update Profile/Email Address I Rapid removal with SafeUnsubscribe™ I Privacy Policy . 

., - r " tt« Email ~ , ' 
CoostantCootod" 

AMTA North Dakota Chapter I Hansonv@msn.com I Fargo I ND I 58103 
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• My name is Robert Benson from Wi l l iston, ND.  I am writing to encourage you to vote to do not pass SB 

2294. 

• 

• 

I have nearly 40 years of experience in healthcare and am currently l icensed in ND as a massage 

thera pist and  a physica l therapist. I have served, in executive positions for Chapters of the America n 

M assage Therapy Association and America n Physica l Therapy Association .  I have previously served two 

terms on the ND Board of Massage hold ing positions as VP and interim President. 

I am cu rrently employed in academia by Wi l l iston State Col lege as  the Chair of the Depa rtment of Health 

& Wel lness. WSC is one of the few schools to offer massage therapy ed ucation in the State . The views I 

express here a re not those of the Co l lege or the North Da kota Un iversity System and I do not represent 

them.  These are my own persona l  views on this b i l l .  

The N D  Board of Massage held a series of open forums which were attending by officers and members 

of the professional  association and pub l ic to provide i nput as to what changes were needed to the 

Massage Practice Act. SB2085 was d rafted and unan imously approved by the senate and conta ined the 

a pproved cha nges. As fa r as I know, no add it ional  pub l ic forums were held to further d iscuss these 

add it ional  proposed cha nges i nc luded in SB2294. Here are two examples that I feel make this proposed 

law unaccepta ble.  

Rega rd i ng section 43-25-05.1 Board of Massage - Terms: 

This b i l l  would cha nge the Board membership and a pply restrictive stipu lations on whom the 

Governor could a ppoint. There is no evidence to wa rra nt or support a need for a cha nge. I am 

part icularly concerned a bout red ucing publ ic member representation on the Board and their  ab i l ity to 

hold office . How is the Massage Boa rd goi ng to know what the publ ic needs and issues a re, if they don't 

have actively invo lved publ ic members? I n  addit ion there are terms presented in this section such as  

"Actively Practiced", "Affi l iated", "Fiduciary Ob l igation" and "F ina ncial  I nterest", but  no defin it ion as to 

what these terms mea n .  Does actively practiced mean that you have earned i ncome from performing 

massage? How m uch i ncome? Does not being affi l iated with a massage school mean you have never 

received a ny services there or  never em ployed there? I don't feel it is a ppropriate to not have 

defi n it ions included as part of the b i l l .  If the Governor feels Boa rd composition is a n  issue, he a l ready 

has the a uthority to control Board membership.  With its cu rrent com posit ion of 3 massage therapists 

a nd 2 publ ic  members, the massage therapists sti l l  have a voting majority. 

Rega rd ing 43-25-09.3.d Continuing education 

Ed ucation is the cornerstone for com petent practice in a ny fie ld .  I am very concerned a bout 

a l lowing any massage thera pist, no matter how long they have been in  the field, to no longer fulfi l l  

cont inu ing ed ucation .  The a rgu ment that t h e  courses become redunda nt, means t h e  person is not 

seeking out the proper co urses. Many ind ivid uals will attend a course just because it is being held near  

to their  home, not beca use of the topic. I u ndersta nd the financia l  end of th ings and it does cost money. 

On the other hand, I entered a profession knowing I have a n  obl igation to my cl ients. Spending money 

to enha nce ski l ls is part of a ny profession.  SB2085 a l ready proposes to reduce the number of cont inu ing 

ed ucation hours. I n  addit ion ove r half  of these hours cou ld be ach ieved through onl ine c lasses and CPR 

renewal ,  which ca n ease the financia l  burden . 

Tha nk  you for your t ime and thoughtful consideration to this matter. 
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FOCUS ON 
Developed by Alliance for Continuing Education 

in the Health Professions 

The Benefit of Continuing Education (CE) to 
Patients and the Public 

Every day, media outlets report research fin d ings a bout o ptima l hea lth prevention, d iagnosis a n d  treatment methods. 

Medica l discoveries offer hope to patients and the publ ic for improved health care outcomes. However, despite the 

wea lth of existing knowledge a n d  the continuous advances in  medicine, ga ps persist between optim a l  ca re and the care 

that is provided in  many health ca re settings. 1' 2 Continuing Education (CE) for hea lthcare providers helps bridge these 

ga ps. 

What is CE? 
After completi ng the traditiona l education a n d  tra in ing pathway for a health care profession, health care providers 

engage in  CE activities to stay u p-to-date a n d  ra pidly adopt proven medical advances. 

Before creating a CE activity, educators and c l inicia ns work together to identify gaps in  patient care a n d  outcomes, 

determine why these gaps exist, then design education that wi l l  address the causes of the ga ps. By sifting th rough 

mountains of existing and emerging data, and then presenting educational  content based u pon strong scientific evidence, 

CE p rofessiona ls i m prove c l in ica l practice, patient care and outcomes. 

Why is CE important to health care and patient outcomes? 
CE has been proven effective at improving patient outcomes a n d  saving lives.3,4 The I n stitute for Healthca re 

I m p rovement reports that "a key factor in closing the ga p between best practice a n d  common practice is the a bi lity of 

health ca re providers a n d  their orga n izations to ra pidly spread in novations a n d  new ideas."5 CE is a vehicle for spreading 

best practices a bout how to attai n  improved outcomes. 

It takes an average of 17 years for new research submitted for publ ication to be broadly accepted in  c l inica l  practice.6 The 

strength of supporting scientific evidence, the avai labi l ity and cost of new a n d  a lternative thera pies, the i m pact of laws 

a n d  regulations, a n d  the need for tra in ing must a l l  be taken into consideration before medical a dvances become common 

practice. CE accelerates th is process by fostering the presentation of data that have been exam ined, evaluated a n d  

synthesized for the busy practitioner. 

For exa mple, since the yea r 2000, deaths from coronary a rtery disease have bee n reduced by nea rly 40%.7 This reduction 

is due to n u merous advances: new drugs (such as the statins that lower cholesterol levels); new tech nologies (such as 

drug-eluting stents that keep corona ry a rteries free of plaque), improved processes (such as the new protocols for heart 

attacks that result in faster, more effective treatment); a n d  a greater e mphasis on prevention (by control l ing blood 

pressure, weight, a n d  cholesterol levels) .  All of these a dva nces were communicated by a network of orga n izations 

providing CE to hea lth care p rofessiona ls  such a s  physicians, physicia n assista nts, n u rses, n u rse practitioners, 

technologists and others. 

Hea lth care professionals  com mitted to l ifelong lea rning take adva ntage of CE opportunities provided at national a n d  

loca l meetings, local hospita ls a n d  medical centers, a n d  through on l ine, print and other forms o f  media . State l icensure 

boards, certification boards, a n d  other hea lth ca re orga nizations u ndersta nd the i m portant of CE in the del ivery of 

qua lity ca re a n d  encourage, or sometimes require, regu lar  participation in CE activities. 

Call to Action 
The q u a l ity of i ndividual  patient care a n d  genera l publ ic hea lth a re improved by the implementation of evidence-based 

medicine. CE ensures that the best evidence is known, understood and practiced by hea lth care professionals  . 

Support qual ity patient care - Support CE. 
l l A l l i a n c e  f o r  C E  i n  t h e  H e a l t h  P r o f e s s i o n s  

• 
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Effective Date 
5/11/2010 

NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

172 NAC 82 

82-004 INSPECTIONS: All massage therapy establishments will receive an initial and 
thereafter, a routine inspection . The criteria for inspection required by the Board and 
Department is set forth below: 

1. Initial Self-Evaluation Inspection: Under 172 NAC 82-003.01, the applicant 
must conduct a self-evaluation inspection prior to the proposed opening date of 
the establishment. 

2. Initial On-Site Inspection: The Board and/or Department will conduct an on-site 
inspection within 90 days following issuance of an initial establishment license. 
The inspections are limited to ascertaining whether: 

a. All massage therapists working on the premises are properly licensed; 
b. The equipment and sanitation requirements in 172 NAC 82-004 are met; 
c. The physical structure requirements in 172 NAC 82-004 are met; and 
d. The duties of the massage therapist and manager and/or owner in 172 

NAC 82-004 and 82-006 are met. 

3. Routine Inspection: A routine inspection will be conducted to assure compliance 
with 172 NAC 82-004.01 and 82-004.02. The inspection will be conducted by the 
Board and/or Department. 

b. 

a. The inspection will occur at least one time every 4 years . 

The inspection is limited to ascertaining whether: 

(1) All massage therapists working on the premises are properly licensed; 
(2) The equipment and sanitation requirements in 172 NAC 82-004 are met; 
(3) The physical structure requirements in 172 NAC 82-004 are met; and 
(4) The duties of the massage therapist and manager and/or owner in 172 

NAC 82-004 and 82-006 are met. 

82-004.01 Structure. Eauioment. and Sanitation: The massage therapy establishment 
must have the equipment necessary to provide massage therapy. This equipment must 
be clean, well-maintained, and in good repair. 

1. Physical Structure: A massage therapy establishment must have a clearly 
identifiable location ; each massage therapy establishment can be free-standing 
or part of an existing structure. The owner must ensure that the establishment is 
well ventilated and kept in a clean, orderly, and sanitary condition at all times. 

a. 
b. 

c. 

All rooms must have adequate lighting and ventilation; 
Each establishment must have an area that can be screened from public 
view for customers requesting privacy; and 
Each room where massage therapy services are provided must have an 
EPA registered disinfectant that is proven effective against HIV-1, or 
Hepatitis B, or is a Tuberculocidal , and have liquid soap and water or an 
instant sanitizer; 

5 
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36-35-20. Investigation of complaints--lnspections. The 
board shall receive and may investigate any complaint filed 
with the board alleging that any licensed massage therapist 
has violated the requirements of this chapter. The board may 
inspect the place of business of any person with a license 
issued pursuant to this chapter named in a complaint pursuant 
to this section during normal business hours or upon written 
notice. 

Source: SL 2005, ch 206, § 20; SL 2013, ch 184, § 14. 

Chapter 36-35 
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Greetings to the Committee from Brandi Malarkey, licensed massage therapist in ND, 
regarding SENATE BILL NO. 2294 

Contact Information: Brandi Malarkey 
License #989 
3138 Edgewood Dr. N. 
Fargo, ND 58102 
701-429-4849 
kneadabreak@gmail.com 

There are many different issues covered in bill #2294. Some of which I agree with , and 
others which I am very opposed to. To simplify, I have tried to summarize my main 
points as follows. 

43-25-05. Board of massage -Terms. 
1. The governor shall appoint a board of massage, to consist of five members. 
l=hl'ee 
a.Four members of the membeFS of the board must be massage therapists who are 
licensed in this state and actively practiced massage therapy in this state for atleast three 
consecutive years immediately preceding appointment to the board.To remain qualified to 
serve as a massage therapist member of the board, the massage therapist member shall 
continue to actively practice massage therapy during incumbency on the board. The 
governor shall appoint the massage therapist members must be appointed for three yeaFS 
four-year terms, staggered so that the term of one member expires each year. :rwe 
additional membeFS, who may not be 
b. One member of the board must be a consumer member. The governor shall appoint the 
consumer member for a two-year term. The consumer member may not hold an office on 
the board. The consumer member may not: 
(1) Be or ever have been a massage therapists or therapist; 
(2) Be an immediate family membeFS member of a massage therapist 
(3) Be or ever have been an owner of or affiliated with any massage school; 
(4) Be or ever have been a member of any other health care licensing board or 
commission; 
(5) Have a fiduciary obligation to a facility rendering health care services; or 
(6) Have a financial interest in the rendering of health services. 

As a massage therapist who has made a point of attending Board of Massage 
meetings while not serving on the board, I am strongly opposed to many of the changes 
suggested in this section. While I know there is a common thought that as it is a 
massage board , that it should be only massage therapists serving on it, having watched 
the interactions of the board , I feel this is very short sighted. While I do support keeping 
the majority of the board massage therapists-and feel there would be strongly negative 
ramifications if that were not the case-I also feel that both the skills and the 
perspective brought by the consumer members is invaluable. Time and again I have 
seen the questions of the consumer members, and the perspective shared with them, 



change the u nderstanding of an entire issue brought before the board. I feel that this is 
a positive benefit of the consumer members, and I wou ld hate to see that decreased. 

While the proposed changes wou ld sti l l  keep one consumer member, decreasing 
that benefit by half, it also adds several other restrictions to the consumer member, 
which frankly confuse me. Deliberately excluding someone affi l iated with a massage 
school ,  wh ich is again an unique and valuab le perspective, as wel l  as deliberately 
excluding anyone from a health related profession , seems restrictive without purpose. I 
have seen many instances where having a d ifferent health professional on the massage 
board has helped with a fu ller understanding of issues being d iscusses, and do not see 
the value in exclud ing a large pool of professionals from the board-which would 
include chiropractors, nurses, doctors, pharmacists, and an entire host of other North 
Dakota Professionals. In  add ition, the wording change of the "actively practicing 
massage therapy during incumbency on the board" from "l icensed in the state" is too 
vague. I believe that the intent of this passage is to prevent massage therapists from 
serving on the board who are not currently practicing, but sti l l  keeping up  their l icenses. 
While I do not oppose that idea , I do know that the idea of what "actively practicing" 
enta ils varies from person to person. For example, massage therapists that are 
instructors, who work with massage every day, but do not take clients are considered by 
some to be active, and by others to be non-active because the cl ient piece is how they 
define active. 

Returning to the consumer member, there is a clause stating that they should not 
hold an office. I am unclear about the purpose of this clause. The board office positions 
should not be restricted to a profession , but rather to the person on the board who best 
su its the job. It seems foolish , for example, if the consumer member was an accountant, 
to refrain them from being a treasure, or an executive assistant from being a secretary. 
The board votes as a group who should take those positions, and it is completely with in 
their power to ensure the positions go to whomever they l ike, with a majority vote. 

I n  short, I feel the entirety of these changes to be unnecessarily restrictive. The 
purpose of the board is not to practice massage, but to deal with issues that arise 
related to massage. This means th ings l ike l icensing , complaints, legal issues with 
practicing without a license and human trafficking on the rise, and a host of other 
endeavors. I feel a range of skil ls and perspective is beneficial to those tasks, and 
should be d istributed to the members best suited to do them, regard less of profession. 



• 

SECTION 4.AMENDMENT 

Section 43-25-09 of the North Dakota Century Code isamended and reenacted as follows: 
43-25-09. License -Display -Renewal -Renewal fee. 
3.Centinuing Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, continuing education of at least 
thirty t\ve twenty-four continuing education hours, or equivalent college credits, three hours of 
which must be obtained in ethics courses, submitted every two years is a further requirement for 
renewal of the license. The board may accept continuing education attained by remote means. No 
more than t\vel¥e nine hours of a licensee's renewal hours may be by remote means. To qualify 
as continuing education, the remote education must be board-approved for content and 
suitability. 

c.The board may grant an individual waiver based on health issues or other good 
cause the board deems sufficient. 
d. A massage therapist who has been practicing for compensation and licensed for a 
minimum of fifteen consecutive years qualifies for license renewal with no additional 
continuing education required. 

I completely approve of the proposed change from 32 hours of continuing education 
every two years, to 24. As you can see from the chart below, North Dakota requires the 
most continuing education in the entire nation. While the range of requirements across 
the country varies widely from none at all , to our excessive 32, the clearest trend visible 
is 24 or 25 every two years. In the effort to bring the massage therapy profession to a 
level playing field across states, I feel this is an excellent step/change. 

I am mildly opposed to the ethics requirement due to the fact that there are no providers 
within North Dakota who provide ethics classes, however the Federation of Massage 
Therapy Boards found in their survey that they were to be recommended, and due to 
the recent influx of issues the ND Massage Board has had to deal with, I understand 
this change. 

I approve of giving the Board the ability to make individual waivers when necessary. I 
have faith the board would not grant them lightly, and I have seen numerous cases 
where circumstances were not reasonable (and example being the Minot flood). 

On the issue of continuing education after 15 years: As a provider of continuing 
education I should oppose this concept. I actually don't, and think that in many ways 
requiring the continuing education at that point is unnecessary. However, I do have a 
mild objection to the wording, as the "compensation" disturbs me. As a practicing 
massage therapist who is transitioning to more charity work, and less work for financial 
compensation , I know there are various ways to interpret compensation , nor am I clear 
what would be required to document the continuous compensation issue. However, 
overall , I would say therapists practicing for this length of time tend to fall into two 
camps; those who will continue to take continuing education regardless of requirement if 
they feel it is of added value and interest to them, and those who will take it because it 
is required , but et no value from the experience at all. 
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TESTI MONY FOR SB  2294 

FROM CARLA ANDERSON FOR THE AMTA-NORTH DAKOTA CHAPTER 

Lad ies and Gentlemen, 

Thank you for giving me the opportun ity to testify here today. 

My name is Carla Anderson and I have been a Licensed Massage Thera pist in  the state of North Dakota for a lmost 19 

years. I am currently a lso the P resident of the American Massage Therapy Association-Nort h  Dakota Chapter, with our  

National Office being located in  Evanston, I L. 

I come to you today because our  loca l chapter members, myself included, have some concerns over the proposed b i l l  

2294. 

Page 1, l ine 15, section 43-25-05. The reason behind the proposed restructure of the North Dakota Board of Massage is 

the des i re to put more control of the board into Licensed Massage Therap ists hands. Over the past year, I feel I have 

created a good working relationship with the board members by attending al l  the meetings. Therefore, I have witnessed 

how they a re currently functioning. I feel that since this i s  a board created to protect the consumer, it should consist of 

consumer members a long with the LMT's. We do not oppose the board becoming restructured, b ut m aybe it wou ld  

benefit by  enhancing it i nstead.  Therefore, we th ink  it may  be  better for the pub l i c  to  leave the  boa rd as is with 3 

Licensed Massage Therapists and 2 Consumer Members. If the person(s} whom submitted this proposal sti l l  feel they 

wou ld  l i ke the LMT's to have more control, maybe they can bring the proposal back and look at adding 2 Licensed 

Massage Therapists to the board, whom would  then hold 71% of the board's votes rather  than the 60% that they have 

now. 

Page 2, l ine 1 1, #4. The proposed rules that the consumer  member(s) cannot hold a re extensive and we agree on most. 

We wou ld  suggest removing, "ever have been", from proposed rule #4. 

Page 2, l i ne 30, section 43-25-05.1, #2 . It has been suggested that changing the word may to sha l l  wi l l  create a situation 

where the State Board wil l  be requ i red to inspect every establ ishment every yea r. The information on the State Boards 
website ind icates that we currently have 721 LMT's l icensed in  N D. We fee l  this isn't necessary and cou ld  possib ly create 

the State Board's future budget to decl ine to a point that would  requ i re l icensure to be increased aga in  affecting a l l  

LMT's in  the  state . A solution would  be  to  leave it a lone, reword the  sentence or maybe take it o ut of  the  l aw and put i t  

into the Adm i nistrative Ru les. 

Page 4, l ine 15, section 43-25-09, #3d. We do not support any Licensed Massage Thera pist not requ i red to receive 

education. This sentence is too vague and cou ld  create situations from Therapists com ing from other  states and saying 

they qua l ify for this exe m ption and there i s  no proof. Continu ing education standards for our Licensed Massage 

Therapists in North Dakota a re high and they should remain that way. LMT's want to be respected and we want to be 

known as professionals .  Taking our standard s  backwards cou ld  affect how LMT's a re respected and we would have to 

fight harder  to keep our  profession, professiona l .  Accordi ng to the AMTA National Office, there is not one regu lated 

state, out of 45, that offers their  veteran massage therapists an exemption such as this one being proposed.  I can th ink 

of 4 LMT's that  have practiced longer than 15 years, that  have harmed individuals from the publ ic. After that  many years 

of practice and knowing they received continu ing education for each of those years, how many more would  it have been 

if the exem ption had a l ready existed? The pub l ic i s  why this board exists and we m ust keep that in  mind .  Would you 

want to end up in  emergency ga l l  b ladder surgery only to find out after the surgery, the Dr. had cut you wide open to 

take out your  ga l l  b ladder rather than using laparoscopic equ ipment because he/she d idn't need to obtain cont inu ing 

education for the last 20 years? And final ly, my own personal  story. Now that I am going into my 19th year of massage, I 

th ink back on the last 3 years and what I wou ld  not have learned had I of not had to cont inue my education. I can tel l  
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you, the last 3 years has added new modal ities to my private practice, new friends, networking with others, leadershi p  

ab i l it ies, and  new cl ients. 

Therefore, that is why the AMTA members and myself ask that you oppose this b i l l  and we propose that the a uthor(s) 
look at the suggestions further and  possibly resubmit it d uring the next legislative session. 

Tha n k  you 



Opposition to b i l l  2294 

Good morn ing Cha i rman  Dever and members of the Government and Vetera ns Affa i rs Committee.  My 

name is Dr. Todd Sa lwey and I am one of the two consumer members on  the ND State Board of 

Massage. I am here to expla i n  why I am i n  opposition to Senate bi l l  2294. 

Sect ion 2 - The issue of board member background or  com posit ion 

a .  The terms and com position of the board members- the boa rd is currently made u p  of 2 

consumer members and 3 LMTs. A consumer member term is 2 years and  ca n serve u p  

t o  6 consecutive yea rs; a LMT boa rd member term is 3 yea rs a n d  c a n  serve up t o  6 

consecutive years. This was instituted by legislature severa l years ago. I bel ieve the 

consumer members add a va lua ble resou rce and d ifferent perspective on issues that 

have and wil l  continue to arise. Consumer mem bers ca n· add a voice or  reason  when 

needed. 

b.  Other states with five member boa rds a re s imi lar in  com position.  Forty-two other states 

have member  boards. Of the forty-two, fourteen boards a re 5 member boards l ike 

North Dakota . Of the fourteen that have 5 member boards; five boards have 4 LMTs and 

1 publ ic, 7 have 3 LMTs and 2 pub l i c  members ( l i ke N D), one boa rd has no LMTs or  

pub l ic mem bers and  is run by the Dept.  of  Hea lth, one boa rd has 3 LMTs, 1 publ ic  

member and 1 physician .  At least four  of the state boards req u ire at least 1 LMT board 

member  to be a n  educator/own a school .  M u lt ip le boa rds have a position fi l led by a 

physic ian.  

c .  The way b i l l  2294 is structured, a consumer member  would  be restricted if they have 

ever been associated or  currently work at or  own a massage school .  Who better to 

inform and tra in  future LMTs than a board member that knows the laws? 

d .  The b i l l  2294 would restrict a consumer boa rd member from being from a ny health ca re 

a rea fie ld .  The governor has a h istory of appointing doctors, nurses and other healthcare 

professionals and  to re ly on their  expertise to he lp the massage boa rd . This b i l l  wou ld  

e l imi nate that  valua ble input and expertise. The way th is  b i l l  is written, it states that  a 

doctor, nurse or a ny professional  requ i res l icensure is not qua l ified to sit on th is board,  

but a homeless person is.  Does that make a ny sense? 

Sect ion 3 - Changing the language for periodic inspections from "may" to "sha l l" would have negative 

connotations. Using the word "sha l l" wou ld  req u ire the boa rd to an im possib le task. The word "may" 

leaves open the poss ib i l ity of inspecting esta b l ishments as needed. Currently requ i red are 4 inspections 

i n  each q uadra nt.  Our records show that substa ntia l ly more have been inspected each yea r. I n  my 

experience in  performing these inspections, I have received a great response from the LMTs being 

i nspected .  I am a ble to ta lk  to them one on  one and find out and a ny concerns or  q uestions they may 

have whi le ta lk ing d i rectly to a board member. I feel it has left a posit ive mindset knowing they ca n 

contact the board i n  the future and not be afra id to ask q uestions. 



Section 4 - E l im inating contin u ing ed ucation hours a n  LMT who has 15 years of experience would  be a 

mistake. LMTs have the opportun ity to better themse lves and their  profession by taking CE Us. IT is a 

sta ndard of a ny profession to take CE Us on a yearly or biyearly basis. It a l lows exposure to new materia l  

that may affect patient popu lation or  sha rpen current ski l ls. By d iscont inu ing education, it wou ld  a l low 

an LMT to become complacent and routine. There are many areas of massage expertise that can be 

explored.  Cont inu ing education should not be red undant and  the same classes should not be taken yea r 

after year. It is up to the LMT to take some responsib i l ity and find something new to cha l lenge 

themse lves and become better. As the old saying goes "you ca n lead a horse to water, but you ca n't 

make them d ri nk." By req u i ri ng CEUs, I would hope an LMT would  want to find someth i ng that i nterest 

the m .  I ca nnot be su re, but I don't know of a ny profession that e l im inates CEUs after a certa in  amou nt 

of t ime for l ice nsure.  This proposal i n  this b i l l  is nothing more than self-serving for a few i nd ivid uals who 

no longer wish to make CE Us  themse lves. 

All of these issues were brought from com mittee meetings to look at the current law. The comm ittee 

meetings were open to the publ ic  and members of the ATMA were present. These issues were discussed 

at the boa rd a nd com p rised into b i l l  2085. I fee l  this is a power play aga inst the boa rd to ga in control of 

the board in order to make cha nges to law and for a personal  agenda and persona l  ga in .  I am saddened 

by the course of action they have taken and they have d isgraced their  profession and the great state of 

North Dakota . They have wasted the t ime of th is comm ittee for persona l  ga in .  The North Da kota Boa rd 

of Massage was esta bl ished to protect the publ ic  from LMTs taking advantage of people in vu lnerable 

s ituations. I fee l  by moving th is  bi l l  forward, that the massage board and the profession would  be 

wea kened.  
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Dear Government and Veterans Affairs Committee: 
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50 YEARS! 

My name is Maggie Aslakson and I am currently the Director of Operations serving all three 
Josefs School of Hair Design locations. I am writing this letter in regards to my personal 
opposition and the schools opposition for Senate Bill No. 2294. As the Director of Operations, I 
am concerned about the possible detrimental outcomes that would come along with passing 
Senate Bi11 No. 2294. 

I speak on behalf of the school that continuing education is vital to any career, specifically 
massage therapy, and taking away continuing education would be detrimental. With 
advancements in healthcare and treatment it is crucial that a massage therapist be knowledgeable 
at all times. Please consider the ramifications of eliminating continuing education after 1 5  years 
of experience. 

Additionally, Josef's is concerned about the elimination of an education associate with a massage 
school or professional healthcare facility on the Board. This is our opportunity as educators to 
have a voice, to understand cunent issues in the market and be able to ·educate our student's 
appropriately. Eliminating this position would reduce communication between the board and 
current educators, which in our opihion is vital to the future of this profession in No1ih Dakota. 

I 
Lastly, this bill would require the board to inspect all massage establishments. Passing this bill 
would take additional financial resources that does not seem necessary or a responsible way to 
spend funding. 

Altogether, not only do we oppose this bill, but we have been told that the AMT A and FSMTB 
have also released a statement opposing the bill .  

Please feel to contact me with any comments, questions, or concerns. 

627 NP Avenue • Fargo, ND 581 02 • 701 .235.99 1 0  

4501 1 5th Avenue SW • Fargo, N D  581 03 • 701 .478.6292 

201 1 South Washington • Grand forks, ND 58201 • 70 1 . 772.2728 

www.jsohd.com 
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PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO SB 2294 

Page 1, l ine 6 after "application;"  insert "to provide an effective date" 

Page 4 remove l ines 15-17 

Page 6, after l ine 5 insert: 

"SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2015." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Good morning Chairman Keiser and committee members: 

My name is Gail Hovden and I am in favor of SB2294. I am here representing myself, 

but have brought a number of letters of support from many Licensed Massage 
Therapists (LMT's) practicing in North Dakota. I have been a self-employed practicing 

massage therapist for 26 years in Bismarck. I have volunteered my time and services 
over the years with different local organizations two of which are the ND chapter of 
American Massage Therapy Association and the ND State Board of Massage. I have had 
the opportunity to hold office on these boards, and other committees as well. As such, I 
have had the opportunity to speak with numerous LMT's and the public about their 
concerns of the massage industry, regulations, etc. Questions like 'Why is it so difficult 

to get licensed in your state?, Why did the relicensing fee double?, How much longer do 
I have to take CEU's?'. After many hours of listening and discussion, I feel that SB2294 

addresses some of these concerns. 

Page 1: 

Line 15 - The ND massage board is comprised of a five member board, three LMT's and 

two public members. Currently only two members are practicing LMT's. The third LMT is 
not a practicing LMT but a massage teacher and also a physical therapist assistant. 
Having a massage teacher on the board is not only a conflict of interest, but can be an 
income generating venue as well. As a member of the board, a teacher of massage 
reviews applicants' transcripts to see if they qualify for licensure, then can check 
students' transcripts and decide if they then need more hours and set up a teach-out 
plan. There has been an LMT teacher/physical therapist on this board since 2006, 
approving teach-out plans and assisting in proposed changes to ND law regarding class 
requirements. The board's job is not to set up educational plans for individuals to get 
licensed, it is up to the schools to do so. This is another example of inappropriate 
spending by this board. 

Currently, no practicing LMT holds office on this board, and no LMT has held the office 
of president since 2004. The board president is a public member who has at times does 
not posted meeting times until a few days before the meetings are held, or does not 
post important issues such as upcoming legislation,or current minutes on the website. 

He maintains the website for a fee when we have an office administrator who should be 
doing this as it is part of their job description. Vice president is the teacher I mentioned 
earlier. The secretary-treasurer position is held by a public member who is a 
chiropractor. He also teaches at a massage school in Fargo. 

Massage therapy is not a medical field in North Dakota, although in some states it is 
considered medical. In our state massage therapists are prohibted from diagnosing, 

prescribing or treating, unless they possess other medical credentials that permit them 
to do so. ATTACHED IS A LIST OF MEDICAL PROFESSIONS AND OTHER HEALTH 

P31 
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CARE OCCUPATIONS THAT ARE RELATED BUT NOT MEDICAL. Health care workers 
from medical professions may try to impose regulations on massage therapists BASED 

UPON THEIR PROFESSIONAL LENS OR BIASES that go beyond the scope of massage 

practice. Therefore, if a member of our board is affiliated with another health care 
profession, that member should ALSO be an ACTIVELY PRACTICING massage therapist. 
There are plenty of massage therapists who are also nurses,CNA'S or physical 

therapists. 

This board has not had a formal budget for years. It is our licensing fees that fund 

board activities and I feel that having four practicing LMT's on this board would bring a 

more conservative approach to board spending. 

Having four actively practicing LMT's would facilitate better communication and 
understanding in what they feel is important for the massage community and the public. 
LMT's have training in ethics that is specific to the massage setting, boundary issues, 
and other matters that might occur in the form of complaints and concerns presented to 
the board. Public members should not be able to over-ride the expertise LMT's bring to 

the board. 

Practicing LMT's have a better understanding of the financial obstacles LMT's face that 
are intrinsic to the profession. A public member should have no financial interest relating 
to massage if that individual is to be charged with representing the public only . 
Representing any interests of massage therapists or related businesses is a conflict of 
interest. 

Page 2: 

Line 15 - Reflects change needed in number of years per term to prevent term overlap. 

Line 30 - Requires inspections. Over the last 10 - 12 years inspections were done very 
sporadically. In 2010, a request was made to double our licensing renewal fees since 
money available to the board was low. Legislation for the fee increase was passed with 
the stipulation that inspections would be done on a more regular basis. The board then 
voted to do three inspections per quadrant within the state - a total of 12 per year. ND 
has 726 therapists. If we minimally do 12 per year, it would take 60 years before each 
one is inspected. At that rate, most LMT's will never be inspected. In fact, there are 

many LMT's who have said that they have never been inspected during their career. If 
the board's primary objective is public safety, shouldn't there be a greater number of 
inspections performed? 

Page 3: 

Line 20 - Although I would like to see even less required ceu's, lowering the hours from 

32 to 24 hours every two years is a step in the right direction. Not only are LMT's paying 
$100 in annual fees, but the expense of the excessive required ceu's can cost on 



• 

• 

• 

average up to $800 or more per year. I also feel having 3 required ceu's in ethics could 

get a bit repetative. I am very Thankful I've been able to support my family, and 

be a service to others in  my 26 yrs. practicing massage, when the average life span I've 

read is 5-8 yrs. I have had to cut back now as this work is very physical and I'm not 

getting any younger, :) and after taking 422 ceu's in my career, I wish I didn't have to 

take or pay for any anymore . THANK YOU Gail Hovden LMT 



J, 

I 

' ' 

Massage therapy is a healthcare related field but it is not a medical field and 
not covered by medical insurance in North Dakota. 

Our scope of practice prohibits us from diagnosing, prescribing, or treating. 

Medical and covered by insurance 

Physicians 
Nurses 
Physical Therapists 
Respiratory Therapists 
Lab technicians 
Nursing home care 
Dentists 
Pharmacist's 
Radiologists 
Osteopaths 
Psychiatrists 
Naturopaths 

Wellness related but not medical 

Massage therapists 
Yoga 
Fitness and Exercise 
General Nutr;ition 
Meditation 
Energy work 
Lifestyle consultants 
Herbal and traditional remedies 
Reflexologists 



• I a m  writ i ng t h i s  l ette r  i n  s u p port of Senate B i l l  N o .  2294. 

I stro ngly s u p p o rt c h a n gi n g  the boa rd of m a ssage to cons ist of 

five m e m bers w it h  fou r  of the mem bers to be l i ce n sed i n  t h is 

state a n d  a ct ive ly p ra ct ic i ng massage t h e ra py for at least t h ree 
'-

consecut ive yea rs i m m ed iately p reced i n g  app o i ntment to the 

boa rd .  

I fee l  hav ing fou r  p ract ic ing  m a ssage t h e ra p ists o n  the boa rd is  

cruci a l  to n1 a ke i rn porta nt dec is ions rega rd i ng our profess ion . I 
a lso s u p p o rt hav ing o n ly c u rre nt ly p ra ct ic i ng m a ssage 

t h e ra p i sts o n  t h e  boa rd as  we know the d a y  to d ay cha l le nges 

of ma i nta i n i ng a s u ccessfu l a n d  eth ica l b u s i n ess .  

• I a lso s u p po rt c h a n g i ng the req u i re m e nts fo r l i ce n sed m a ssage 

t h e ra p ists w h o  h ave bee n p ract ic ing for fifteen consecutive 

yea rs to n o  a d d it i o n a l  cont i n u i n g  ed u catio n  req u i red . The 

m aj o rity of us in t h ose s h oes co n sta nt ly resea rch a n d  lea rn n ew 

m ateri a l  o n  o u r  own a nyway.  

I wou l d  l i ke to u rge the sen ate to pass t h i s  b i l l  as  it is writte n .  

Tha n k-you 

Ka re n  La ng LMT 

• 



• Novemb e r  1 3 , 2 0 1 4  

N e u r oMu s c u l a r  The r ap y  and W e l l n e s s  
1 3 3  H i ghw a y  8 S outh 
He t t i ng e r , N . D .  5 8 6 3 9  

T o  Whom I t  M a y  C o n c e r n : 

I have b e e n  a L i c e n s e d  Ma s s a g e  The r a p i s t  i �  N o r t h  D a k o t a  
f o r  3 4  y e a r s  a n d  f o r  2 y e a r s  p r i o r i n  S o uth D a k o t a . I 
c on t i nu e  t o  m a i nt a i n  a f u l l t i m e  p r a c t i c e . A f t e r  th i s  many 
y e a r s  of e d uc a t i on a n d  p r a c t i c a l  expe r i en c e  I d o  not f e e l  
the c o n t i n u i ng e d u c a t i on hou r s  sho u l d  b e  mand a t o r y . I 
wou l d  s t i l l  a t t e nd c l a s s e s  tha t  I m i ght be p a r t i c u l a r l y  
i nt e r e s t e d  i n . I f e e l  a f t e r  1 5  y e a r s  the c o n t i nu i ng e d u ­
c a t i o n c o u l d  be wa i ve d  f o r  l i c e n s e  r enewa l w i thout the r e  
b e i ng a n y  pro f e s s i o n a l  r a m i f i c a t i on s . 

A l s o , I s upp o r t  the N o r t h  D a k o t a  B o a r d  o f  Ma s s a g e  be i ng 
c ompr i s e d  o f  4 L i c e n s e d  Ma s s a g e  The r ap i s t s  a n d  1 c on s ume r 
member . 

I a p p r e c i a t e  y our t i m e  a n d  c on s i d e r a t i on to the s e  i s s u e s . 

R e s p e c t f u l l y , 

c;;n 1 o(f Gr1.bis 
M a r y  J E ggebo , LMT 
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January 1 6, 20 1 5  

I am in favor of the bill supporting that the North Dakota State Board of Massage be 

made up of four Licensed Massage Therapists and only one consumer member. 

I am in favor of the bill supporting that after 1 5  years of being a Licensed Massage 

Therapist you should not have to continue doing continuing education every year. 

Kristin Helland, LMT # 1 084 

Mandan, ND 
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January 1 6, 20 1 5  

I am in favor of the bill supporting that the North Dakota State Board of Massage be 

made up of four Licensed Massage Therapists and only one consumer member. 

I am in favor of the bill supporting that after 1 5  years of being a Licensed Massage 

Therapist you should not have to continue doing continuing education every year. 

� �  
Jennifer Gensburg, LMT #10'?0 
Bismarck, ND 
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J a n u a ry 23, 2015 

Attentio n :  Legislative Assem bly of North Dakota 

To Whom It M ay Concern : 

My Name is, Dra l i n n  J .  Koen ig, LMT. I h ave been a Licensed 

Massage Therapist, at my business of Guided Hands 

Thera pe utic M assage, i n  Bismarck, N D, pra cticing for com ing up 

o n  22 yea rs.  

I am writin g  to i nform you that I a m  in  sup port of SB NO. 2294. 

Sincerely, 

'Llw1tvl\J J: 1\of[� , LrviT 
Dra l i n n  J .  Koe nig, LMT 
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From : ssilkrran@ndsupernet.com 

Subject : senate bill-2294 Thank you Gail!! 

To: hands4u@q.com 

Thu, Jan 29, 2015 01:31 AM 

to whom it rrey concern, I have been a rressage therapist since 1983 and I am very rruch in favor of senate bill 2294! I would like 
to be able to choose, at this point in ITT{ career, to attend the conventions if I so desire! thank you for your support of this 
bill! Sincerely, Sharon Silkrran, 135 hwy 8 south, Hettinger, N.D . 

fB13 
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• Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal 
History Record Checks - LC# 15.0511.02000 

• 

• 

From : Virgil Vetter <virgilvetter5@grrail.com> 

Subject : Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - BiU Draft Relating to Crimnal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

To : CenturyLink Customer <hands4u@q.com> 

I got it and yes I would support you on that Bill Virgil Vetter. 

On Jan 27, 2015, at 9:50 AM, CenturyLink Customer <hands4u@q.com> wrote: 

let me know if you got 

From: "CenturyLink Customer" <hands4u@q.com> 
To: "gaii hovcien" <hands4u@q.com> 
Sent: Monday, January 19, 2015 7:22:31 PM 

Tue, Jan 27, 2015 H:44 AM 

Subject: Fwd: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

<15.0511.02000.pdf> 
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From: Rowan Dahners <bernadetteschnidtl@msn.com> 

Subject : <No Subject> 

To : g h <hands4u@q.com> 

Hi Gail Hovden, 

·--···-···--·- -·- ---------- - - -

lhu, Jan 08, 2015 11:54 AM 

I totally support to have 4 LMTs on the State Board, LMTs would understand of what massage therapist needs and wants are. Also 
to have the continued education stop after so many years of being a massage therapist, I have been a therapist for 22 years and I 
don't see how rruch rrore continue ed can help rre in Ill{ practice. I would like to have the choice to go to rrore classes if I choose to 
and it not be m:mditory! 

lhankyou 
Bernadette Schrridt. 
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To whom it  may co ncern, 

I a m  writ ing in rega rds to the conti n u i ng ed ucation hou rs .  I h ave been an active 

massage thera pi st in the state of North Da kota for 8 yea rs . I own my own 

b u s i ness i n  B i nfo rd, N D  a nd have a th riving bus i ness in a l itt le town of 180 people.  

A town this s ize req u i red people  l i ke myse lf to become vol u ntee rs in o u r  

com m u n it ies.  4 yea rs ago I joined t h e  Cooperstown Am b u l a n ce S q u a d  as a 

vo l u nteer E m e rgency M ed ica l Tec h n ic ia n ( E MT) . I a m  nationa l ly recogn ized a s  a 

p ract ic ing LMT a nd E MT. Conti n u ing  ed ucation i n  these two p rofess ions is held at 

a h ig h  sta n d a rd in the state of N D . It i s  my p roposa l that these two professions be 

a l l owed to joi n in rega rds to conti n u i ng ed ucation . Conti n u i ng edu cation 

req u i rement  for E MT is  20 nationa l hou rs, 10 loca l hou rs, and 10 i nd ivid u a l  hou rs 

every 2 yea rs. LMT req u i rements a re 32 h o u rs every 2 yea rs with at least 3 hou rs 

d ed icated to eth i cs .  

Boa rd m e m bers a re a crit ica l resou rce to  people l i ke me.  I s u pport the p roposa l 

that the State Boa rd of M a ssage be made u p  of 5 mem be rs, 4 b e i ng LMT's a nd 1 
bei ng a cons u m e r  mem ber.  We need peop l e  on  the boa rd that u nd e rsta nds o u r  

p rofession a s  a whole.  Th is  is  a growing i n d u stry which needs a so l id fou ndation 

sta rti ng at the top with the boa rd m e m be rs .  Th is  p rofession was chose n by each 

l icen sed massage t h e ra pist pract ic ing i n  N D. Let us  put i nto p lace a boa rd that 

p rotects a nd u nd e rsta nds the issues that massage thera p ists encou nter.  

Tha n k  you for you r  t ime a nd cons ideratio n .  

S i n ce re ly, 

The resa A. I ve rson 969 

I n  The Zone Massage The ra py 

B i nford . N D  58416 



1/20/2015 

Centu ryLink Webmail 

8 massage bil l  support 

From : laura Kraenzel <chloecolty@outlook.com> 

Subject : rrassage bill support 

To : CenturyUnk Custorrer < hands4u@q. com> 

Sent from Windows Mail 

Centur,Unk Webmail 

hands4u@q.com 

± Font Size : 

Tue, Jan 20, 2015 11:06 AM 

My naire is laura Kraenzel. I am from Dickinson, ND. I have been a licensed rrassage therapist since 1997. I agree with this bHI and 
I fully support it. I am in full support of the 4 LMT's and the no rrore CEU's after so rrany years. We are losing older therapists 
that are not being treated right and I this would really help the problem. Thank you for your careful consideration. 

• 

• 

Sincerely, 
laura Kraenzel 



• 

From: Heather J hljorstad@aol.com 
Subject: In support of Senate Bill 2294 

Date: January 30, 2015 at 7:52 AM 
To: Lklemin@nd.gov 

Hello, 

I am in support of Senate Bill 2294. Being a massage therapist for the past 14 years I believe it is important for us Licensed 

Massage Therapists 1:0 have a voice on how our state board is run. I am in favor that our Massage State Board should consist of 

4 Practicing licensed Massage Therapists and 1 Consumer Member. Our board currently consists of 3 licensed Massage 

Therapists, 2 of which are currently doing massage as there profession and 1 (it is my understanding) who is teaching massage 

but not currently doing massage on a daily basis. We also currently have one of our consumer members as President of our 

Massage Board. I strongly disagree with this, and think that only Practicing licensed Massage Therapists on the board should 

hold office as President. Currently all consumer members are holding office and the LMT's are not. This is causing conflict on our 

Board and I believe should be changed. 

In section 4 Number 3d. I will say that I do not agree with the bill stating after a licensed Massage Therapist has been licensed 

for 1 5  years that they will no longer need continuing education. I am one for education, and believe that every individual always 

has room to learn and grow, whether you have been in the business for 1 year or 1 5. 

Thank you for your time, please consider supporting Section 2 of Senate Bill 2294. 

Sincerely, 

Heather Jorstad, LMT 



1/22/2015 
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• Proposed bill  

• 

• 

Fro.m : rrassey@bektel.com 

S."'�Jf!ct : Proposed bHI 

To : hands4u <hands4u@q. com> 

Reply To : rrassey@bektel.com 

This is for Bill # 582294. 

I have read the bill and agree of the changes being made. 

Bobbie Jo Brindle. LMT#210 

Centur�nkWebmail 

hands4u@q.com 

± Font Size : 

Thu, Jan 22, 2015 09:48 AM 
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January 1 9, 20 1 5  

Gail  Hovden 
424 N 1 5th St 
Bismarck, ND 5 850 I 

Dear Ms. Hovden, 

Lucia S. Steilunet:z 
216 6th Ave NE 

Jamestown, ND 58401 
(701) 252-0816 

I am writing in support of your efforts in testifying to the Legislature concerning the ND State Board of 
Massage Therapists. After 33 years as a massage therapist, I have interest in seeing legislation enacted to 
protect the interests of l icensed massage therapists. 

I am glad to s�e the recent increase in required hours from 500 to 750 within the ND Massage Therapy 
schools. More hours wil l  better prepare students to complete the N D  State Boards successfully. 
However, I do have a concern with the cost of the l icense renewal continuing to increase without 
sufficient reason behind the increase. For many years it was consistently set at $50, in 20 1 2  it doubled to 
$ 1 00, the last I understood there is discussion it will increase another $50 in 20 1 5 . 

I also support the proposed measure 43-25-05 (3.d) stating l icensed massage therapists having a paying 
practice for over 1 5  consecutive years should not be required to complete continuing education in order to 
have their l icense renewed. I agree with the concept, however I would suggest 20 years of consecutive 
years of service. As was my experience, many of the continuing education opportunities I encountered 
had already been covered in previous years and it was material I was using and new well already. So it 
was a burden of time away from my employment and extra expense in attending the conferences. 

It is disappointing to still see the number of people within the state of ND that continue to practice 
massage therapy without a valid l icense. There needs to be regulations in place and consequences for 
those not meeting the guidelines. 

One other area I would like to address is the ND State Board of Massage Therapists and how it is 
comprised. Statutes need to be implemented to l imit the number of years one can serve on the board in 
any capacity and once the term is up, stepping down should come without any problem. 

In the past, the ND State Board used funds collected to send representatives to the National Massage 
Therapy conventions. I feel this was a waste of funds, as the representatives would not bring anything 
back to share from what they had learned while in attendance. However, I do recall once instance, where 
Mr. Olson from Fargo attended a convention in China and brought back wonderful videos of new 
massage techniques that were very helpful. 

I am so grateful for Gai l  Hovden to take on this task of bringing this before the Legislative assembly on 
behalf of the N D  State Massage Therapists. I hope for the best and glad I could be a part of it . 

Lucia S. Steinmetz 
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• 

From : Bonny Kerrper <breatheagain@srt.com> 

Subject : bHI 2294 

To : hands4u@q.com 

Tue, Feb 03, 2015 04:27 PM 

I have been a massage therapist in North Dakota for 11 years. I have been practicing in Minot for all those years . It would be greatly 
appreciated if you would support Bill 2294. Thank you for your consideration . Bonny Kemper, BS, LMT,LR 

Bonny Kerrper 
(701) 721-1492 mobile 
breatheagain@srt.com 
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• 
Fwd : support of 2294 

• 

• 

From : Century Link Customer <hands4u@q. com> 

Subject : Fwd: support of 2294 

To : gail hovden <hands4u@q. com> 

From: 

---- Begin Forwarded Message ---­
From: Heidi< 'strainheidi@yrnail.com'> 
Date: Feb 4, 2015, 3 :25:53 PM 
To: 
Subject: support of 2294 

Wed, Feb 04, 2015 10:24 PM 

I also feel we need bill 2294 to pass. Our rnassage board needs to be run BY rnassage therapists. We need to take control of 
our own board. We need some changes and I strongly feel this bill will help get these changes rnade. We need people on the 
board who understand this profession in this day and age and understand what it means to be a massage therapist, they 
need to truly understand how the profession works and I feel that this absolutely can not be done unless you are a massage 
therapist. I support this bill. I I think you should too. 
Thank you for your time and consideration, 
"' Heidi Strain, LMT # 847 
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2/11/2015 

Centurylink Webmail 

Fwd: 

From : CenturyUnk Custorrer <hands4u@q.com> 

Subject: Fwd: 

To: gail hovden <hands4u@q.com> 

From: "p berg'' <lmtberg@gmail.com> 
To: "Gail Hovden" <hands4u@q.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 12:19:30 AM 
Subject: Fwd: 

--Gail, 
One rrore for your support group. 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Arlene Pozarnsky <lake!oopmassage@yahoo.com> 
Date: Tue, Feb 10, 2015 at 7:53 PM 

Centur~inkWebmail 

hands4u@q.f~,I» 
;'/ 'l! i .t 

·----·------- - - --- -

Wed, Feb 11, 2015 01:13 PM 

hey girl, just a little note to say I am in favor of bill 2294, change does need to be made. I like the idea of 15 yrs and then no rrore 
ceo's, actually 10 or 12 years would be good. If u stay in it after 10 u know that is what u want to do and you wiH automatically 
keep or take your own continuing education. I like the idea of inspections. Changes to board rrenners is great. what about Karen 
W. job, I think 10 year status is good and then off for a few and back on. What is up with all the rroney we have? just get it passed 
and then work on changes, 
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• FW: Senate Bill 

• 

• 

From : Shasta Held <ShastaHeld@gatecitybank.com> 

Subject: FW: Senate Bill 

To : hands4u@q.com 

Hello 

Thu, Feb 12, 2015 10:25 AM 

I am writing to agree with Senate Bill NO 2294. I am a part-time Massage Therapist I have been active therapist since 2003. I 
agree that 32 hours every two years is way too many. 
I feel that it is just a money game for CEU'S they are way overpriced. For being a Therapist for 12 years I feel it should be my 
choice if I want to take Continuing Education. I feel 8 hours would be plenty for a Massage Therapist my husband is an electrician 
and he only needs 8 a year . Massage Therapy is a hard profession to stay active in. I believe by adjusting the hours this would 
make a huge difference for us therapists. Training takes away time that we can be in the office make a difference for a client. 
Thank you for your time in considering this change. 

Shasta Held #779 
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• 

• 

Fwd: Fw: 2294 bill support of 
··----·----------·-----·- --··------ - ·- ------·- ·-

From : p berg <lrrtberg@gmail.com> 

Subject : Fwd: Fw: 2294 bill support of 

To: GaH Hovden <hands4u@q.com> 

On Thursday, February 12, 2015 2:37 PM, Karla Hoffert <karla hoffert@hotrrail.com> wrote: 

Thu, Feb 12, 2015 09:32 PM 

I would like mt support of biH 2294 be known that I agree with the proposed changes to this biU, I believe the changes will help to 
support the Massage Profession, now and further in the future. 

Sincerely, 
Karla Hoffert LMT 
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Support Email for Senate Bill 2294 

• 

• 

From : Audra R. Highley BCTMB Pure Harrrony Massage <pureharrmnymassage@live.com> 

SUbject : Support Email for Senate Bill 2294 

To : hands4u@q.com 

Hi Gail, 

This email is in support of the changes proposed in the Senate Bill 2294. 

Thank you for your tirre and efforts! 

Audra R. Highley, BCTMB #1238727, LMT #1150 
Pure Harrrony Massage 
308 E Thayer Ave. 
Bismarck ND 58501 
(701) 425-8005 

hands4u@q.com 

±Font Size: 

Sun, Feb 15, 2015 12:46 PM 
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• Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal 
History Record Checks - LC# 15.0511.02000 

• 

• 

From : judy jacobson <vrrassage@cableone.net> 

Subject : Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Crininal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

To : hands4u@q.com 

Sun, Jan 25, 2015 03:54 PM 

Gail, yes I support this bill and I know you left the bill # on my call phone but I have rrisplace it and if you send it to rre again I can 
say on this email or the nest one I send you that I do support the bill. Judy Jacobson RN, lMT 

On Jan 14, 2015, at 1:48 PM, CenturyUnk Custorrer wrote: 

From: "CenturyLink Customer" <hands4u@q.com> 
To: vmassage@cabelone.net 
Sent: Wednesday, January 14, 2015 1:41:30 PM 
Subject: Fwd: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 
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• Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Criminal 
History Record Checks - LC# 15.0511.02000 

• 

• 

From : Mary Apple <maryapple62@yahoo.com> 

Subject : Re: Gail sending a copy of bill - Bill Draft Relating to Crininal History Record Checks - LC# 
15.0511.02000 

To : CenturyLink Customer <hands4u@q.com> 

Reply To: Mary Apple <maryapple62@yahoo.com> 

Dear Gail, 

Sat, Jan 17, 2015 06:56 AM 

I am writing to say that I am for your bill. And ITT{ email address is maryapple62@yahoo.com I live in Mandan ND and work as a 
massage theirpist in Mandan also. 

Mary Degner 

On Monday, January 12, 2015 9:41 AM, CenturyLinkCustomer <hands4u@q.com> wrote : 

Thank you Mary , What I need is a email from you saying you are in favor of this bill, with your name and where you are from. you are 
also more than welcome to come to the captial and tell them too . I will take your written email with me when i go to the capital, if you 
can write me one. thank you gait 

-------------
From: "Mary Apple" <maryapple62@yahoo.com> 
To: "CenturyLink Customer" <hands4u@q.com> 
Sent: Monday , January 12, 2015 9:34:2 1 AM 
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RE: CUE'S 

From : Carla Anderson <scrapbooker@bektel. com> 

Subject : RE: CUE'S 

To: hands4u@q.com 

Gail, 

± Font Size : 

Thu, May 02, 2013 09 :33 AM 

I know this is somethi ng that I have been bringing up for awhile. It is actual ly something that I would do more research on before submitting it before the State Board . I do not know if 
it is being practiced in any other states. 

Here is what I know and what I feel. I have heard that the average work expectancy of an LMT is 8 years bee a use of severa I reasons, one beingthat the work is too ha rd for some 
people's hands to do. 

This is myself and how I feel. Over the years, I have taken several different courses, as like everyone else, and I seem to take a li tt le bit from each course and add it to my pra ct ice . At 
this point, I was licensed in 1996 and over the years I have developed my own massage techniques from all the different speakers that we see, again like everyone else that has 
been in this profession . As I take cont inui ng education that relates to what I do, it is a refreshe r, but gets boring and monotonous. Over the last few years, I know myse lf and others 
that have been in the profession over 10 years find the continuing ed. to be a waste of money and lost time from our business . 

As I look at each profession and see how educational requirements are re quired for each profession such as electricians, home inspectors, appraisers that have 
code/sa fety/requirement changes eve ry year or other year, doct ors, nurses, medica I profession a Is they have new medic ines, a dva need me di ca I equi pment, new cures for 
disea ses, I see where it is important forthem to get continuing education every year. As for massage therapists , once you start hi t t ing 10-15 years , you 've gone beyond our 
expected work expectancy and t here isn't many new things that pop up for us each year. I feel that once you st art hitting 15-16 years of continued work in the profession, no breaks 
in between so that continuing ed was ta ken each year, we shou ld change the ed ucat ion re qui rement of an LMTto what is required ofour biggest massage affiliation, th e AMTA, 48 
hours every4 years. Now, I would li ke to say, change it to 6 hours a year, but, I think we shou ld at least keep it within national sta ndards . 

Gail , please give my apologies to the State Boa rd as I kn ow we typically use to have a representative from the AMTA-ND Chapter at th e meetings and I do not know if anyon e plans to 
attend yet again, but the reason I have not started attend ing the meetings myse lf is bee a use I have been the breadwinner of my family for the last 2 yea rs while my husba nd works 

*
th rough some issues and I cannot afford to take many days off, Friday being one of my best days of work . Also, as we are planning ou r Fall Workshop, we were interested in using 
local people to keep our costs down, but the people we are th inking of asking certainly do not ho ld nationa l certification #'s . Are we able to hi re and have people speak that do not 
have NCBTMB certifications? Another question is, one ofthe people I would like t o ask does a 4 hour course on pedia tric massage t hat deals with several difficult cases such as 
cerebra l palsy, aut ism, adhd, and et c. I believe she ha s a NCBTMBnumber, BUT, we would not have hertrave l out here, I wou ld like to do like a webinarwhere we would have her 
project on a screen and interact with the class. Like on line schooling. Is this acceptable? Seems silly to take so much away from a speaker and spe nd so much money for a 4 hour 

course . It is ma in ly lectu re. If you cou ld let me know, we have a meeting on Monday the 6th and will be starting our plans fo r the workshop then . 

Th anks much and if you need more info., please contact me at 400-7841. 

Carla A. 

PS: What is all expected of a person being on the state board? 

From: hands4u@q.com [rrailto:hands4u@q.com] 

md29.q uartz.s111acor .com'zimbralh/printrressag e?id=44047 
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Education credits 

From: The Hearing Aid Company <thehearingaidco@srt.com> 

Subject : Education credits 

1 To: hands4u@q.com 
\ 

April 30, 2013 

Board of Massage Therapy 

Massage for Body Benefits 
Lisa Risovi 
Lie #468 
1809 So Broadway Ste. I 
Minot, ND 58701 

• hands4u@q.com 

± Font Size : 

Tue, May 21, 2013 02: 59 PM 

I received a call this morning asking my opinion on continued education for veteran therapist. I am a therapist of 14 years. 

I am cutting back to part-time for my body cannot work the full time hours any longer. I would like to see the continued education hour's change 
as the years of service get higher. 

We get very redundant when it comes to educating and don't feel the need to have as many hours of continued education to fulfill our license 
unless there are extreme changes in the law or modalities .. They take a new named class and we get refreshed after the many years we have 
educated. It is tough to get new material for continued education. 

My vote would be to reduce education and try get more people involved in the board meetings. I myself have never been to one because of time 
and timing. 

Lisa Risovi 
Massage for Body Benefits 

md29.q uartz.s'y1'1acor .com/zi mbra/h/pri ntmessag e?id=45020 



Chairman Keiser and Members of the Committee: 

My name is Pat Berg . I am a licensed massage therapist (LMT), practicing massage therapy in North 
Dakota since 2001 . I presently sit on the North Dakota Board of Massage. I am testifying in favor of 
SB2294. 

Page 1, Section 2 Amendment, concerning the structure of the Board of Massage: 

The present makeup of this board does not have a majority representation of licensed massage 
therapists who list massage therapy as their primary/secondary occupation. With only two fully 
practicing LMT's sitting on this board and neither one holding office, this board does not represent the 
best interests of our practicing LMT's, or that of the massage therapy industry in this state. The 
consumer members on this board are diligently conscious of protecting the consumer; however, it is 
becoming burdensome because we are wandering outside of our scope of duties. This board has voted 
to use up to one-third of revenues in a single year in payment to a marketing firm for a campaign that is 
completely unrelated to massage therapy. Yes, massage therapists do need to be aware of human 
trafficking, but we do not police it nor are we responsible for disseminating such information. 

This board has voted to hire an office administrator for thousands of dollars more than either of two 
other viable bids from professional vendors, even though more services were included in those bids. 
There is overspending for duplication of services. There is a lax in accountability. 

Leadership is floundering and North Dakota LMT's have lost their voice. The proposed changes as 
outlined in SB2294 would give North Dakota Board of Massage the necessary tools to correct many of 
these issues. 

Suggestions are also being made that statute be changed to require persons with medical and 
education backgrounds to sit on this board, thus increasing this board from five to seven members. 

Chapter 43-25-02 specifically defines massage therapy as just that. Massage therapy. It definitively 
states that "massage does not include diagnosis or other services that require a license to 
practice medicine or surgery, osteopathic medicine, chiropractic, occupational therapy, 
physical therapy. or podiatry and does not include service provided by professionals who act 
under their state-issued professional license, certification, or registration." 

Anyone moving into this state from, for example, Florida where massage therapy falls under that state's 
Department of Health, will need to adjust their mindset to the fact that ND has a stand-alone board and 
it does not fall under any other state regulated department, health or otherwise. Having a medical 
person on this board to oversee if we are or aren't doing anything medically correct is not warranted . 
Medicine is not within our scope of practice. 

North Dakota requires 750 education hours to qualify for massage therapy license. The requirements 
as spelled out in Chapter 49-02 Administrative Code are as follows: 

1. Having completed 750 hours at a single school of massage therapy or more than one school , as long 
as the total hours are not redundant. 

2. Education provided by a recognized and approved school and provided by a credentialed educator. 

1 



3. Specific number of hours of anatomy, physiology, pathology, kinesiology, first aid and hygiene, 
business, and ethics. Specific number of practical instruction defined as lab or hands-on instruction in a 
qualified classroom setting . 

Although these duties are required and necessary, it does not require the "expertise" of an educator to 
sit on the board to make sure that all current and new licensees qualify. 

If the number of board members is increased to add unnecessary oversight, it will also increase board 
expenses. In 2010 the licensing renewal fee was raised from $50 to $100 annually, with no 
explanations to the massage community at large. We have already dealt with a 100% fee increase and 
raising it again after only a few years is not good management. 

There are approximately 725 licensed massage therapists in North Dakota. Very few other boards in 
ND have people outside of their profession or industry controlling their boards. Requiring specific 
outside professionals to sit on this board equates to internal policing and is an insult to the majority of 
professionals in the massage therapy industry. 

Page 2, Section 3 Amendment, item #2, concerning inspections: 

Inspections of massage premises are a very important part of the duties of the ND Board of Massage. 
Inspections inform the board and therapists about safety and sanitation issues, as well as provide an 
opportunity to impart information to correct or prevent problems should they arise. Along with random 
board inspections, self-inspection forms can be submitted as a requirement for licensure renewal. The 
self-inspection forms are in-depth and informative, allowing a therapist to understand what is required 
of them. A board member or hired inspector could do follow-up inspections where problems have been 
detected. 

Provided we can resolve the issues stated above, inspections can be affordable to this board should we 
find it necessary to hire an inspector on occasion. 

Page 3, Section 4 Amendment, concerning continuing education units: 

Line 22 on page 3 - I disagree with adding the requirement of three hours of ethics to continuing 
education submitted every two years. Education requirements will always be dynamic. Adding such 
specificity to statute is restrictive. This would be better addressed in Administrative Code, which 
currently does list ethics as a requirement to education. 

Concerning continuing education , the ND Board of Massage and the massage community of this state 
need to focus on what is happening at the national level. As the massage industry evolves and 
becomes regulated and licensure becomes required by more states, the need has arisen for industry 
standards. Presently, 41 states require licensure, along with the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico. 
State or local certification is required of the remaining states - three of which currently have pending 
licensure legislation. There is a large variance in statute from state to state, making for difficulties in 
regulation and reciprocity. 

2 



In 2011 , representatives of several national professional organizations for massage met to discuss the 
challenges facing the industry. An in-depth study to identify and address opportunities to advance the 
profession was done, and a "Practice Act Blueprint" was developed with recommendations for 
standardization of education and continuing education requirements. A very brief outline of this report is 
attached. It is the hope that states adopting legislation follow this blueprint and that states already 
requiring licensure take a fresh look at the blueprint. 

Because of these national recommendations, lowering ceu requirements will display a voluntary 
compliance within these guidelines, make North Dakota less isolated from the majority, and allow for 
greater ease of reciprocity. It will also advocate the growth of the massage industry in North Dakota. 

In Section 2 amendment, 1 b we would like it to read: 

One member of the board must be a consumer member who has lived in North Dakota for the past 
three years. . .. ... 

Page 5, Line 17: 

There should be no change in this line. It is a drafting error which was overlooked during this hectic 
time. 

I thank you for your time today. 

3 



Coalition of National Massage Therapy Organizations: 

• Alliance for Massage Therapy Education I 

• American Massage Therapy Association 
• Associated Bodywork and Massage Professionals 

• The Commission on Massage Therapy Accreditation 

• The Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards 
• The Massage Therapy Foundation 
• The National Certification Board for Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork 

Findings: 

• Inconsistency in quality, depth, quantity and focus of entry-level massage therapy education 
skills and knowledge 

• No national standards for massage teachers 

• Lack of licensure portabil ity 

Outcome: 

• Agreed upon core elements of entry-level massage therapy instructional programs 

• Developed the Entry-Level Analysis Project (ELAP) , a 266 page report outlining an Entry-Level 
Massage Education Blueprint consisting of research-informed conclusions in classroom 
instruction, curriculum development, instructional design, and assessment expertise. 

• Recommending 625 hours to graduate from an accredited massage therapy program 
• Shifting the focus of licensure renewal requirements from requiring continuing education hours 

to maintaining core competencies with the recommendation of 6 hours annual continuing 
education 

The complete report can be found at: http://www.elapmassage.org/final report.php 

4 



#-3 

TESTIMONY in support of SB 2294 

Chairman Kaiser and Members of the Committee, 

My name is Dianne Aull. I have been a massage therapist for over 17 years, taught massage therapy as 
an employee of Williston State College for 5 Yz years, and served as an officer for the AMT A (American 
Massage Therapy Association) North Dakota chapter for 5 years. Prior to my massage career, I was an 
educator and later an administrator for statewide and regional adult continuing education entities. 
Although I serve on the board of massage, which opposes this bill, I personally support this bill. 

Massage therapists are over-regulated in North Dakota and this bill will take real steps to 
rectify that problem. 

The Massage Registration Act was enacted in 1959 creating the North Dakota Board of Massage to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the people of the state. The board was to: 
1. Prescribe regulations for the practice of massage 
2. Conduct inspections of massage establishments 
3. Make available the necessary requirements for licensing massage therapists. 
The law was established at the request of a group of massage practitioners. Massage therapists desire 
and appreciate our law which works to shield our profession from people who would attempt to practice 
massage therapy without proper training. 

North Dakota's Board of Massage is configured in a way that allows non-massage therapists to take 
control. The result has been over-regulation of our industry. This is evidenced by: 

o higher licensing requirements than. most other states 
o greater continuing education requirements for license renewal than any other state in the 

nation 
o license fees that are charged twice as often are thus are relatively twice as high as most 

other states. 
o a static (or declining) number of LMTs in our state for the last several years, in spite of 

the growth in our state in general 
o fewer licensed massage therapists than any other state with licensing. 
o a reciprocity policy that is virtually ineffective 

SECTION 2 AMENDMENTS 
Page 1 - Beginning with line 1 7 

We need better representation of LMTs (Licensed Massage Therapists) on the Board of Massage. 
• Our board is unusual - few other boards in our state have people outside their profession or 

industry controlling their boards. Attached is a list of some other North Dakota boards and their 
composition. 

• The Federation of State Massage Therapy boards (FSTMB) was tasked by its 32 member boards 
to develop a model practice act to provide statutory language as a resource for states based on the 
collective wisdom of the massage therapy regulatory community across the nation. This 
document suggests that massage therapy members be "licensed and in good standing, and who 
shall have been engaged in the practice of massage therapy for not less that five consecutive 
years preceding the date of appointment." and it does suggest a substantial majority be LMTs. 



• As massage therapists, we are trained to know what our job is, and what it is not. It is easy for a 
massage therapist: 

o to identify people who are not qualified to do massage, 
o to identify violations of our state practice act, 
o and to identify problems in a massage setting. 
o Massage therapists know what our scope of practice is, and 
o have a clear understanding about when a client should be referred to a health care 

professional. These specific skills make massage therapists uniquely qualified to regulate 
our own profession. 

Our board needs more specific criteria for a consumer member 
Page 2 - Beginning with line 3 

• Our board needs more transparency, accountability, and fiscal responsibility. 
o The majority vote is given over to people who do not make their living doing massage 

therapy and the monies collected and dispersed do not impact them personally. 
o The present board operates without a budget as it has done for at least the past eight years 

and probably more. 
o Financial reports are nothing more than a copy of a checking account statement, 

sometimes for a little as one month. Income and expenses are not reported at meetings or 
between meetings. 

o The board's lack of transparency has been, and continues to be, a recurring theme in 
complaints we hear from members of the profession. 

• Complaints our board receives are not medical in nature except if the therapist has worked 
out~ide of our limited scope of practice. Typical complaints have to do with things like violation 
of personal boundaries and failing to honor gift certificates. 

• The 3 :2 ratio is seen in some other states, but those boards are typically in states where massage 
regulation is part of a state agency, such as the health department or the department of human 
services, and not independent boards outside of government agencies. 
Attached is a list with composition of massage boards in other states. 

There is excessive influence of massage schools on the board 
• Although our board does not regulate massage schools, for the past decade one of the LMT 

positions on our board has been filled by someone who represents schools instead of representing 
LMTs. . 

• We presently also have a consumer member who works for a massage school. That makes 40% 
of our present board employed by massage education providers. 

• Where other states have a school representative on their board, that board also regulates schools. 

Some people have suggested expanding our board to 7 members so that we can continue to have 2 
consumer members and still have more LMTs on the board. 

• According to our website which was updated within the last couple weeks, we have 666 licensed 
massage therapists in the state, (a drop of 60 LMTs since the last report) that would be a board 
member for every 95 therapists which is unnecessary. Other states with 7 member boards 
typically have thousands of practitioners to regulate. 

• Expanding the board would add to costs for reimbursement and travel which might undermine 
our ability to pay for inspection services. 

• Over-developed bureaucracy can't be improved by expanding it even more. 



Enhanced term limitation language 
• The problems this board faces now are related to lack of turnover on the board. A lapse of ten 

years between returning to the board would help prevent a repeat of this cycle of over-regulation. 
• By bringing on new members at least every 8 years, administrative problems would get more 

notice and new expertise applied for solving problems. 

SECTION 4 AMENDMENTS 
The amendment to reduce continuing education hours from 32 to 24 hours per biennium will 
help bring continuing education requirements more in line with accepted industry standards. 

• North Dakota presently requires far more continuing education than any other state. 
• 35% of the courses listed on our website as approved continuing education are "energy 

work" such as Reiki and Diamond Dowsing! Some people might enjoy these courses but they 
do nothing to protect consumers. 

• Excessive continuing education is another example of over-regulation. 

Regarding "board infighting" question 
When I testified on this bill at the Senate hearing, one Senator asked if this was an instance of board 
infighting where we were looking for the legislature to intervene. I believe this bill may have been 
misconstrued by some. Although there is not complete agreement on the board on every issue, there has 
been no infighting, and no one has ever implied that any board member is not doing their best to serve 
this .board. I am saddened to hear that some board members feel personally attacked because of this bill. 
That has never been our intent. 

Instead, we see this as simply a case where the way our statute is presently set up, it creates an overly 
cumbersome environment, for what are usually micro-businesses, to be successful. We are looking to 
the legislature to allow our board to look more like other similar boards in North Dakota, We want our 
board to be controlled by people who understand the nuances of our businesses; we want to create an 
increasingly friendly atmosphere for massage therapists to work in our state so that our industry can stop 
it's decline and begin to grow and thrive. 

Our board ' s purpose is to protect the health, safety and welfare of the consumers by regulating massage 
and we can do so without stifling massage therapy businesses. 

Thank you for your attention. 
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EXAMPLES OF THE COMPOSITION OF SIMILAR NORTH DAKOTA BOARDS 

Profession Professional members Public Members 
Addiction Counselors 5 Addiction Counselors 2 Laypersons 
Athletic Trainers 3 Athletic trainers, 1 MD 1 Public member not 

affiliated wl any 
healthcare field 

Architecture 3 Architects NIA 
Audiologist & Speech 2 Speech Pathologists, 2 Audiologists, l Consumer 
Pathologist 1 Hearing Aid Dealer, 

1 Otolaryngologist 
Barbers 5 Barbers NIA 
Chiropractors 5 Chiropractors NIA 
Cosmetology 3 practitioners 2 Consumers 
Dental Examiners 5 Dentist, 1 Dental Hygenist 1 Consumer 
Dietetic Practice Board 3 Dieticians, 1 Nutritionist 1 Consumer 
Funeral Service Board 3 Funeral Practitioners & 1 State NIA 

Health Officer 
Education Standards & 5 Teachers, 2 School board members, NIA 
Practices 2 school administrators, 1 Dean of 

College of Education 
Integrative Health Care 1 N aturopath, 1 MD or DO, 1 Nurse NIA 

Practitioner, 1 Pharmacist, 1 Music 
Therapist 

Nursing 5 RN s, 1 Advanced Practice RN, 2 1 Public member 
LPNs 

Optometry 5 Optometrists (7 members altogether) 
Occupational Therapists 3 Occupational Therapists, 1 OT 1 Consumer 

assistant 
P_harmacy 5 Pharmacists, 1 Pharmacy 1 Public member not 

Technician affiliated_ wl any 
healthcare field 

Physical Therapy 3 Physical Therapists, 2 MDs 1 Public member not 
affiliated w/ healthcare 

Podiatry 4 Podiatrists, One other MD 1 Public member 
Private Investigators and Between 5 & 11 members - majority At least 1 public 
Security must be actively engaged in PI or member 

Security 
Psychological examiners 5 Psychologists - 1 who is currently a NIA 

Psychology service provider and 1 
primarily a teacher or researcher 

Respiratory Therapists 4 Respiratory Therapists, 1MD, 1 1 Public member 
polysomographic technologist 



MASSAGE THERAPY BOARDS 
State ' # Licensees · #of Members LMTs { Public/Professional/Other Agency 
Alabama ' 6 5 

. 
1 i . 

Arizona 10,000 .5 3 2 with interest in consumer rights or law 
enforcement 

Arkansas 2,066 7 6 1 
California 47,857 19 
Connecticut 5 Dept of Public Health 

Delaware 1,212 7 4 3 Division of professional regulation 

Florida 34.729 7 5 2 Part of Dept. of Health 

Georgia 6,689 5 4 1 

Hawaii 5 3 2 Dept of Commerce 

Idaho 5 4 1 

Illinois 7 6 1 

Indiana- has six professional 4,008 5 3 2 Part of Indiana Professional 
staff - board does hearings Licensing Agency 

Iowa 7 4 3 Part of board of Professional 
Licensure - Administered by Dept. 
of Health 

Kentucky 7 5 (1 MT must 2 (1 may be health professional - none w/ direct or Part of Public Protection Cabinet -
own school) indirect interest in massage Office of Occupations and 

Professions 
Louisiana 2,478 7 5 1 and 1 Physician 

Maryland 4,000 11 6 chiros, 3 LMTs 2 Dept of Health & mental Hygiene; 
Board of Chiropractic and 
Massage Therapy Examiners 

Massachusetts - agency 7 Part of Consumer Affairs and 
regulates practioners, Business Regulation 
salons, and schools 
Michigan 4,173 11 7 4 Dept of Licensing and Regulatory 

Affairs 
Mississippi 6 4 1 + 1 health professional Chairperson must be massage 

therapist 
Missouri 5,153 7 . . 6 .1 publrc member + 1 non-voting member Division of Professional 

Registration 
Montana 1,800 5 3 1 public + 1 healthcare provider Dept of Labor and Industry 



MASSAGE THERAPY BOARDS 
Nebraska 1,375 4 3 

. 1' Dept of Health & Human Services , .. 
Nevada 7 6 1 public +1 non-voting law enforcement member 

New Hampshire 1,963 3 3 Board of Licensing and 
Certification - Dept of Human 
Services 

New Jersey 7,170 9 6 2 public + 1 member of executive branch Consumer Affairs Dept of Law and 
Public Safety 

New Mexico 5 3 2public Regluation and Licensing division. 
Massage law sunsets in 2016 

New York 18,000 7 4 3 physicians State Education Dept. 

North Carolina 8,500 7 5 1+1 MD 

North Dakota 726 5 3 2 

Ohio 7 7 Advisory committee for state 
medical board 

Oregon 6,600 7 4 2 public + 1 healthcare 

Pennsylvania 8,570 8 6 2 public Part of Dept. of Health 

Rhode Island N/A N/A N/A Dept. of Health - no board 

South Carolina 4,000 7 6 1 public Dept of Labor Massage/Bodywork 
. Panel 

South Dakota 880 5 4 1 not an LMT 

Tennessee 7 5 2 Part of Dept of Health 

Texas 29,596 N/A N/A N/A Dept of State Health Services 

Utah 5 4 1 public Occupational and Professional 
Licensinq 

Virginia 7,248 N/A N/A N/A Regulated by the Board of Nursing 

Washington 13,739 5 4 1 Dept of Health 

Washington DC 4 Dept. of Health 

West Virginia 1,156 5 3 1 lay person w/ no healthcare affiliation & 1 
Osteopath or Chiropractor 

Wisconsin '• 5,360 7 6 - 1 a technical 1 public member · Dept of Safety and Professional 
college re·p & 1 a Services 
school rep 



• 

• 

• 

Testimony, Senate Bill 2294 

Steve Olson 
2808 Maple Street N. 
Fargo, ND 5 8 1 02 
70 1 .293.9482 
District 44 

To: House Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Representaive George Keiser, Chairman; Representative Gary Sukut, Vice 
Chairman; Representatives Amerman, Beadle, Becker, Boschee, 
Devlin, Frantsvog, Hanson, Kasper, Laning, Lefor, Louser, Nelson, and Ruby, 
Legislative Members. 

I am generally supportive of this bill. I have strong support for some aspects and 
objection to other pieces. 

Section 2 Amendment: Board of Massage - terms 

I strongly support the changes in composition of the Board of Massage to four 

practicing massage therapists and one consumer member. I agree that the 

consumer member should not hold a board office. I am concerned about two-thirds 

of the licensees who appear to be absent from the Board's consideration. I am 
concerned about dual relationships - board members who also serve an 

administrative function. 

I believe that having "practicing" Massage Therapists, with a minimum of 3 years 
experience, serving on the Board of Massage is important. Their understanding of the 
profession is tempered by their experience of seeing customers and this will  inform their 
Board decisions. 

The American Massage Therapy Association (AMTA), North Dakota Chapter, has said 
that the shift to one consumer member may result in a reduction of protection to the 
consumer. I disagree. The laws enacted by the Legislature and signed by the Governor 
are what serve to manage the industry and protect the consumer. The task of the five 
board members, no matter how they qualify for board membership, is to carry out the 
laws. 

I favor the limitation statements regarding the consumer member on page 2, lines 3- 1 4. 

The consumer member position can be a wild card. I presume that the consumer member 
is meant to be "neutral" - an individual that has limited understanding of the Massage 
Therapy profession. They are the "fresh" voice in board decisions. However, it is likely 
that the consumer member will be influenced by other board members, staff or other 
massage therapists and then their voice becomes the expression of another person's 
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perspective and opinion. This can potential sway Board decisions, especially with the 
current composition of2 consumer members on a board of 5 (40% of the Board). I 
believe its better to have one consumer member rather than two. 

As you ponder changes to the Governance structure of the Board of Massage, I want to 
add another component that is of concern to me. When the Massage Practice act of 1 959 
was passed, Board members were required to be members of what is now the American 
Massage Therapy Association - ND Chapter (AMTA-ND). Therefore, the Board was 
1 00% AMT A members. So, the professional organization and the regulatory Board 
members were in effect merged. This made sense at the time because virtually all 
therapists were members of AMTA. While the requirement of AMTA membership on 
the Board of Massage ended in the late 1 980's, the Board continued to be dominated by 
AMTA members. However, the demographics of the licensees has changed and AMTA 
members are now in the minority with about 35% of the total number of therapists (total 
number of licenses 726; AMTA members at 260; and other licensees at 3 86). Is it 
important that a regulatory board's composition reflect the license holders? The changes 
to Board composition in this bill may result in greater representation of the 3 86 members 
that are not affiliated with AMT A. 

There is another governance issue with the Board. Two of the current Board members 
also serve in roles that are a function of Administration. One reviews education aspects 
of applications and the other is the webmaster. So we have board members who are also 
like employees. As we learn in our ethics training, dual relationships are very tricky and I 
encourage the Board to separate these duties and responsibilities. 

I have watched the ND Board of Massage for 30 years. It has become an increasingly 
"secret society". They discourage participation in its business except by a select few that 
I call the shadow board. Its meeting minutes are not helpful in understanding the actions 
of the Board. The Board's bill, SB 2085, was approved in October but has never been 
posted on the Licensing Board's website or in the minutes. They did post a message 
regarding the initial hearing on SB 2294 and encouraged opposition. While the Board 
claims to have email addresses for all therapists, they have not alerted them to any of 
these legislative activities. Openness seems to be beyond the capabilities of this Board 
and its staff. 

· 

Section 4 Amendment: License - Display - Renewal - Renewal fee 

I do not support continuing education units for renewal of a Massage Therapist 
License. Let's join Hawaii and move to zero. For professional associations, CEU's 
are part of their marketing plan. I believe that the Board of Massage should 
regulate the profession at its entry level. CEU's are big money. AMTA and ND 

Board of Massage. 

I do support CEU' s for professions that are constantly evolving and that have a great level 
of risk. Such examples include the practices of medicine and Law and also in some 

Pj d-
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trades like construction and electrical work. Massage Therapy poses little risk to the 
consumer and is a very limited manual practice. As a profession we are much closer to a 
wellness provider than to a healthcare provider. About Y.. of the states that regulate 
massage do not require CEU' s. I'd like North Dakota to be one of them - let's join the 
Aloha State. 

My professional organization (AMTA) does have an interest in Continuing Ed because its 
mission is to "advance the art, science and practice of the massage profession". It's a 
marketing decision so that they can say its members are better than other practitioners. 
Like any organization AMT A has competition. AMTA sets its CEU requirement in 
response to its largest competitor who requires only 9 annually. 

The Board of Massage should not be acting in this arena - its task is to regulate, not to 
advance the profession. I prefer that the Board regulate the profession at the entry level . 
If a licensee wishes to practice in the manner taught in their board approved training, I 
support them. Believe me, if they succeed in sustaining a practice they will continue to 
improve their skills - we are informed by our practice. You are all aware of one kind of 
practitioner that fits this description - the person doing chair massage. 

I do encourage Massage Therapists to find post-graduate trainings that will increase their 
skill set as it will likely improve their chances of being successful in a very difficult field. 
All massage, when done well, is therapeutic. I encourage excellence . 

There is a huge financial element driving CEUs. The AMTA Chapter is by far the largest 
provided of CEUs in North Dakota. Schools/training programs, Chiropractors, and 
individual massage therapists are also presenters of these classes. There is a terrific rate 
of :financial return attached to offering these courses. These special interests will fight to 
keep money coming their way. 

Can you find classes in ND to meet the Board's CEU requirement? Yes. You can 
always take Brandi's annual December workshop in Fargo- just in time to get last minute 
credits. Can you find classes that match your interests in ND? Probably not. This means 
serious travel and expense dollars. 

The AMTA and the ND Board of Massage have a curious relationship in regard to CEU' s 
- the Board always matches the professional association levels. Not to long ago AMTA 
required 1 8  hours a year for membership renewal. When it dropped them to 1 6, so did 
the Board of Massage. Now AMTA has reduced them to 1 2  and the Board of Massage is 
following suit. However, the membership requirement for AMT A is only 500 hours of 
training while ND requires 750. If we must have CEU's for l icense renewal, we should 
reduce AMTA' s number by 50% because we have a higher number of training hours. 

My preference is for ZERO CEU's but will settle for 6 annually . 
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I do not support mandating 3 CEUs on Ethics • 

Specifying that three hours of continuing education must be in the area of ethics is not 
acceptable to me. Why? If there are specific problems that the Board is seeing in 
complains brought to its attention, simply let the licensees know about them. The Board 
is in charge of all components of massage training programs and they can bolster the 
ethics training in the basic education requirements rather than a blanket requirement 
covering all licensees. A hidden aspect of Continuing Education is that there are no 
standards for course content, so this requirement without specificity is meaningless -
ethics is a large field of study. 

It might also be helpful if the Board had some way to ensure that licensees actually read 
the laws and rules governing massage in ND. Because the Board utilizes a national exam 
for licensure, a therapist can be licensed in North Dakota without having read the laws 
that the Legislative and Executive branches enact. 

Closing 
The massage profession has been the center point of life for 30 years. Its demanding 
physical work. I have not gotten rich. I continue to practice being a professional. My 
skills continue to grow. I serve my customers. I hope my comments assist this 
committee. Thank you for hearing me . 

I welcome any questions . 
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· North Dakota Board of Massage Page 1of1 

North Dakota 

Home Consumer/Public Resources Licensing Resources Continuing Education Cont act Us 

File a Report 

Request Information 

Welcome to the Board of 
Massage! 

Check Licensees l lhe North Dakota Board of Massage is a five member 
'----- -------tre'f'!<gulatory board appointed by the Governor. Three of the 

~mbers of the board must be massage therapists who 
.___R_e_ne_w_L_ice_n_se_fo_r_2_0_1_5~J are licensed in this state. The role of the board is 

consumer protection including regulating the massage 
therapy industry in the state. We maintain licensing . 

Calendar 

There are no events 
scheduled. 

standards across the state in accordance with the North 
Dakota Century Code. 

There are currently 726 licensed Massage Therapists in 
North Dakota. 

Office hours: M-F Sam-Spm(Mountain llme} 
268-8139 

Board of Massage, 

1-877-

© 2015 North Dakota Board of Massage I ~ I Powered By EasvCMS 

Board News 

Reporting Error Notice -
Recall lapsed license list 

February 11, 2015 3:12pm 

View All Announcements 

---P3 ~ 
3/16/2015 
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·North Dakota Board of Massage Page 1of1 

I Board of Massage, 
Home Consumer/Public Resources Licensing Resources Continuing Education Contact Us 

Home » Contact Us 

North Dakota State Board of Massage 

Email the board 

Call 1-877-268-8139 for general information. 

Administration 
Karen Wojahn - Office Administrator 

Board Office and Member Status 
Jon Simmons - President/Consumer Member 

Pat Berg - Board Member/LMT 

Todd Salwey - Secretary/Treasurer/Consumer Member 

Dianne Aull Board Member/LMT 

karen.wojahn@ndboardofmassaqe.com 

jon.simmons@ndboardofmassaqe.com 

pat.berq@ndboardofmassaqe.com 

todd.salwey@ndboardofmassaqe.com 

dianne.aull@ndboardofmassaqe.com 

Wendy McGinley - Vice President/LMT wendy.rncqinley@ndboardofmassaqe.com 

All correspondence is to be mailed to: 
North Dakota State Board of Massage 
PO Box 218 
Beach, ND 58621 
phone: 1-877-268-8139 
email: karen.wojahn@ndboardofmassaqe.com 

Board of Massage, 
©2015 North Dakota Board of Massage I .l.2SL.!!l I Powered By EasyCMS 

h ttn· //UJWW_ ndhoardofinassru!e.com/contact-us/ 3/16/2015 
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· North Dakota Board of Massage Page 1 of1 

Board of Massage, 
Home Consumer/ Public Resources licensing Resources Continuing Education Contact Us 

Home » Check Licensees 

Email or call 701-872-4895 for general information. 

. Licensed Therapists 
Alexandra Gebeke 

'Alexandra Newman 

Alexandria Hedstrom -
. Alexis Hage 
Alicia Nelson 

Alisan Girodat 

'Alisen Santer 

: Alisha Greenberg 

, Alison Kindem 

Allan Galster 

Allen Kolling 

Allisen Wensman 

< 
Sheetl 

f\ 

'V 

> 

ttJ I 1--' 

Board of Massage, 
©2014 North Dakota Board of Massage I ~ I Powered By EasyCMS 

httn· //www nnhm1rrlofm~s.'IBQe.com/11censirn!/ 

··-- --- -- -- --· - . - -----
i Laesed/~pired/Revoked/Suspenc 
Alexander Huntrods -

; Alicia Ranum 

'. Alisha Ruschein~ 

! Allison Farden 
--
: Allison Picard 

·Alyssa Lundgre~ -
'Alyssa Petrie ------ -
Alyssa Vistad 

·Amanda Burke 

, Amanda Erickson 

'Amanda Gilbertson ------- ----
Amanda Vinchattle 

< 
14 '4 ~I Sheetl Sheet2 

·:::. . ~. ' . 

11/23/2014 
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·North Dakota Board of Massage 

Board of Massage, _ 1 

Home Consumer/Public Resources Licensing Resources Continuing Education 

Home » Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES OCTOBER 24. 2014 

MEETING MINUTES SEPTEMBER 12. 2014 

COMMITTEE MEETING AUGUST 29. 2014 

CONFERENCE CALL AUGUST 6. 2014 

MEETING MINUTES JUNE 13. 2014 

COMMITTEE MEETING MAY 13. 2014 

Board of Massage, 
© 2015 North Dakota Board of Massage I ~ I Powered By EasyCMS 

Page 1of1 

Contact Us 

3/16/2015 
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Board Meeting on the 1 ih Floor at the Capital 

Roll Call: Wendy McGinley, Jon Simmons, Todd Salwey, Dianne Aull, Pat Berg, Edward Erickson, 
and Karen Wojahn 

Visitors: Carla Anderson, Sara Stillwater and Michelle Tranby 

Approval of Agenda - Add- Xia Goller, and Melissa Willis 

President Jon Simmons call the meeting to order at 9:00 am, est. 

Minutes: Dianne would like year behind all Agenda Items. Send Dianne 2"d page to last report. 

Karen pointed out changes to minutes. Again Karen asks the board to call or email 
corrections before the meetings. 
Dianne made a motion to approve as corrected. Seconded by Wendy. Wendy-Aye, Jon­
Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
Karen handed out other committee minutes, and phone conference minutes, all 
unofficial. Dianne made a motion to accept. Wendy seconded. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, 
Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 

Treasurer Report: Karen went over financial report. Dianne turned in an extra expense sheet for 
the 4 days she attended the Federation meeting. Todd went over Dianne expense sheet for Law 
and Legislature meeting she attended for 3 hours, .she should have gotten $50.00 instead of 
$37.50, office to reimburse Dianne for the difference. Meeting Rate is based $100.00 for 6 
hours, it is to be prorated after that. Outside of meeting board members get $10.00 per hour. 
Karen to send out individual sheets of what needs to be turned in. 

Tammy Martin: Edward has not got a report back. When he does he will email Karen who will 
email Board members. 

Lynn Crawford: Edward hasn't had time to complete it Edward is to send a copy of letter to 
Karen. 

Fallon Saulters: Edward hasn't had time to complete it Edward is to send a copy of letter to 
Karen. 

Cindy Moser: Edward hasn't had time to complete it Edward is to send a copy of letter to Karen. 

Aff. of Compliance: Edward has redone the wording, and read it to the board. Discussion. 
Edward will give copy to Karen for application. Karen to send copy to the board . 
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Inspections: Copy form for new applicants to be put in Licensing packet . 

Wendy did inspections in Minot. Wendy to give copies to Karen so she can put them in their 
chart. 
Karen asked for permission to do Dickinson and Medora. 
Jon asks board members to get in their inspections before the end of the year. 

Federation: Wendy gave report. A lot of states have the same concerns as we do. Sexual 
offenders, human trafficking, people practicing without a license. Dianne also went to the 
meeting, she was overall pleased with her first Federal Meeting, and she reported they also 
talked about false credentials and CEU'S Discussion. 

National: They are no longer testing. 

Schools: Wendy reported on WSC program 7 will graduate and 12 are first year students. 
Michelle Tran by was at the meeting to report on Salon Professional Academy in Fargo. They 
have around 12 per class, 3 classes per year. 

AMTA: Carla Anderson, President of ND chapter of AMTA reported on their National 
Convention. She let the board know National Massage Therapy week is coming up. It is a 
time to promote massage. Carla asks if self-defense could count as 1 CEU. Karen 
encouraged Carla to send in a CEU approval sheet. Discussion on 1 CEU for a AMTA 
State meeting for a 2 year period. Diane made a motion for lhr CEU for a 2year renewal 
period from attending AMTA Annual Meeting. Pat seconded. Discussion. Jon amends 
motion 1 CEU per Annual Meeting per year. Wendy seconded. Discussion. Todd amends 
board member needs to give presentation at the meeting. Wendy seconded. Wendy­
Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-nay, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 

Li Lu : Wendy updated the board, handout was emailed to board prior to meeting. Discussion. 

Wendy to check California and Florida. Karen will check her name for complaints. Wendy to 
review and make a teach out plan. 

Xia Goller: Wendy updated the board. Wendy is waiting for a reply from the National to find out 
why the schools were revoked. 

Melissa Willis: Karen reported on a massage therapist who let her license lapse. She is trying to 
do what she needs to get licensed again. The Chiropractor that has her working didn't know 
she wasn't licensed; she apologized. 

Renewals: Karen told the board the renewal post cards will be sent the first Friday in 
November. Jon will notify LMT'S by email that site is open. Karen explains problem with license 
#, they use the wrong ones and it updates incorrect. Jon states email address must be correct in 

order to get email. 

lO 
I 

__J 
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Any other Board Business: Question was asked if we can give out a list of therapists. We have a 
list of licensed and unlicensed on website. We are a licensing board. If someone is looking for a 
therapist Karen takes their name and phone number. Karen contacts the therapist and lets 
t hem know the name and number and lets them decide whether they want to contact them or 
not. 

Tiffany Thurston: Wendy explains school was burned down. And she thinks she is the one who 
did apprenticeship Wendy will check it out. 

Jon cautions the board about giving out his personal number. Just call and give Jon their 
number and he will call them. 

Lunch : Meeting resumed at 12:44 pm 

law and legislature: Edward read the handout on criminal history record checks. 
Discussion Wendy made a motion to accept as submitted. Todd second. Wendy-Aye, 
Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
43-25-05. Board of Massage Terms. Concerns of consumer members. Discussion. Dianne 
made a motion to change 3 LMT'S to 4 LMT'S and 1 consumer. Pat seconded. 
Discussion. Wendy-nay, Jon-nay, Todd-nay, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion fails . 
"Actively practicing" -Todd made a motion to change 3 years to 2 years. Jon seconded. 
Discussion. Wendy-nay, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-nay, Dianne-nay. Motion fails. 
Dianne made a motion to except clause as written. Pat seconded. Discussion. Wendy­
Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
Todd made a motion to leave term limits language as it was before, and no more t han 6 
years consecutive years. Wendy seconded. Discussion. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, 
Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
Nor have a financial interest in massage therapy reword to read nor have a direct and 
substantial financial interest in massage therapy. Motioned by Wendy. Todd seconded. 
Discussion. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
43-25-09 License-Display-Renewal-Renewal Fee #1-Wendy made a motion to strike the 
proposed change. Dianne seconded. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne­
Aye. Motion carries. 
43-25-09 #3 Dianne made a motion to change 32 CEU's to 24 CEU's. Pat seconded. 
Discussion. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-nay, Pay-nay, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
Online hours. Wendy made a motion to reduce 12 online to 9 online hours. Jon 
seconded. Discussion. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion 
carries. 
Ethics - Todd made a motion of the 24 CEU's, 3 CEU's must be ethics every 2 years. 
Dianne seconded. Discussion. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. 
Motion carries . 
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Break: 

#3.b. Dianne made a mode to accept language. Pat seconded. Discussion. Wendy-Aye, 
Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
#3.c. Wendy made a motion to accept language. Pat seconded. Discussion. Wendy-Aye, 
Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
#3.d. Dianne made a motion to accept language. Not second. Motion Dies. 
#4. Motion by Todd to accept language. Wendy seconded. Discussion. Wendy-Aye, Jon­
Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 

43-25-10 #2. Motion by Wendy to accept language. Pat seconded. Discussion. Wendy­
Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
#3. Wendy made a motion to accept language. Dianne seconded. Discussion. Wendy­
Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
43-25-14. Wendy made a motion to accept language. Dianne seconded. Discussion. 
Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
43-25-18. Pat made a motion to accept language. Todd seconded. Wendy-Aye, Jon-Aye, 
Todd-Aye, Pay-Aye, Dianne-Aye. Motion carries. 
Edward to combine both bil ls. 

• Note copy of Law and Legislature proposed bil l attached to minutes. 

Adjourn - Motion by Todd. Seconded by Wendy. 

• Next meeting January 23, 2014 at 9:30am, est. 

Adjourn - Motion by Todd seconded by Wendy . 

• 
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Senate B i l l  No. 2294 

S-6 ;A �  Cf 144,15" 3) 1 7} 15 

Wendy McG i n ley, LMT and Vice President, ND Board of Massage 

March 17, 2015 

Good afternoon Chairman Ke iser and members of the Ind ustry, Busi ness and Labor 

Committee. My name is Wendy McGin ley and I am the V ice Pres ident of  the ND Board of 

M assage.  I am a l i censed massage therapist, a l icensed physical therapist assistant and 

the Program Coord i nator and I nstructor fo r the massage therapy prog ram at Wi l l i ston 

State Col lege. I am here to expla in why the ND Board of Massage stands in opposit ion of 

Senate B i l l  No. 2294. 

Section 2 - Under  #la - The Board of Massage does not support chang ing  Board 

membersh ip  to 4 massage therapists and 1 consumer member. In 2001, du ring  the 57� 

Legis lative Assem bly (H B 1155), the board composit ion changed from 3 members to 5 

members with the two add it ional members be ing consumer members. The on ly 

requ i rement for be ing a massage therapist on the board was that they be l icensed i n  the 

state. SB 2294 states that the massage therapist be "active ly practic ing" .  What exactly 

does that mean? If someone is l icensed, but on ly does one massage a month, is that 

"active ly p ract ic i ng"? Or  how about one massage a year? Is there a certai n amount of 

hours that they must be performing massage,  or  a certai n amount of money that they are 

to make to be considered "actively practic i ng"? Who is go ing to verify th is and how is that 

go ing  to be done when look ing at who wou ld  qual i fy to s i t  on the board? 

U nder  #lb - The Board of Massage does not support the l i sted l i m itat ions p laced on who 

could qual ify for the consumer member posit ion. The on ly requ i rement for the consu mer 

member pr ior to th is leg is lative sess ion was that they may not be a massage therapist or  

have an i m med iate fami ly member that was a massage therapist. The FSMTB Model  

P ractice Act (page 8) recommends that the consumer member be a resident of  the state 

for no fewer than 3 years, is 21 years of age, and shal l  not be nor ever been a massage 

therapist or spouse of a massage therapist, or  a person who has had a material fi nancial 

interest i n  the profess ion of massage therapy. When has it h u rt the board to have a 

consu mer be l i censed i n  another health care f ie ld? 



Cu rrently there are 5 states that requ i re an educator to be on the i r  board (Kentucky, 

M issouri ,  O h io ,  V i rg i n ia, and Wisconsin) ;  and 9 states that requ i re a professional or  

phys ic ian member to be on the i r  board (Lou is iana, Maryland, M ississ ipp i ,  Montana, New 

Jersey, New York, North Caro l i na, Oregon and West Vi rg i n ia) .  

I f  Section 2 passes, as it i s  written ,  two of  the cu rrent board members wou ld  not  q ual i fy to 

be on the board . 

Section 3 - Under  #2 - The Board of Massage doesn't necessari ly su pport chang ing  the 

word "may" to "shal l "  u nder i nspections of massage establ ishments. On  l i ne 30 - what 

does "pe riod ical ly i nspect" mean? Every 5 years? We do i nspections every year al ready. 

I f  more i nspections are wanted or needed we could i ncrease th is nu mber adm i n istratively 

- and not through a B i l l .  And, what happens if an estab l ishment doesn't get i nspected 

du ri ng  that "per iodic" t ime span? 

Al l other  sect ion changes are s im i lar to or the same as what the ND Board of Massage 

i ntroduced i n  Senate B i l l  No. 2085 that was heard on January 12m by the Senate Industry, 

Business and Labor Committee where it received a 7-0 Do Pass vote and heard by the fu l l  

Senate on January 14m and received a u nan i mous vote of  43-0. I t  was most recently heard 

by this comm ittee on March 9m. 

I wou ld  l i ke to thank you for you r t ime and I wou ld  be happy to answer any questions you 

may have for me at th is  t ime. 

• 
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• 



McGinley, Wendy 
Wendy McGin ley <wendymcginley@ hotmai l .com> 
Monday, March 16, 2015 12:08 PM 
McGin ley, Wendy 
FW: SB 2294 Massage 

Wendy McGin ley 

F ro m : wendymcgi n ley@ hot m a i l .com 

To : gkeiser@ n d .gov; gsukut @ n d .gov; bamerm a n @ n d .gov; tbead l e @ n d . gov; rcbecker@ n d . gov; 

j bosch ee@ n d .gov; bdevl i n @ nd .gov; rfra ntsvog@ nd.gov; bwh a nson @ n d .gov; j kasper@ nd .gov; 

vrl a n i n g @ n d .gov; m l efor@nd.gov; sclouser@ nd .gov; menelson @ n d .gov; d ru by@ nd .gov 

S u bj ect: SB 2294 M a ssage 

Date: Mon,  16 M a r  2015 12 :07 : 16 -0500 

I n d u stry, Bus iness a n d  La bor Com m ittee:  

M y  n a m e  is Wendy McGin ley and I a m  a l i censed massage therapist a n d  a m e m ber of the N D  Board of •ssage. I a m  asking that when you hear  test imony tomorrow rega rd ing SB 2294 that you know how we h ave 

me to th is  po int -

August 29 - m eeti n g  rega rd i ng possi ble law changes 

Septem ber 12 - meeting rega rding poss ib le  law cha nges 

Septem ber 26 - m eeting rega rding poss ib le  law changes 

representatives from the 

October 24 - q u a rterly Board meeting 

A l l  possib l e  law changes b rought to the Board of M assage, Board voted on each proposed 

option, resu lts went i nto SB 2085 

J a n u a ry 6 - SB 2085 i ntroduced, fi rst readi ng, referred to I B L  Com m ittee 

J a n u a ry 12 - testimony on SB 2085 to the Senate I n d u stry, Bus iness a n d  Labor Co m m ittee 

J a n u a ry 13 - Do Pass 7-0; J a n u a ry 14 - Pass 43-0 

Board m e m bers - D i a n n e  Au l l ,  Pat Berg, Wendy M cG i n ley - were present at m eeting a n d  in 

s u p port of SB 2085; D ianne Au l l  gave support ing test imony 

J a n u a ry 19 - SB 2294 i ntroduced, fi rst read ing, referred to Senate GVA Com m ittee 

Edward Erickson made Board aware of SB 2294 on J a n u ary 26 

J a n u a ry 23 - q u arterly Board m eeting 

• Board m e m bers (Jon S imm ons, Dr.  Tod d Salwey, Wendy McGin ley sti l l  not awa re of SB 2294; no 

m ention of SB 2294 at Board meeting) 



J a n u a ry 26 - fu l l  Board made aware of SB 2294 

J a n u a ry 28 - phone conference rega rd ing SB 2294 

Board m e m bers D i a n n e  Aul l  and Pat Berg ( both LMTs) stated that they wi l l  su pport ing  SB 2 294 

February 13 - test imony on SB 2294 to the Senate Government and Vetera ns Affa i rs Cmte 

Febru ary 23 - Amended;  Do Pass 4-3; Second readi ng, passed, 3 1-15 

Board m e m b ers Wendy M cG i n ley, Dr.  Tod d Sa lwey, Jon S immons spoke against S B  2294 

Board m e m bers D ianne A u l l  and Pat Berg spoke in  support of SB 2294 

M a rch 9 - test imony on SB 2085 to the House I n d u stry, Business and Labor Com m ittee 

Board m e m ber, Wendy McGin l ey, Exec Secreta ry, Karen Wojahn,  as wel l  as legal  counsel, 

Edward Er ickson, spoke in  support of SB 2085; Rissa Wi l l i a m s, LMT, a lso spoke in  support of SB 

2085 

Former Board mem ber, G a i l  Hovd en, made a statem ent that she was against SB 2085 and is  

s u p port ing SB 2294; Dianne Au l l  a n d  Pat Berg were p resent and agai nst SB 2085 

M a rch 17 - testi mony to be heard on SB 2294 

• 

A lot of work went i nto SB 2085 a n d  I conti n u e  to fu l ly support it. The items that you see i n  S B  2294 a re those 

items that were not passed by the fu l l  Board of M assage. The way that SB 2294 is  written, i n  regards to boa rd 

com position a n d  the st i p u lations p laced on who can or can not be a consumer m e m ber or massage therapist 

a p poi nted to the Board, wou l d  e l i m i nate 3 of the 5 board mem bers. Th e on ly  two mem bers left on t h e  Board 

wou ld be the two that helped propose SB 2294. 

So, the q u est ions I a m  aski ng you to consider a re :  • 
1. Why do we n eed to cha nge the com position of the board at th is  t ime? Is the board not doing what it i s  

tasked t o  do? W h y  try cha nging the composition t o  4 - 1  v s  3-2 ( LMTs t o  consumer members)?  T h e  Federation 

of State Massage Thera py Boards is  recommending a com position of 5-2 ( LMTs to consumer m e m bers) .  I 

e m a i l ed D i a n n e  A u l l  regarding th is  very option and she thought 5 LMTs for a state o u r  size was too m a ny. 

wou l d  p refer t h at our board com position stay as it is, but wou ld not be agai nst a com posit ion of 5-2.  

2 .  What does " a ctively practice" massage thera py mean as it is written on l ine 18 of page 1 i n  SB 2294? I am a 

l icensed massage thera pist i n  N D. I com plete a l l  of my cont inu ing education, pay my renewal fee on t ime, a n d  

a m  l icensed to p ractice massage i n  N D. BUT - I a m  an educator. I teach m assage thera py, I a m  massagi ng at 

least two d ays a week in c lass with the students, I do vo lu nteer massages in  the com m u n ity at m u lti p l e  events, 

but I do not h ave an active practice a n d  do not ch arge those that I do work on at p u bl ic  events. Does th is  

mean t h at I a m  not " active ly p ractic ing" ? At least 5 state massage l icensing boards req u i re an educator to be 

on the board. My job on the board is  to look at every a p p l icant's education and see if it m eets N D  

req u i rements.  I f  it does not, I give recom men dations to meet the req u i rements. 

3 .  Why e l i m i nate a con s u m e r  member and put so m a ny sti p u lations on who that member can or  ca n 't be? 

Respectfu l ly, • 
Wendy McGi nley 
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McGinley, Wendy 

Subject: 

Dianne Aul l  < d ianneau l l @yahoo.com> 
Friday, February 27, 2015 12:30 PM 
wendy.mcgi nley@ndboardofmassage.com 
RE: SB 2294 

We d id look at the model practice act. However, we only have a l ittle over 700 LMTs so that wou ld be 
one board member for every 100 therapists and that seemed l ike a super h igh ratio when you 
compare to other states with much larger numbers. Also , it wou ld throw off the budget for being able 
to inspect every establ ishment every 2 or 3 years, which everyone thought to be an important leg of 
the law. 

It is my bel ief that the only problem that wou ld be solved by expanding to a 7 member board wou ld be 
the temporary d iscomfort we are a l l  having right now in considering th is change, and that in  the long 
ru n it wou ld create more problems. 
It' s  hard to imagine LMTs on the board wou ld side with col leagues who are violating ou r law since 
infractions hu rt ou r entire profession and thereby hu rt each of us. The pu rpose of consumer members 
is rea l ly just to add another perspective that we might not have thought of. 

The legislatu re previou sly put an extra consumer member on ou r board because there was infighting 
on the board and they thought it might remedy that. I can't remember offhand which year that was but 
I d id read through  the minutes of that hearing and there was noth ing to i nd icate that they meant it to • a solution for t i l l  the end of time. 

All that being said , the committee that hears this bi l l  can recommend any amendments, and it wou ld 
be completely appropriate for you to suggest the seven member option as a possible amendment in 
you r testimony. There may be others who agree with you . I' m su re you 're aware that they amended it 
a lready to take off the 15 year  CE U thing and that was because of testimony people gave. 

Also , I hope you u nderstand that I th ink you are real ly good board member and have been working 
rea l ly hard and I personal ly appreciate that. I feel sad that you wou ld feel hu rt or insu lted by any of 
this because none of this has anything to do with anyone personal ly. This is business; not personal. I 
bel ieve ou r board cou ld and shou ld function better, and needs to function in a way that is independent 
of any ind ividual so that as people move off the board , there is no problem for the next board member 
to step into their shoes and continue to move forward. 

I n  North Dakota , ou r profession is stuck. We are not growing and in  fact we lose as many massage 
therapist as we add every year because it's  so hard and so expensive to be l icensed in this state. 
Massage therapist have been ta lking about these problems for years and years and we real ly feel l i ke 
something has to change and this is a place to start. 

Sorry, that' s maybe a longer answer that you were looking for 

Sent from Yahoo Mai l  for iPhone 

.t Feb 27, 20 1 5, 1 0 :09: 1 0  AM, Wendy McGinley<'wendy.mcginley@ndboardofmassage.com'> wrote: 
Dianne: 



Quick question -

Did you ever look at the Model Practice Act put out by the FSMTB regarding 
their view on board composition prior to drafting SB 2294? If not, it 
states/suggests that a Board be comprised of no fewer than seven members. 
Five shall be massage therapists and two shall be consumer members. Did 
you, and whoever else worked on the Bill, consider this as an option? 
This would ensure representation of professionals and consumers for public 
protection. I would be more willing to accept this option vs the 41 1 that 
is being asked for in 2294. It was a legislative action that placed two 
consumer members on the board and I feel that two consumers should remain. 

Thoughts? 

Wendy McGinley 

• 

• 

• 
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FSMTB MISSION STATEMENT 

The m ission of the Federation is to support its Member Boa rds 
i n  the ir  work to ensu re that the practice of massage thera py is  

provided to the pub l ic i n  a safe a nd effective man ner . 

Copyright © 2 0 1 4 .  Federation of State Massage Thera py Boards. A l l  r ights reserved.  

Perm ission is g ra n ted to boa rds of massage therapy to use or reproduce a l l  or  parts of th is  docu ment for 
l icensu re-related pu rposes only. Nonprofit ed u cation progra m s  have permission to u se or reproduce al l  or p a rts 
of th is  docu ment for educational pu rposes o nly. Use or reproduction of this docu ment for com me rcial  or for-profit 
u se is strictly prohi bited . 

Any a utho rized reproduction of this document shal l  display the notice : "Copyright by the Federation of State 
M assage Therapy Board s .  A l l  rig hts reserved ." Or, if  a portion of the document is reprod uced or i n corporated in  
other materials, such w ritten materi a ls sha l l  inc lude the fol lowing cred i t :  "Portions copyrig hted by the Federation 
of State M assage Thera py Board s .  All rig hts reserved ." 

Ad d ress copyright perm ission req uests in  writi ng to : Executive Di rector, FSMTB, 1080 1 M astin Bouleva rd , Su ite 
420, Overland Pa rk, Ka nsas, 662 1 0 .  
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I NTRODUCTION 
The Federat ion o f  State Massage Therapy Boa rds ( FSMTB) is  p leased to present the 
FSMTB Model  Massage Therapy Practice Act . This docu ment is  the cu lm inat ion of 42 
months of deve lopment u ndertaken by the FSMTB Model  Practice Act Task Fo rce i n  
conj u nct ion with the FSMTB Board of D i rectors . I n  add ition ,  the Federat ion sol ic ited 
and  rece ived com ments from i nterested sta keho lders and i n put from the pub l ic was 
col lected through  two p u bl ic com ment periods .  I n put  from the pub l ic provided the 
Task Force and Boa rd of D i rectors with n u merous perspectives before fi na l i z ing the 
docu ment .  It m u st be emphasized that the Model  Practice Act is  a fl u id docu ment 
subj ect to period ic review and mod ification as c i rcu mstances d ictate . The FSMTB 
Boa rd of D i recto rs i ntends to cha rge a com m ittee with the ongo ing respons ib i l it ies 
of cons istent rev iew of the M odel  Practice Act and with mak ing recommendations for 
mod ifi cat ion where necessary. 

Massage Therapy in the U n ited States has evo lved via many d iffere nt pathways, 
in both a forma l ized fash ion  and v ia aven ues that are fa r less form a l .  One of the 
fi rst schools of Massage Therapy in the U n ited States was esta b l ished in 1 9 1 6 ;  as 
the i m m i g rant  popu lat ion g rew, they brought  with them the cu ltu ra l  norms that 
the practice was a fu ndamenta l pa rt qf the ir  health serv ices; a nd the ongo ing 
i ntroduct ion of  laws add ressed the protect ion of  tit le to  recog n ize the practice as an 
esta b l ished profession . Today, Massage Therap ists a re freq uently worki ng with  other 
profess iona ls  as pa rt of a tea m of hea lth ca re prov iders yet they a re often exc luded 
from rece iv ing com pensation d ue to lack of both sta ndard ization and recogn it ion as 
a n  esta b l ished p rofession .  Massage Therap ists a re often a first poi nt of contact for 
the consu mer  i n  prevention ,  identifi cation,  assessment, treatment and rehab i l itat ion 
of many patho log ies a nd cond it ions .  The need for reg u lat ion to fac i l i tate the primary 
Boa rd respons ib i l i ty of protect ing the pub l ic a nd reg u lat ing the profession is  of 
pa ramount im porta nce.  

The i ntent of th is  docu ment is  to provide a com prehensive resou rce to FSMTB 
Mem ber Boa rds  a nd Agencies a nd to assist reg u lators with statutory language based 
u pon the co l lective wisdom of the Massage Thera py reg u latory com m u n ity. FSMTB is 
keen ly  aware of the need for flexi b i l i ty in d raft ing statutes a nd ru les/reg u latio ns as 
we l l  as the rig hts of each particu lar  ju risd ict ion to add ress the u n ique needs of each 
state . However, and as set forth in its m ission,  v is ion a nd va lues stateme nts, FSMTB 
prom otes u n iform ity where appropriate and the Model  Practice Act is  i ntended to 
enhance th is  m ission . 

The com ponent e lements of the scope of practice i nc luded th ree determ i nants :  
( 1 )  a n  esta b l i shed h istory of i nc lus ion i n  education and tra i n i n g ;  
( 2 )  a n  esta bl ished h isto ry o f  i nc lus ion i n  c l i n ica l practice ; a n d  
( 3 )  specifi c  statutory a uthority. 

Readers are encou raged to study the defi n it ion of the scope of practice to u ndersta nd 
the co:ifi nes of the reg u lated practice . Th is  step is  very i m porta nt as the profession  
prog resses to  a u n iform ly reg u lated practice . I n  add it ion,  the  document refers to 
licenses, states, and boards as u n iform term i nology but the use of these and  other 
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generic terms is with a l l  due  respect to a l te rnative words and p h rases that descri be 
a reg u lated profess ion .  It is noted that states, territories, commonwealths, districts and  • other descri ptive terms a re used to identify the num erous j u risd ictions .  Also, license, 

register, certify and  other terms are used to identify the reg u latory credenti a l .  

FSMTB i s  u ndersta nd ing of the need for a certa i n  amount of custom ization necessa ry 
to a l low for the co ncepts conta i ned i n  th is mode l to be of assista nce i n  each 
j u risd iction .  However, the M odel  Massage Therapy Practice Act does emphas ize a 
scope of practice a nd the need for protection of the various tit les used by l icensees . 
Readers w i l l  a l so note the protected phrases identify ing the many te rms and 
acronyms used with i n  the  profession . Aga i n ,  the  i ntent is to protect the pub l ic by 
l im it ing both the practice and the use of identified terms and acronyms to those d u ly 
l i ce nsed by the Boa rd . 

From a fo rmatt ing perspective, the Model  Massage Therapy Practice Act is set u p  i n  a 
way that i nc ludes the suggested statutory language in  the left co l u m n  with selected 
comments and  other explanations i n  the rig ht co l u m n .  It is emphasized that wh i le 
debate and d iscussions occu rred on v i rtu a l ly  every aspect of the suggested mode l  
l ang uage,  not a l l  such d iscussions ca n ,  nor shou ld be ca ptu red i n  the com ments . 
Comments a re inc luded i n  sections where s ign ifica nt debate a nd d iscussion took 
p lace ,  as wel l as in a reas where pa rticu l a r  interest, debate a nd/or controversy were 
identified i n  the op in ion of the expertise of the task force mem bers .  FSMTB a lso 
re l ied u pon reg u latory experts and lega l  cou nsel for edit ing and citations to re leva nt 
j u risprudence where necessary. • 
Readers a re enco u raged to refer to and use the FSMTB Mode l  Massage Therapy 
Practice Act as  necessa ry and w ith in  the confi nes of the reg u latory structu res of 
the i r respective state . As noted,  th is is a fl u id document subject to mod ification as 
deemed necessa ry. Readers a re encouraged to provide FSMTB staff with written 
questions and  suggestions for review and considerat ion . Of cou rse, FSMTB Membe r  
Boa rds a n d  Agencies a lso have a mecha n ism through the reso lut ion process to 
sti m u late constructive debate and d iscussions rega rd i ng futu re cha nges to the 
FSMTB M ode l  Massage Therapy Practice Act . 

Aga in ,  the FSMTB Boa rd of D i rectors and Member Boa rds and Agencies shou ld  be 
proud of this ve ry im porta nt resou rce docu ment .  We convey a specia l  tha n ks to 
the M ode l  Practice Act Task Force mem bers and other contri butors who made th is  
docu ment a rea l i ty. The vo lu nteers provided cou ntless hours of their  t ime to the 
project a nd thei r effo rts are hereby acknow ledged a nd recog n ized . We inv ite both 
you r use of this Model Massage Thera py Practice Act and you r  ongoing i nterest i n  
futu re ve rs ions of th is essentia l resou rce for Member Boa rds a n d  Agencies a nd the 
pu b l ic  we serve.  

T 
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A RTICLE I .  TITLE, PU R POSE 

SECTION 1 01 .  TITLE OF ACT 

This Act sha l l  be known as 
the ( name of j u risd iction)  
Massage Thera py Practice Act . 

SECTION 1 01 .  TITLE OF ACT 

The decision to name the Act, 
" Massage Thera py Practice Act," 
is based on h istorica l use of 
term i no logy in the U n ited States,  
on consumer recog n it ion of terms, 
on lega l  recommendations,  a nd on 
the s im i larity of job tasks performed 
by an i ncreasi ng ly wide ra nge of 
practit ioners .  

The FSMTB M odel  Practice Act 
Task Force spent considera b le 
t ime d iscuss ing term i nology and is  
sym pathetic to  the va riety of  terms 
and phrases used throug hout  the 
ind ustry a nd reg u lation thereof. 
I ndeed, the tit le of the docu m ent 
was the subj ect of  s ig n ificant debate 
a nd d iscussion before a rriv ing  at a 
tit le that i ncl udes practice sometim es 
referred to as " bodywork," yet p laces 
the consumer as the g u id i ng fo rce i n  
terms o f  recog nit ion a nd use o f  the 
term " Massage Therapy." The i ntent 
of the tit le " M assage Therapy Practice 
Act" is to ca ptu re the broad a n d  
va ry ing te rms, p h rases and scopes 
i nto one u n iversal  t itl e .  This decis ion 
was based , i n  part, on recog n i tion 
of the many approaches to practice, 
but is not meant to create d ifferi ng 
scopes, nor  exem ptions, for each 
such approach . 

With the selection of the t it le 
" Massage Therapy Practice Act," the 
reg u lation of Massage Thera py is 
i ncl usive of bodywork approaches to 
professiona l  practice that man ipu late 
soft-tissue or  use structu red touch . 
The focus of reg u lat ion is u pon p u b l ic  
protect ion,  primar i ly  consumers 

'( 

• 
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SECTION 1 02. LEGISLATIVE 

DECLARATION 

The pu rpose of th is Act is to protect the 
hea lth ,  safety and  welfare of the pu bl,i c .  
The Leg is latu re dec lares that the practice 

I VI l M "-;'-;A ' "  1-' E:-RA "( F ' i � E:  ACT 

receiv ing massage thera py serv ices, 
a nd as such , Massage Thera py is the 
term that is used and recog n ized 
by a large percentage of the 
consu m ing pub l ic with nea r u n iversal 
recog nition .  In add ition ,  M assage 
Therapy is recog n ized by the 
professions and society at l a rge ,  and 
it is the most preva lent desig nation 
used by States that inc lude the 
practice of bodywork i n  reg u lation . 

Bodywork methods based on 
movement or  the man ipu lation 
of energy where the body is not 
physica l ly  touched,  would not be 
reg u lated by this Act . However, 
a ny practitioner, rega rd less of the 
tit le desig nation he or she adopts, 
that uses methods that m a n i pu late 
soft-tissue and a re covered by the 
Massage Thera py scope of practice, 
would be su bject to the provis ions of 
th is  Act . Practitioners who man ipu late 
soft-tissue in any way, must ho ld 
Massage Thera py credentia ls as 
defi ned in th is  Act. 

This M odel  Massage Therapy Practice 
Act attem pts to br ing together a 
u n ified system of recog n it ion that 
w i l l  protect the consu mer and assist 
i n  porta b i l ity of l icensu re .  The broad 
u m bre l la of the M ode l  Practice Act 
w i l l  most effective ly protect the 
pub l ic i n  the futu re as the profession 
conti nues to g row. 

SECTION 1 02. LEGISLATIVE 

DECLA RATION 

It must be specifi ca l ly recogn ized 
that the protection of the pub l ic is 
the pu rpose for the enactment of th is 
Practice Act . A legis lative 



of Massage Thera py is a healthcare 
profess ion i n  need of reg u lation and that 
o n ly q u a l ified persons be permitted to 
engage i n  the practice as defi ned here i n .  

I t  is  decla red that t h e  practice of 
Massage Thera py merit and rece ive the 
confide nce of the p u bl ic through the 
enforcement of this Act, a ny app l ica b le 
reg u lat ions,  and other releva nt laws. It is 
fu rther declared that this Act is i ntended 
to fu l ly  occu py the ent ire field of Massage 
Therapy and that any city, cou nty, or 
su bdiv is ion thereof is proh ib ited from 
adopti ng laws that i nfri nge on the scope 
of th is Act . Th is  Act sha l l  be l i bera l ly 
construed to effectu ate the broad 
pu rpose of protect ing the hea lth,  safety 
and  welfa re of the pub l ic .  

SECTION 1 03.  DEFIN ITIONS 

(A) Appl ica nt means an i nd ivid ua l  
see king l ice nsu re u nder th i s  Act who 
has subm itted a n  app l ication a nd fee 
to the Boa rd . 

( B )  Approved Massage Therapy 
Education Prog ram means a 
school or  ed ucationa l  program that 
meets the criteria estab l ished i n  
ru le b y  the Boa rd ,  a t  a m in imum 
inc l udes 625 C lock Hours, and i s  
both authorized i n  the  j u risd iction 
in wh ich it is located and that 
reflects a cu rricu l u m  accepta ble to 
a n  accred it ing body recognized by 
the U . S .  Departm ent of Education . 
Ed ucat ion rece ived outside of the 

declaration is  an  essent ia l  com ponent 
to set forth the pu rpose of the law 
and affi rmatively state the pu b l ic  
protect ion m issio n .  

Based u pon recent case law, th is  
declaration a lso i nc ludes a n  i ntent for 
the statute to encom pass the ent ire 
fie ld of reg u lati ng the profess ion ,  to 
the exc lus ion of ad hoc reg u lat ion o n  
a loca l basis.  

Fu rther, the pu b l ic  confidence is 
dependent u pon the state to eva luate 
and affi rm the q ua l ifications for 
l icensure of Massage Thera pists, thus  
ensur ing the pub l ic safety through  
l icensure a nd reg u lation .  

SECTION 1 03.  DEFI N ITIONS 

Defi n it ions of terms used throug hout  
the Mode l  Practice Act a re necessa ry 
to ensu re that terms a re defi ned and 
cons iste ntly used throug hout the 
docu ment a nd provide the basis fo r 
the lega l  i nterpretat ion of the law by 
reg u lators ,  leg is lators and  cou rts . 
Readers w i l l  note that ca pita l ized 
terms used th roughout  the Model  
Practice Act ca n be fou n d  i n  the 
defin it ions sectio n .  

SECTION 1 03(8) .  DEFIN ITIONS 

( B) Consistent with the 
com prehensive review and ana lyses 
u ndertaken by the E ntry Leve l 
Ana lysis Project ( ELAP) workg rou p, 
the Model  Practice Act acknowledges 
the 625 hours of entry- leve l 
education recommended by the ELAP . 
The ELAP recommends that the 625 
hou rs inc lude the  fo l lowing co ntent 
a reas : 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

U n ited States must be su bsta ntia l ly 
eq u iva lent to the criteria of th is  
Act a nd must be recog n ized by the 
j u ri sd ict ion in  wh ich it is located . 

) l  

1 .  Massage Theory and Pri nc ip les 
2 .  Massage Profess iona l  Practices 
3 .  The Thera peutic Re lationsh ip  
4 .  Anatomy, Physio logy, and 

Pathology 
5.  Assessment and Docu me ntation 
6 .  Massage and Bodywork 

Appl ication 
7 .  Pa l pat ion a nd M ovement 
8 .  Ada pt ing Sessions for C l ients; 

and  
9 .  Ca reer Development 

It is  the i ntent of the Model  Practice 
Act to suggest that the deta i l s  of 
the educationa l  req u i rements be 
promu lgated i nto ru les/reg u lat ions,  
rather than specifica l ly  i nc luded i n  
the statute . The specifics of the ELAP 
fi n d i ngs and recommendat ions ca n 
be fou nd i n  a separate document 
(www. e la pmassage . org )  . 

I n  add it ion to the recogn it ion of the 
ELAP recomme ndations, i t  i s  i nte nded 
that eventua l ly a l l  those who enter 
the profession sha l l  have rece ived a n  
accred ited education . Accred itat ion 
ena bles State Boards to approve 
massage schoo ls through  a nationa l ly 
esta b l ished sta ndard of accred itat ion 
and would promote ed ucationa l  
qua l ity and i ncrease porta b i l ity by  
e l i m i nating the  need for i n d iv idua l  
states to  devise the i r  own sta ndards .  

Cu rrent ly, prog ram matic 
accred itation is  ava i lab le  for a d iverse 
a rray of prog rams such as Asian  
bodywork therapy, Massage Therapy, 
structu ra l  i nteg rat ion and  reflexology. 
However, d u ri n g  a tra nsit iona l  
period before accred itat ion is  
accepted as a sta ndard of ed ucation ,  
as the  profession evo lves, it  i s  
recommended that a l l  educationa l  
i nstitut ions adopt a cu rricu l u m  that 



reflects the ELAP recommendat ions • and that is  acce pta ble to a n  
accred it i ng body recog n ized b y  the 
U . S .  Department of Educatio n .  

(C)  Boa rd means the State Boa rd of 
Massage Thera py as provided 
in this Act or  i ts authorized 
represe ntatives.  

( D )  C l ient  mea ns the i nd iv idua l  that SECTION 1 03(D) .  DEFI N ITIONS 
seeks o r  receives Massage Therapy 
services. C l ient  status i s  not ( D )  The C l ient defi n it ion i s  
dependent on b i l l i ng or  payment of i nc l usive of Massage Therapy 
fees for such serv ices . serv ices provided w ith or  without 

com pensatio n .  Massage Therapy 
practice as defi ned i nc ludes serv ice 
w ithout com pensati o n .  C l ient  and 
Pat ient may be used i nterchangeab ly. 

( E) C lock Hour  means a fu l l  s ixty (60)  
m i n ute per iod, w i th  at least fifty 
( 50)  m i n utes of i nstruction or  • l earn ing  activit ies . 

( F) Consumer Member means a perso n 
who is  a resident of th is  state for 
not fewer than th ree ( 3 )  years ,  who 
has atta i ned 21 years of age,  and 
sha l l  not be nor ever have been a 
Massage Therap ist or  the spouse 
thereof, or  a pe rson who has had 
a materia l  fi na ncia l i nterest in the 
profession of Massage Therapy. 

( G )  Conti n u i ng Education means SECTION 1 03(G).  DEFIN ITIONS 
ed ucation and tra i n i n g  that 
ma inta i ns, improves, or  enha nces (G)  The Practice Act em powe rs 
Massage Therapy practice . the Boa rd to approve and  recog n ize 

Conti nu i ng  Ed ucati o n .  Such 
de legation of authority from the state 
leg is latu re to a governmental  agency 
is  co nstitutiona l ly acceptab le .  

• 



• ( H )  Conti n u i ng Professiona l  Com petence 
means a set of req u i rements 
Licensees m ust meet that a re 
des ig ned to ensu re the m i n i m u m  
sta ndards necessa ry for pub l ic 
protect ion and l ice nsure renewa l .  

• 

• 

( I )  Convict ion sha l l  i nc lude a fi nd ing  of 
g u i lt, an adm iss ion of g u i l t  or p lea 
of no lo  contendere,  regard less of 
adjud icatio n .  

( J )  Cu rrent ly E n ro l led Student means a 
student who is  actively part ic ipat ing 
i n  an Approved Massage Thera py 
Ed ucat ion Progra m .  

( K) Exa m i nation means a standard ized 
test or exa mi nat ion of entry- level 
massage and  bodywork knowledge,  
ski l ls ,  a nd a b i l i t ies that  is  developed 
and  admi n istered by the Federation 
of State Massage Therapy Boa rds 
and a pproved by the Boa rd . 

( L) Fe lony means  a cri m i n a l  act as 
defined by this state or any other 
state, or  by defi n it ion u nder  federa l  
law.  

( M )  Fi na l  Adverse Act ions u nder th is  
statute a re i ntended to encom pass, 
at a m i n i m u m ,  a l l  actions that 
req u i re report ing to state or federa l  
a uthorit ies, i ncl ud ing  b u t  not l i m ited 
to the Hea lthcare I nteg rity and 
Protect ion Data Ba n k  ( H IPDB)/ 
Nat iona l  Practit ioner Data Bank 
( N PDB) . 
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SECTION 1 03( 1 ). DEFIN ITIONS 

( I )  The Convict ion defi n it ion i s  
i ntended to  i nc lude  a l l  resu lts that 
a re entered by the cri m i n a l  cou rt .  

SECTION 1 03(M) .  DEFINITIONS 

( M )  Fi na l  Adverse Act ion means 
any act ion taken or  order entered 
by the Boa rd ,  whether throug h  a 
consent agreement, as  the resu lt of 
a contested heari ng ,  i ssued th rough  
a letter of  repr imand/admon it ion/ 
wa rn ing ,  or  other action aga i nst a 
Licensee, Appl icant or  i nd iv id u a l  
w h i c h  is  p u b l i c  i nformation u nder 
app l ica ble law and  w h ich im pacts the 
l icensure status or  record , practice 
status or  record , or  other re lated 
practice priv i leges .  Fi na l  Adverse 



( N )  Licensee means a perso n d u ly 
l i censed u nder  this Act . 

(0)  Massage Therapist means an  
i nd iv idua l  l i censed to practice 
Massage Thera py. 

( P ) Massage Thera py means the 
practice defi ned i n  Sect ion 1 04 .  

SECTION 1 04. PRACTICE OF MASSAGE 

TH ERAPY 

(A) The practice of Massage Therapy 
means the manua l  app l i cation of a 
system of structu red touch to the 
soft t issues of the human  body, 
i nc lud ing but not l i m ited to : 

( 1 )  Assessment, eva l uation ,  or  
treatment;  

( 2 )  Pressu re, frict ion,  strok ing ,  
rocki ng ,  g l i d i ng ,  knead ing ,  
percussion or  v ibratio n ;  

( 3 )  Active or  passive stretch ing o f  the 
body with in  the normal 
anatom ica l ra nge of movement; 

( 4) Use of manua l  methods or  
mechan ica l or  e lectrica l devices 
or  too ls that m im ic or  enhance 
the action of human  hands;  

Actions inc lude,  i n  add it ion to the • above and  without l i m itations,  den ia l  
of  l icensu re app l ications,  den ia l  
of  l icensu re renewal app l ications,  a nd 
su rrender of l icensu re .  Boa rd actions 
or orders are F ina l  Adverse Actio ns 
i rrespective of any  pend ing a ppea ls .  

SECTION 1 04. PRACTICE OF 

MASSAGE THERAPY 

The statutory defi n it ion of the scope 
of practice is  the fou ndation of 
leg is lat ion reg u lat ing a professio n .  
Sect ion 1 04 defi nes the p ractice 
of Massage Thera py and sets the 
pa rameters or  scope of pract ice 
d ictat ing who must become l i censed 
to lawfu l l y  practice . 

The defi n it ion uses broad descri ptions 
reflecting  practice rather than 
identify ing therapeutic approaches by 
name.  

Th is broad language recog n izes the 
authority of  the Boa rd to  i nterpret 
the services and activities defi ned i n  
the scope throug h  ru lemak ing a nd 
customary admin istrative operations .  

The defined sco pe of practice ta kes 
i nto consideration the approaches, 
services and activities of cu rrent and  
evo lv ing practice . 

• 

• 



• 

• 
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( 5 )  Use o f  topica l  app l ications such 
as l u b rica nts, scru bs, or  herba l  
preparations ;  

(6 )  Use  of  hot or  co ld  app l ications;  

(7)  Use of  hyd rotherapy;  

(8 )  C l ient education . 

SECTION 1 05. SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

(A) Tem po ra ry Practice 

( 1 )  Cu rrent ly E n ro l led Students 

This Act sha l l  not be construed 
to a pp ly  to or  restrict a Cu rrently 
E n ro l led Student in an  Approved 
Massage Therapy Ed ucation 
Prog ra m  from engag i ng i n  the 
practice of Massage Therapy, 
provided the practice, co nduct, 
activ it ies or  services constitute 
a part of a req u i red cou rse of 
study  i n  the prog ram and that 
such persons a re i dentified as 
students . 

( 2 )  P lan ned Eve nts 

(a )  Th i s  Act sha l l  not be 
construed to app ly  to or  
restrict a n  i nd iv idua l  cu rrently 
l i censed and i n  good sta nd ing  
to  practice Massage Therapy 
i n  another j u risd ict ion from 
engag i ng i n  the practice of 
Massage Thera py i n  th is  
j u risd ict ion on a tem porary 
basis fo r a period of not more 
than 30 days or  not longer 
than the period of the event, 
w h ichever is  less . 

A 
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Th is scope of practice w i l l  req u i re 
otherwise u n l i censed persons who 
cu rrently engage i n  these practices to 
become l i censed . 

SECTION 1 05. SPECIAL 

PROVISIONS 

Practice acts com monly  i nc lude 
provis ions to recogn ize that  u nder  
certa i n  ci rcumstances, persons 
d u ly qua l i fied a nd/or l icensed may 
conti nue to lawfu l ly engage in  the ir  
practices . 

Those persons l ice nsed u nder 
professions with overlapp ing scopes 
are governed by and adhere to 
the ru les of thei r own reg u lated 
profess ions .  

The Practice Act specifi ca l l y  avo ids 
the use of  the term "exe m ptio ns" to 
rei nforce the i m porta nce of l i censu re 
and promote the fact that persons 
must obta i n  govern me nta l perm ission 
to practice based u pon de l i neated 
criteria . 

Permission to practice without 
l i censure is  esta b l ished for severa l 
pu rposes : 

1 )  To recog n ize students who a re 
learn i ng the practice and may offer 
the service ,  or  use tra i n i ng t it les 
related to the profession with i n  a n  
ed ucationa l  sett ing a n d  u nder the 
auspices of the ed ucationa l  p rog ra m ;  



( b) Practit ioners seeking 2 )  To recog n ize tem pora ry practice • tem pora ry practice priv i leges at p lanned events such as travel to 
u nder this section 105(A) ( 2 )  treat with sports tea ms, educationa l  
must submit a pr ior written sett i ngs,  and C l ient trans itions .  Such 
a ppl ication as  prescri bed by tem po ra ry practice is dependent 
the Boa rd . Such tem porary u pon an  a ppl ication submitted to the 
p ractice priv i leges shal l  apply Boa rd ; 
for no more than th i rty (30)  
days per  year and a re l im ited 3) To ensu re that those d u l y  l i censed 
to both the scope of practice in other professions whose scopes 
of th is  state a nd the scope may overlap a re specifica l ly ab le  to 
of perm itted acts in sect ion conti nue  to engage in the activity; 
(c)  bel ow. Pe rso ns who wish 
to practice beyo nd the th i rty 4) To recog n ize those practit ioners 
( 30)  day tem porary period who engage in the practice i n  
must a pply fo r a n d  rece ive restricted sett ings that provide 
l icensure .  admin istrative overs ight may 

cont inue to do so as a benefit to the 
(c)  The sco pe of permitted acts pub l ic .  

u nder th is  section 105 (A) ( 2 )  
is l i m ited t o  acts re lated to the It i s  noted that sect ions 1 05(A) ( 2 )  
practice of Massage Therapy and 1 0 5 (A) (3 )  recog n ize the rig ht 
at p lan ned event(s) a nd of d u ly l icensed pract it ioners to • o n  identified persons of an  tem pora ri ly practice with i n  the  state . 
identified tea m  or  partic i pa nts However, such a practice pr iv i lege 
at p lan ned event(s) inc lud ing  is not based on the issuance of a 
vis it i ng sports tea ms, p lan ned tem pora ry l icense, but rather on the 
ath letic events, and ed ucation fact that such practitioner is  l i censed 
sem inars .  Practitioners a nd i n  good stand ing  i n  another 
u nder th is  su bsection are state . 
not a uthorized to practice 
Massage Therapy on the 
genera l  pub l i c .  

(d )  Practitio ners who provide 
services u nder th is  section 
1 0 5 (A) (2 )  sha l l  be deemed 
to have subm itted to the 
j u risd iction of the Boa rd and 
be bou nd by the  laws of  th is 
state . 

( 3 )  Decla red Emergencies 

(a )  Th i s  Act sha l l  not be • co nstrued to app ly  to or 
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( b) 

restrict a n  ind ivid ua l  cu rrent ly 
l icensed a nd i n  good sta nd i ng 
to practice Massage Thera py 
i n  a nother ju risd ict ion from 
engag i ng i n  the practice 
of Massage Therapy on 
a te mporary basis a nd i n  
response to a d isaster or  
emergency declared by the 
ap propriate authority or 
Governor of th is state . 

Practit io ners seeking 
tem pora ry privi leges under 
th is  section 1 0 5 (A) ( 3 )  must 
p rovide w ritten notification 
to and as prescri bed by the 
Boa rd and are on ly e l ig ib le  to 
engage i n  tem pora ry practice 
d u ring  the t ime of such 
dec lared em ergency. 

( 4) Other Licensed Practit ioners 

Practit ioners l i censed i n  other 
j u risd ictions may partici pate in  
Conti nu i ng Educatio n prog rams 
but  are not  a uthorized to  practice 
Massage Thera py on the ge nera l  
pu b l i c .  

( B) Service to Fa m i ly  Members 

This Act sha l l  not be construed to 
a pp ly  to or  restrict an  i nd iv idua l  from 
prov id ing services re lated to the 
domestic ca re of a ny fa m i ly  member 
o r  household mem ber as long as 
such persons do not offer, hold out,  
or  c la im to be a Massage Thera pist . 

I , JI �A , TH KA 'r T ( /  



SECTION 1 06. TITLE PROTECTION AND 

PROTECTED TERMS 

(A) No person or  entity sha l l  use the 
words Massage Therapy, bodywork 

therapy, or massage-bodywork 

therapist, Massage Therapist, 

bodywork therapist, or massage, or 
Licensed Massage Therapist or the 
acronym " LMT" or  any other words,  
a b breviat ions or  ins ign ia ind icati ng 
or  i m p ly ing ,  d i rectly or  i nd i rect ly, 
that M assage Thera py is provided,  
or  supp l ied ,  u n less such persons are 
l icensed pursuant to th is Act . 

( B) A Massage Thera p ist must 
conspicuously d isp lay the l icense to 
practice Massage Thera py and must 
use the acronym " LMT" to desig nate 
l i censure u nder  th is  Act . 

\ 4>  

SECTION 1 06. TITLE PROTECTION 

AND PROTECTED TERMS 

Th is section add resses the va rious  
tit les, acronyms and a bbreviations 
used to descri be Massage Therap ists . 
The State Leg is latu re g ra nts scope 
of practice privi leges a nd i m poses 
certa i n  restrict ions on the use of 
tit les a nd terms for pub l i c  p rotectio n .  
The use o f  the tit le " Massage 
Therapist" co nnotes education 
a nd tra i n i ng i n  a u n ique body of 
knowledge and ski l l  exc lusive to 
Massage Therap ists . 

Title protection encompasses the 
t it les,  acronyms and a bbreviat ions 
that a re associated with Massage 
Therapy l ice nsure .  Section 1 06(A) 
addresses a l l  such t it les,  acronyms 
a nd abbreviations a pp l ica b le  to 
Massage Thera py l i censure .  

Title protection a s  out l i ned i n  th is  
Act prevents m isuse of the t i t le  i n  
ord

_
er to avo id  u nethica l ,  u ntra i ned , 

u n l i censed a nd non-com petent  
practice. 

" LMT" is the protected professiona l  
reg u latory tit le to  be  used by 
Massage Therap ists i n  the  U n i ted 
States u nder th is  Act. For p u bl i c  
protect ion,  th is Act req u i res the 
Licensee to use the t i t le  when a 
Licensee i nteracts with C l ients o r  
advertises t h e  ava i l ab i l ity o f  Massage 
Therapy. This Act does not proh i bit 
add itiona l  advanced practice tit les to 
a l so be recog n ized . 

• 

• 

• 



-'-ARTICLE I I .  BOARD OF MASSAG E TH ERAPY 

SECTION 201 . DESIGNATION 

The Leg is lature hereby creates the Boa rd 
of Massage Thera py. The Boa rd sha l l  
fu nct ion to ca rry o ut the provis ions of 
th is  Act in a man ner that at a l l  t imes 
p romotes the h ig hest i nterest of pub l ic  
hea lth,  safety a nd welfare . 

SECTION 202. BOARD COMPOSITION 

AND QUALIFICATIONS 

(A)  The Boa rd sha l l  be com prised of 
not fewer tha n seve n ( 7 )  mem bers, 
a p po i nted by the Governor. 

• ( B )  At a l l  t i mes, at l east five ( 5 )  
mem bers s h a l l  b e  Massage 
Therap ists l icensed a nd i n  good 
sta nd i ng who sha l l  have been 
engaged i n  the practice of Massage 
Thera py for not less tha n five ( 5 )  
consecutive yea rs preced ing  the 
date of a ppoi ntment .  

• 

(C)  At least two ( 2 )  mem bers sha l l  be 
Consu mer Mem bers .  

( D )  At a l l  re leva nt t imes each Boa rd 
member sha l l  be a cit izen of the 
U n ited States and a res ident of th is 
state fo r not fewer than th ree ( 3 )  
yea rs .  

} � 

SECTION 201 . DESIGNATION 

Th is section creates the Boa rd 
of Massage Therapy and affi rms 
the leg is lative i ntent of protect ing 
the pub l ic by estab l ish ing l icense 
q u a l ifications for the practice of 
Massage Thera py and a govern ing  
body to  enforce th is  Act . 

SECTION 202. BOARD COMPOSITION 

AND QUALIFICATIONS 

Not less tha n seven (7)  mem bers, 
i nc lud ing at least two (2) Co nsumer  
Mem bers ensu res representation 
from professiona ls  and consumers for 
pub l ic protectio n .  

W h i le Consumer Mem bers a re 
specifi ca l ly  de l i neated i n  the Practice 
Act, a l l  Boa rd mem bers must be 
u ncom promis ing i n  the i r  i nte rests 
and advocacy on beha lf  of the 
pub l i c .  A spouse or  im med iate fa m i ly 
mem ber of a Licensee sha l l  not be a 
Consu mer Member. 

The Boa rd shou ld consider 
the req u i rement of new Boa rd 
member o rientation and tra i n ing  
to  properly i ntrod uce a l l  d uties and 
respo nsi b i l i ties of  the  Boa rd a nd 
its members .  Th is  shou ld  inc lude 
but is  not  l im ited to, provid i ng  u p­
to-date statutes and rules, Boa rd 
pol ic ies, h istorica l docu ments, ro les 
of the department and other staff 
w hose interact ion w ith the Board is  
paramou nt, such as Boa rd attorneys, 
executive d i rector, prosecuti ng 
attorneys and admin istrative law 
j udges.  



SECTION 203. APPOINTMENTS 

Members of the Boa rd sha l l  be a ppoi nted 
in accorda nce with the provis ions of th is 
Artic le a nd the State Constitutio n .  

SECTION 204. TERMS OF OFFICE 

(A) Mem bers of the Board sha l l  be 
a ppo i nted for a term of fou r  ( 4) 
yea rs .  Appointments to fi l l  a vacancy 
of a n  u nexp i red term sha l l  fi l l  the 
u nexpired port ion of the term . 

(B )  No mem ber of  the  Board sha l l  serve 
more than two ( 2 )  consecutive 
fu l l  term s .  The com pletion of a n  
u nexpired term sha l l  not constitute 
a fu l l  term for pu rposes of th is 
su bsection . 

(C)  The terms of  the mem bers of  the 
Boa rd sha l l  be staggered . The i n it ia l  
Boa rd sha l l  be com prised of th ree 
( 3 )  members a ppoi nted for fou r  (4)  
yea r terms, two (2)  mem bers for 
three - ( 3 )  year  terms, and two ( 2 )  
members for two ( 2 )  yea r terms .  
Each such a ppoi ntee to the i n it ia l 
Boa rd sha l l  on ly be e l ig ib le  for 
rea ppoi ntment for one ( 1 )  add itiona l  
fou r  (4)  yea r te rm . 

SECTION 205. VACANCIES 

(A) Vaca ncies on the Board occu rri ng 
prior  to  the exp iration of  a term 
sha l l  be fi l led in accorda nce with 
Section 203 . 

SECTION 204(C).  TERMS OF OFFICE 

I n it ia l  staggered appointments a l low 
for the conti n u ity of an experienced 
Boa rd so that a l l  Boa rd Mem bers 
do not rotate from the Boa rd at the 
sa me time .  

Fou r  ( 4 )  yea r terms support 
the structu re for g a i n i ng futu re 
q ua l ified leadersh ip  and retent ion of 
experienced Board Mem bers .  

SECTION 205(A). VACANCIES 

Th is section ensu res that the Boa rd 
ma i nta i ns a quorum and is operat ing 
with no ongoing vaca ncies.  A fu l ly 
constituted Boa rd preserves the 
Board 's a uthori ty to fu lfi l l  its d ut ies 
a nd responsib i l it ies . 

• 

• 
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( B )  If a vaca ncy is  not fi l led with i n  1 2  
months,  the Boa rd sha l l  be em powered 
to fi l l  such vaca ncy by a 2/3 majority 
vote of the rem a i n i n g  Boa rd members .  

SECTION 206. REMOVAL 

A Boa rd member  may be  suspended or  
removed for u n professiona l  conduct, 
refusal  or i nabi l ity of a Boa rd member to 
perform h is  or her d uties as a mem ber 
of the Boa rd in an effic ient, respons ib le 
and profess iona l  m a n ner, Convict ion of 
a Fe lony or of a ny cri me re lated to the 
practice of a health ca re profession ,  
fa i l u re to meet t h e  qua l ifications o f  th is 
Act, or  comm itt i ng any act proh i bited by 
th is Act . 

SECTION 207. OFFICERS A N D  TERMS 

OF OFFICE 

(A) The Boa rd sha l l  e lect from its 
members a Cha ir  and a Vice Cha i r  
and such other  officers a s  i t  deems 
a ppropriate and necessa ry to 
conduct its busi ness . The Cha ir  
sha l l  p reside at meeti ngs of  the 
Boa rd , sha l l  be respons ib le  fo r the 
performa nce of a l l  the d uties and 
fu nctions of the Boa rd and sha l l  
perform those d uties customari ly  
associated with  the position a nd 
such other d uties ass ig ned by the 
Boa rd . The Vice Chair wi l l  serve i n  
the absence of the Cha i r. 

( B )  Officers s h a l l  serve te rms o f  one 
( 1 )  yea r com menci ng with the day 
of the ir  e lection a nd end i ng u pon 
e lection of  the ir  successo rs .  

p A 

SECTION 205(8).  VACANCIES 

This section provides assurances that 
the d uties and responsi b i l it ies of the 
Boa rd w i l l  not be com prom ised d ue 
to vacancies a nd lack of q uoru m .  

SECTION 206. REMOVAL 

After a Boa rd member is  appoi nted , 
there must be a mechan ism i n  p lace 
for remova l of a Boa rd member when 
cond uct wa rra nts such action . 

SECTION 207(A). OFFICERS AND 

TERMS OF OFFICE 

The Boa rd Chair  and Vice Chair  w i l l  
be  e lected by  the  Boa rd . The Cha ir  
presides over meeti ngs of  the Boa rd 
and co nducts its bus i ness i n  a n  
orderly  fash ion .  The d uties o f  Cha i r  
and Vice Cha i r  sha l l  be defi ned i n  
Boa rd ru le o r  pol icy. 



SECTION 208. COMPENSATION OF 

BOARD MEMBERS 

(A) U n less otherwise provided by law, 
a Boa rd member  sha l l  rece ive 
a per d iem and  re i m bu rsement 
i n accorda nce with the state 
admin i strative code .  

( B) Each Boa rd member sha l l  rece ive 
com pensation ,  as identified i n  
208(A) ,  for attendance a t  officia l  
meeti ngs of the Board and Boa rd 
com m ittees or  any meeti ng 
that  constitutes Boa rd bus i ness, 
inc lud i ng teleconference ca l l s or 
other Boa rd responsib i l it ies . 

SECTION 209. MEETINGS 

The Boa rd sha l l  meet at least once, 
i n  perso n ,  a n n u a l l y  a nd may meet as 
often as is  necessa ry to cond uct Boa rd 
bus i ness a nd conduct hea ri ngs .  The Cha i r  
of the Boa rd sha l l  have the authority 
to ca l l  other  meet ings at her or  h is  
d iscretio n .  Meeti ngs may be co nducted 
by e lectron ic  med i u m  and sha l l  be i n  
accordance with state meeti ng law. A 
q u o ru m  sha l l  be necessary to conduct 
offic ia l  Board bus i ness or  any com m ittee 
thereof. The Board may go i nto executive 
sess ion accord ing  to releva nt law.  

SECTION 21 0 .  POWERS, 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

(A) The Boa rd sha l l  have the autho rity 
to im plement, i nterpret, and enforce 
th is  Act, i ncl u d i ng ,  but not l im ited to 
the authority to : 

( 1 )  Eva luate the q ua l ifications of 
Appl ica nts for l icensu re ;  

SECTION 209. MEETINGS 

This section sets a m i n i m u m  
freq uency that the Boa rd m ust 
meet . An nua l  meeti ngs may not be 
sufficient to ca rry out a l l  fu nctions of 
Bo� rd bus iness and reg u lat ion of the 
professio n .  

A l l  meet ings must com ply with a n y  
app l ica b le state open meeti ng laws 
and state g u ide l i nes regard i ng access 
and notice to the pub l i c .  

SECTION 21 0. POWERS, 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

This section identifies the Powers, 
Responsi b i l it ies and D uties of the 
Boa rd . Boa rds  of Massage Thera py 
are created and em powered by 
statute a nd ca n on ly u ndertake those 
activit ies authorized by law.  This 
section outl i nes these fu ndame nta l 
d uties a nd responsib i l it ies a nd i s  

• 

• 

• 



• ( 2 )  Assess entry- level com petence d rafted broadly to ensure that it can 
throug h  the use of the effective ly meet its p u bl i c  protection 
Exa m i nation ;  ob l igations .  

( 3 )  Issue and renew a l icense to Genera l l y  u nder Section 2 1 0  a nd 
Appl ica nts who meet l ice nsu re specifica l ly  u nder  ( 4 )  and  ( 5 ) ,  the 
q u a l ifi cat ions of th is  Act and Boa rd is  authorized to esta b l ish  and 
a l l  ru les app l icable to th is  Act enforce profess iona l  sta nda rds and  
pro m u lgated by  the  Boa rd ; educationa l  sta ndards .  S im i l a r  to the 

re l ia nce by the Boa rd on a u n iform 
(4)  Esta b l i sh  and enforce co mp l ia nce l icensure Examination developed 

with professiona l  standards of and admin istered by the FS MTB, 
practice and ru les of co nduct; the Boa rd ca n a lso recog n ize the 

necessary standards  or  educationa l  
( 5 )  Estab l ish a n d  enforce educationa l  crite ria estab l i shed by FSMTB or  

sta ndards for recog n it ion,  other re leva nt organ izations .  The 
a pprova l a nd withd rawa l of recogn it ion of the standards w i l l  be 
a pprova l of prog rams or schools prom u lgated in the ru les/reg u lations.  
of Massage Therapy;  I nc lus ions of such standards i n  the 

statute create lega l  and  practica l 
(6 )  Co l lect demog ra p h ic data of issues that may ca l l  i nto q uestion its 

Lice nsees and the profession ;  lega l enforcea b i l ity . 

• ( 7 )  I nspect any l i censed person or  The Boa rd is  a uthorized to exercise 
fac i l ity/entity at reasonab le  hours its d iscret ion i n  accept ing a va riety 
for the pu rpose of enforcement of of programs as meeting  req u i red 
this Act; education under  the Approved 

Massage Thera py Education 
(8 )  Esta b l ish and co l lect fees Prog ra m  defi n ition . If deemed 

necessary for susta in ing adeq uate, the Boa rd may consider 
reg u lat ion of th is  profession and accepti ng accred ited institutiona l  
carry i ng out th is  Act; or  programmatic ed ucation as one 

criterion i n  determ i n i n g  accepta b le 
(9)  Ma inta i n  a data base of a l l  education .  

Licensees, i nc lud ing d isci p l i nary 
data ; 

( 1 0 )  Em ploy personne l  to ca rry out 
admin i strative wo rk of the Boa rd 
and the necessary fu nctions of 
th is  Act ; 

( 1 1 )  Enter i nto contracts fo r services 
as necessa ry for enforcement of 

• th is  Act; 

( 1 2 )  Issue an a n n ua l  report ;  



( 1 3 )  Exercise the i r  authority to im pose 
d iscip l i ne  in accordance with th is  
Act ; 

( 1 4)  E nter i nto appropriate data 
sharing  i n formation agreements 
accord ing  to state or federa l  law; 

( 1 5 )  Esta b l ish  and enforce standards 
of practice and codes of conduct ;  

( 1 6 )  Investigate and admin istratively 
prosecute any a l legations of 
w rongdo ing  u ndertaken by any 
person ,  entity, Licensee, or  
org a n ization ;  

( 1 7)  Issue subpoenas for ora l  
testi mo ny, deposit ion testimo ny, 
a nd production of re leva nt 
docu ments necessary to 
i nvest igate d u ly fi led com pla i nts 
and  a d m i n istratively prosecute 
perso ns accused of vio l ati ng th is 
Act; 

( 1 8)  I m pose admin i strative d isci p l i ne 
upon any person or  entity, or 
orga n ization as set forth in 
Sect ion 402;  

( 1 9)  U nderta ke such  other duties, 
powers, and authority as may be 
necessary to the enforcement of 

SECTION 21 0 ( 14) .  POWERS, 

RESPONSIBILITIES A N D  DUTIES 

( 14 )  A l lows use of the FSMTB 
Massage Therapy Licens ing Database, 
and other resou rces, i n  assessi ng 
l icensu re e l i g ib i l i ty a nd comp la i nts . 

SECTION 21 0( 1 5) .  POWERS, 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

( 1 5 )  Provides the Boa rd with the 
a uthority to esta b l ish  a Code of 
Conduct and oversee the c l ient­
thera pist re lationsh i p .  A code of 
conduct is a summary statem ent of 
the standards  of conduct that defi ne 
eth ica l ,  professiona l  practice of 
Massage Thera py. 

• 

• 

• 



th is  Act a nd ru les d u ly pro m u lgated 

• hereu nder, determ ined to be i n  the 
interest of pub l ic protection through 
the reg u lat ion of  the professio n .  

( B) The Boa rd sha l l  esta b l ish q ua l ificat ions 
and u pho ld  sta ndards  of entry- level 
com petence for l i ce nsu re i nto the 
profess ion in acco rdance with this Act . 
These req u i reme nts sha l l  inc lude but are 
not l i m ited to ed ucationa l  tra i n ing and 
experience,  exa mi nation req u i rements 
and  endorsement req u i rements for 
those l i censed by other states or  
ju risd ictions .  

(C)  The Boa rd sha l l  esta b l ish  a sched u le  of 
fees by ru le sufficient to cover the costs 
of admin istering  th is  Act . 

( D )  I n  add it ion to a n y  fees specifica l ly 
p rovided fo r here in ,  the Boa rd sha l l  
have the  authority to  assess add itiona l  

• fees for services rendered to ca rry 
out its d uties and respo nsi b i l it ies as 
req u i red u nder law, inc lud ing  but not 
l i m ited to : 

( 1 )  Issuance of d u p l icate l i censes; 
( 2 )  Copies o f  req u ested 

documents ;  
( 3 )  Cert ification of docu ments ;  
(4)  Certification of  l icensure status;  
( 5 )  N otices o f  meetings ;  
( 6) Materia ls  re leva nt to l i censure 

a nd renewa l of l icensure .  

( E) Notwithsta nd ing  any other law to the 
contra ry, the Board sha l l  pub l i sh  on a 
ti me ly  bas is  Fi na l  Adverse Act ions d u ly 
entered . Pub l i cat ion of F ina l  Adverse 
Act ions sha l l  inc l ude,  but not be l i m ited 
to, re port ing to any app l ica b le state and 
federa l  repository of fi na l  Boa rd act ions .  
The Boa rd may report Fi na l  Adverse 

• Actions to a ny data ba nk  mai nta i ned by 
an o rgan ization of which the Boa rd is a 
mem ber. 



SECTION 21 1 .  RULES 

(A) The Boa rd sha l l  make,  adopt, 
amend ,  and repea l such ru les as 
may be deemed necessa ry by 
the Boa rd from t ime to ti me fo r 
the proper admin istration and 
enforcement of th is  Act . 

( B) Such ru les sha l l  be pro m u lgated i n  
accorda nce with state law. 

SECTION 21 2. SOURCE OF 

EXAMINATION AND DATA SHARING 

(A) In mak ing  determ inations u nder 
th is  Act and  to promote u n iformity 
and ad m i n istrative efficiencies, the 
Boa rd sha l l  be em powered to : 

( 1 ) Recog n ize the Exami nation as a 
measu re fo r entry- level 
com petence ; 

( 2 )  Accept a n d  use the 
documentation and verified data 
gathered and stored by a not­
for- profit o rgan ization whose 
membersh ip  and m ission are 
consiste nt with the Boa rd and its 
pub l ic protection missio n .  

SECTION 21 1 .  RULES 

Th is section provides the Boa rd 
with broad autho rity to adopt a nd 
revise specific ru les that effectively 
im plement the statute . Incl ud i n g  
genera l  language i n  the enacted 
statute and more specific lang uage 
i n  ru les provides a n  ongoing 
opportun ity for the Boa rd to d raw on 
the professiona l  expertise of i ts  Boa rd 
mem bers ,  as  we l l  as any i nterested 
sta keholders, wh i le  focus ing o n  
evo lv ing issues o f  pub l ic protect ion 
re lated to the reg u lated profession . 

SECTION 21 2. SOURCE OF 

EXAMINATION AND DATA SHARI NG 

This section authorizes the Board to 
recog nize the services a nd prog rams 
of  the FSMTB as  a n  organ ization 
whose mem bersh i p  a nd m ission a re 
consiste nt with its mem ber Boa rds .  

The  FSMTB Massage & Bodywork 
Licens ing Exa m i nation ( M BLEx) 
is a lega l l y  defens ib le ,  entry- level 
Exami nation va l idated fo r use in a 
l icensure sett ing and owned by the 
Member Boa rds that re ly u pon it  i n  
making e l i g i b i l ity determ i natio ns .  
It is  i m perative that the e ntry- level 
Exa m i nation be psychometrica l ly 
va l id a nd lega l ly  defensi b le  for use i n  
a l ice nsu re setti ng . 

Some states by law may req u i re a n  
add itiona l  contractua l  re lationsh i p  
when ta k ing adva ntage o f  these 
prog rams and services.  

• 
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-� RTICLE I l l .  L ICE N S I N G  
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SECTION 301 . QUALIFICATIONS FOR 

I N ITIAL LICENSURE 

(A) To obta i n  a l i cense to practice 
Massage Therapy, a n  Appl ica nt 
for i n it ia l  l icensu re must provide 
evidence satisfactory to the Boa rd , 
that the App l icant :  

( 1 )  Has subm itted a complete 
a ppl ication in the fo rm 
prescri bed by the Boa rd a long 
with a ny req u i red supporti ng 
documentation ;  

( 2 )  H a s  paid a l l  app l ica b le fees 
specified by the Boa rd re lative to 
the l icensure process; 

( 3 )  I s  a t  l east e ig hteen ( 1 8)  yea rs of 
age;  

( 4 )  Has a h i gh  school d i p loma or  
equ iva lent;  

( 5 )  H a s  g raduated from a n  Approved 
Massage Therapy Education 
Prog ra m ;  

(6 )  Has successfu l ly  passed the 
Exami nation deve loped and 
a d m i n istered by the Federation of 
State Massage Thera py Boa rds 
( FS MTB) ; 

T 

SECTION 301 . QUALIFICATIONS FOR 

IN ITIAL LICENSURE 

Th is section add resses the necessa ry 
criteria for i n it ia l  l i censu re .  The 
deta i led proced u ra l  req u i rements 
for l icense a ppl ications shou ld  
be out l i ned i n  ru les a nd/or pol icy 
rather tha n statute . This a l l ows the 
Boa rd to determ i ne the content of 
the app l ication and the req u i red 
docu ments, incl u d i ng consent 
to crim ina l  h istory check a nd/or 
fi ngerpr ints .  

SECTION 301 (A)(6). QUALIFICATIONS 

FOR IN ITIAL LICENSURE 

(6)  Recogn izes the FSMTB 
Exami nation has been va l idated 
for use in the l ice nsu re process 
as an entry- level dete rm inant of 
com petence .  The add itiona l  lang uage 
provides flexib i l ity for the Boa rd 
to determine  which Exa mi nations 
support po rta b i l ity and ensu re entry 
level com petence.  This word ing  a lso 
permits state-specific  exams on the 
law/ru les.  



( 7 )  Has attested to knowledge of laws 
app l icab le to Massage Thera py 
i n  a manner  prescri bed by the 
Boa rd ;  

(8 )  Is of  good mora l  cha racter; and  

(9 )  Has subm itted fi ngerpri nts for the 
pu rpose of a state a nd federa l  
crim ina l  reco rds check pursuant 
to (citation to 
statute) .  Crim ina l  records checks 
w i l l  be co nsidered for pu rposes of 
qua l ifications for l icensure to the 
extent permitted by law. 

SECTION 302. QUALIFICATIONS FOR 

LICENSURE BY ENDORSEMENT 

(A) Persons who are l icensed to practice 
M assage Therapy in another 
j u risd iction may seek l i censu re 
i n  th is state throug h  l ice nsure by 
endorsement.  To obta in  a l i cense 
to practice Massage Therapy by 
endorsement, the Appl ica nt must 
provide evidence satisfactory to the 
Boa rd that the Appl icant :  

( 1 )  Is l i censed i n  good sta nd ing  i n  
any  other state, te rritory, or 
j u risd ict ion of the U n ited States; 

SECTION 301 (A)(8) .  QUALIFICATIONS 

FOR IN ITIAL LICENSURE 

(8 )  When i nformation is received 
by the Boa rd that ind icates that a n  
App l icant has been convicted o f  a 
crime or has comm itted a n  act wh ich 
ra ises a reaso nab le question as  to 
the Appl ica nt's mora l  cha racter, the 
Boa rd sha l l  u nderta ke a process 
estab l ished by ru le  to determi ne that 
the Appl icant possesses the good 
mora l  cha racter req u i red to p rotect 
the health,  safety a nd we lfa re of the 
pub l ic .  

SECTION 302. QUALIFICATIONS FOR 

LICENSURE BY ENDORSEMENT 

Th is section provides a path 
to l icensure for those who a re 
cu rrent ly l icensed i n  another state 
or ju risd ict ion and demonstrate 
the ab i l ity to practice safe ly a nd 
com petently. 

• 
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( 2 )  H a s  active ly  practiced for at 
least two ( 2 )  of the last th ree ( 3 )  
yea rs ;  

( 3 )  H a s  passed the Exa m i nation or 
a nother exa m i nation accepta ble 
to the Boa rd wh ich was ta ken fo r 
the pu rpose of l icensure i n  that 
j u ri sd ict ion ;  and 

( 4) Has presented to the Boa rd 
proof that a ny other Massage 
Therapy l icense or  any other 
professiona l  l icense g ra nted 
to the App l icant in any other 
state, territory, or  ju risd ict ion in  
the U n ited States has not been 
subject to suspension ,  revocation ,  
or  otherwise restricted i n  a ny 
ma nner  for d isci p l i n a ry pu rposes . 

SECTION 303. RECOGNITION OF 

PRACTITIONERS ON THE EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

(A) Notwithsta n d i ng the qua l ifications 
u nder  Section 30 1 and for a period 
not to exceed two (2 )  yea rs from 
the effective date of th is Act, 
persons who have engaged i n  the 
practice of Massage Thera py or 
have ta u g ht core c l i n ica l cou rses 
at a n  Approved Massage Thera py 
Ed ucation Program may be e l ig ib le  
for l i censure .  Appl ica nts for 
l i ce nsure u nder  th is Section 303 
m u st provide evidence satisfactory 
to the Boa rd of the fo l l owing : 

( 1 )  Has subm itted a com plete 
a ppl icat ion i n  the form prescri bed 
by the Boa rd a long with 
a ny req u i red support ing 
docu mentation ;  

c.,A H 

SECTION 302(A)(2). QUALIFICATIONS 

FOR LICENSURE BY ENDORSEMENT 

(2)  The Board wi l l  defi ne adive 
practice and esta bl ish it i n  ru le .  

SECTION 303. RECOGNITION OF 

PRACTITIONERS ON THE EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

This section addresses a tra nsit iona l  
period whereby ind iv id ua ls  cu rrently 
practic ing are recog n ized by statute 
as havi ng a rig ht to conti nue to 
practice . " G rand parenti ng"  provis ions 
com monly  app ly  to the sect ions of 
law that address l icensure,  fo r a 
l im ited period of t ime,  for persons 
engaged in the practice of the 
profession u nder  specific cond it ions 
pr ior to the effective date of the 
l i censure law.  These provis ions 
ta ke i nto consideration the need to 
recog n ize an ex isti ng practitione r's 
rig ht to work. I n d iv idua ls u nder  th is  
section must sti l l  app ly  for and be 
g ra nted a l icense i n  order to lawfu l l y  
conti nue to  practice. 



( 2 )  H a s  pa id a l l  app l icable fees 
specified by the Boa rd re lative to 
the l icensure process; 

( 3 )  I s  a t  least e ig hteen ( 1 8)  yea rs of 
age ;  

( 4 )  Has a h igh  schoo l d i p loma or  
eq u iva lent;  

( 5 )  (a) Has reg u l a rly  practiced 
Massage Thera py i n  th is  state 
for at least two ( 2 )  of the last 
three ( 3 )  yea rs ; or  

( b) Has reg u l a rly  ta ught  core 
cl i n ica l  cou rses at an  
Approved Massage 
Therapy Ed ucation Program 
i n  th is  state for two ( 2 )  of  the 
last th ree ( 3 )  years; a nd 

( 6)  Has attested to knowledge of  laws 
a ppl ica b le to Massage Therapy 
i n  a manner  prescribed by the 
Boa rd ;  

( 7 )  Is o f  g ood mora l character; and  

(8 )  Has  subm itted fi ngerpri nts for the 
pu rpose of a state and federa l  
cri m i n a l  records check pursuant 
to (citation to 
statute) . Cri m i na l  records checks 
w i l l  be cons idered for pu rposes of 
qua l ifi cations for l icensure to the 
extent permitted by law.  

SECTION 303(A)(5). RECOGN ITION OF 

PRACTITIONERS ON THE EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

( 5 )  Req u i res App l ica nts u nder th is  
sect ion to have rema i ned i n  cu rrent 
practice o r  have ta ught  at a n  
Approved Massage Therapy Ed ucat ion 
Prog ra m  in th is  state for at l east two 
of the last three yea rs .  As noted , 
p ractice/teach ing must have occu rred 
in th is  state i n  o rder to qua l i fy fo r 
l i censu re with the i ntent of not 
a l lowing practice/teach ing  in other  
states to  be  a q u a l ifyi ng event(s) . 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

SECTION 304. LICENSURE RENEWAL 

REQUI REMENTS 

The Boa rd sha l l  esta b l ish  by ru le ,  the 
t ime and m a n ner  for renewa l of l icensure 
that sha l l  i nc lude Conti n u i n g  Education 
req u i rements a nd renewa l fees .  The 
Boa rd may request add it iona l  i nformation 
from renewa l App l ica nts . 

SECTION 305. CONTINU ING 

PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCE 

The Boa rd sha l l  esta b l ish  by ru le the 
Conti n u i n g  Educat ion req u i rements 
for l i censure renewa l i nc lud ing the 
accepta b le  prog ra m  content .  
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SECTION 304. L ICENSURE RENEWAL 

REQUIREMENTS 

This sect ion ensu res that l i censure 
renewa l conti n ues to protect the 
pub l ic by req u i ri ng  Licensees to 
reg u la rly m eet the qua l ifi cations for 
conti nued l i censu re .  

SECTION 305. CONTINU ING 

PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCE 

This section is  consiste nt with 
the FS MTB Licensu re Renewa l 
recom mendatio n .  

The req u i rements for the 
promu lgation of ru les/reg u lat ions 
regard i ng l i cense renewa l p romote 
the Boa rd 's mission of p u bl ic 
p rotectio n .  U nder  th is  sect ion the 
Board has the flex ib i l i ty to determi ne 
the natu re of such Conti n u i n g  
Ed ucation requ i rements, ta k ing 
i nto consideration factors related to 
conti n u i ng com petence . 



ARTICLE IV. D I SC I PL I N E  I 
. 

SECTION 401 . COMPLAINTS 

(A) The Boa rd is  a uthorized to i n it iate 
and  i nvestig ate comp la ints a l leg ing  
a v io lat ion of the Act or  ru les.  

( B) The Boa rd sha l l  keep a record of 
a l l  comp la i nts rece ived and the 
reso lut ion of each com pla i nt, 
inc l ud i ng a ny F ina l  Adverse Act ion 
rendered . 

SECTION 402. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, 

SUMMARY SUSPENSION, GROUNDS 

(A) D isci p l i nary Actions : The Boa rd ,  
u pon proper notice a nd w ith 
opportu n ity for a hea r ing ,  may 
i m pose the fo l lowing d iscip l i nary 
actions u pon any person or  entity 
for one or more of the Grounds for 
D iscip l i nary Act ion i n  402(C) of th is  
subsection :  

( 1 )  Refuse to issue, renew, or 
rei nstate a l icense; 

( 2 )  Revoke, suspend ,  restrict, o r  l i m it 
a l icense;  

( 3 )  P lace a l icense ho lder o n  
probation ,  incl ud ing p lac ing l i m its 
on the Licensee's practice and/or 
req u i ri ng  su perv is ion ;  

( 4 )  Issue a reprimand ; 

( 5) Issue a cease and des ist l etter; 

( 6 )  Req u i re payment o f  a fi ne;  

SECTION 401 . COMPLAINTS 

This section ensu res that the Boa rd 
fu lfi l ls  its pub l ic  protect ion m iss ion 
by address ing  com pla i nts through  a 
formal  process w h i le recog n iz ing the 
legal  rig hts of a l l  pa rt ies i nvo lved . 
Usua l l y  such leg a l  r ig hts a re set forth 
i n  a n  Ad m i n istrative Proced u res Act 
a nd covered u nder constitutiona l  d u e  
process protect ions . 

SECTION 402. DISCIPLINARY 

ACTIONS, SUMMARY SUSPENSION,  

GROUNDS 

This section esta bl ishes that the 
Boa rd has the authori ty to resolve 
com pla i nts by i m posing one or  more 
of a n  extensive l i st of d isci p l i nary 
act ions aga i nst persons a l leged 
to have vtolated the Act o r  ru les/ 
reg u latio ns .  

Note that a l icense su rrender  that 
reso lves a comp la int is  cons idered 
d isci p l i nary action .  

• 

• 



• ( 7 )  Req u i re payment o f  the 
i nvestigative and admin istrative 
costs associated with the 
com pla int and a ny admin istrative 
prosecution thereof, i nc lud ing 
attorney's fees; 

(8 )  Req u i re com plet ion of  remed ia l  
ed u catio n ;  

(9 )  Req u i re physica l or  menta l 
eva l uat ion fo r fitness to practice 
and/or re leva nt treatment; 

( 1 0 )  E nte r i nto a consent order or  
settlement agreement;  

( 1 1 ) Such other a d m i n istrative 
d iscip l i ne  necessa ry to ca rry out 
the m ission of pu bl ic  protection of 
th is  Act . 

• ( B) Summary Suspension : The 
Boa rd may i m pose an immed iate 
suspension of l i ce nsu re i n  cases 
where conti n ued practice by 

• 

(C)  

a Massage Thera p ist poses an 
i m m i nent a nd conti nu ing  threat 
to pub l ic hea lth,  welfare or safety 
so long as the Boa rd sched u les a 
hea ring  to occur  with i n  60 days of 
the effective date of the suspension 
order. 

G rou nds for Disci p l i nary Action : 
The fo l lowing sha l l  be g rounds for 
the Boa rd to i m pose one or  more 
d isci p l i nary actions :  

( 1 )  Conduct that v io lates any 
provis ion of  th is  Act or  Boa rd 
ru les adopted hereu nder, 
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SECTION 402(8) .  DISCIPLINARY 

ACTIONS, SUMMARY SUSPENSION, 

GROUNDS 

Sectio n  402(B)  authorizes the 
Boa rd to i m pose immed iate l icense 
suspension without a hearing  to 
protect the pub l ic,  wh i le preserv ing 
the Licensee's rig ht to  request a 
hear ing on the a l l egations with i n  
a reasonab le  amount of  t ime as  
determ i ned by  state law.  This 
summary suspension authority is  
l im ited to ci rcu msta nces i nvo lv ing 
i m m i nent and conti nued threat to the 
pub l ic .  

SECTION 402(C). DISCIPLINARY 

ACTIONS, SUMMARY SUSPENSION,  

GROUNDS 

Th is sect ion de l i neates the g rou nds 
for d isci p l i n e  i ntended to specify the 
bases for adverse actions aga inst 
persons .  Some of the g ro u nds for 



i nc l ud ing a violat ion of the 
sta ndards  of practice a nd codes 
of conduct adopted by the Board ; 

( 2 )  Aid i ng or  abetti ng another person 
in the vio lat ion of this Act or 
Board ru les;  

( 3 )  Fraud ,  deceit or  
misrepresentation i n  obta in ing  or 
attempt ing to obta i n  or  renew a 
l i cense or; 

( 4)  Aid ing  and or a bett ing another 
person or entity in the u n l icensed 
practice of Massage Therapy;  

( 5 )  M isuse of a l icense certificate, 
i nc lud ing sale or  barter of a 
l icense; use of another's l icense ; 
or a l lowi ng use of a l icense by an  
u n l icensed person o r  entity; 

(6 )  Practic ing outs ide the  sco pe of 
a uthority, tra i n i ng  and ed ucation ;  

(7 )  Delegation of professiona l 
respo nsi b i l it ies to a person who 
is not educated or  tra i ned to 
u nderta ke such responsi b i l it ies ; 

(8 )  Inca pacity o r  i m pa i rment that 
preve nts such Licensee from 
engag ing i n  the practice of 
Massage Therapy with reaso nable 
ski l l ,  com petence, and safety ; 

(9 )  Convict ion of: 
( i )  a fe lony ; 
( i i )  any crime re lated to the 

practice of Massage 
Thera py ;  

( 1 0)  Vio lat ions of the laws or  ru les of 
th is  state , v io lat ions of the laws 
or  ru les of any other state or 
v io lations of the laws or  ru les of 
the federa l  govern ment ;  

d isci p l i nary actions a re genera l ,  wh i le  
many of  them re late specifica l ly to 
the l icense and the l icense cert ificate 
which the Act authorizes the Board to 
issue .  

Note that engag i ng i n  acts identified 
i n  this Section 402(C) m ay be 
used for den ia l  of a l i cense or 
renewa l app l ication as we l l  as  to 
admin istratively prosecute persons .  

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

( 1 1 )  Fa i l u re to pay the costs or  fines 
assessed by the Boa rd ; 

( 1 2 )  Conduct that vio lates the secu rity 
of any l icensu re exa m i nation ,  
i nc l ud ing but not  l im ited to 
obta in i ng  access to exa m i nation 
questions pr ior to the exam,  
reprod uction of  exami nation 
q u estions,  d issemi nation of 
exami nation questions whether 
for or  not for com pensation ,  
or  any  othe r conduct that 
breaches the secu rity of a 
l icensure exa mination or  a ny 
other exa m i nation used to 
qua l ify Appl ica nts fo r l icensure or  
renewal ;  

( 1 3) Be ing subject to any d iscip l i nary 
sa nction from th is  or  any 
other j u risd iction aga i nst any 
professiona l  l icense, inc lud ing  any 
l i cense re lated to the practice of 
M assage Therapy;  

( 14)  Engag ing i n  unprofessiona l  
conduct as determ ined by  the 
Boa rd ;  

( 1 5 )  Neg l igence, g ross neg l ige nce, 
i ncom petence or  g ross 
i ncom petence; 

( 1 6)  Dece ptive, u ntrue,  or fraudu lent 
b i l l i n g ,  charges, use of t it le, 
terms or  representations i n  the 
practice of M assage Thera py ;  

( 1 7) Fa i l u re to coo perate i n  a n y  
i nvestig ation i nc lud ing  the 
subm ission of docume nts d u l y  
req uested b y  t h e  Boa rd ; 
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SECTION 402(C)(1 2) .  DISCIPLINARY 

ACTIONS, SUMMARY SUSPENSION,  

GROUNDS 

This section provides, as a basis fo r 
admin istrative d iscip l i ne,  acts that 
v io late the secu rity of the l icensu re 
Exam ination (s)  used by the Boa rd . 
As more inc idents of examination 
secu rity breaches a re u ncovered , 
the re leva nce a nd i m porta nce of 
th is l anguage is emphasized . On  
many occasions,  secu rity breaches 
a re u ncovered after the fact and 
Appl ica nts may have a l ready been 
l icensed . This section a l lows the 
Boa rd to pursue a d m i n istrative 
remed ies aga inst v io lators of po l icies 
which protect the i nteg rity of the 
examination progra m .  



( 1 8)  Fa i l u re to com ply  with any Boa rd 
order, i nc lud ing a Fi na l  Adverse 
Action . 

SECTION 403.  U N LAWFUL PRACTICE 

AND U N LICENSED PRACTICE 

(A) It is u n lawfu l  for any  person or  
entity to : 

( 1 )  Practice Massage Therapy without 
a va l id l icense; 

( 2 )  Own,  operate, or  manage 
a busi ness which emp loys, 
contracts with, or  a l l ows one or 
more u n l icensed persons to offe r 
or  p rovide  M assage Therapy;  

( 3 )  Re present, ho ld out, offer o r  
advertise that he or  she i s  a 
l i censed Massage Therap ist u n less 
l icensed by the Boa rd . 

( B) The Boa rd may : 

( 1 )  F ine a ny ind iv idua l  whom or  
entity wh ich ,  after a hearing ,  
is found  by  the  Board to  have 
u n lawfu l l y  engaged i n  the practice 
of Massage Thera py ;  such fi ne is 
not to exceed ($ ) for each 
offense .  Each such vio lat ion of 
th is  Act or Boa rd ru les perta i n ing 
to having u n lawfu l l y  engaged in  
the  practice of  Massage Therapy 
sha l l  a lso constitute a crime 
pu n ishab le  u pon Co nviction as 
provided in the Crim ina l  Code of 
th is  state . 

( 2 )  See k a civi l penalty, seek an  
i nj u nction ,  issu e a cease and  
des ist order and/or make a 
crim ina l  referra l i n  order to 
restra i n  a vio lat ion of the 
Act . 

SECTION 403. UNLAWFUL PRACTICE 

AND U N LICENSED PRACTICE 

Th is section esta bl ishes both 
scope and tit le protect ions fo r 
the profession . It ensures that 
admin istrative penalties for 
u n l icensed practice a re authorized i n  
a n  admin istrative setti n g .  

SECTION 403(8) .  U N LAWFUL 

PRACTICE AND U N LICENSED 

PRACTICE 

Sectio n  403 ( B )  ensures that  the 
Boa rd has a d m i n istrative j u risd ict ion 
over a l l  persons who are accused of 
v io lati ng the Act. It also esta b l ishes 
that the Boa rd has the authority 
to fi ne persons for the u n l icensed 
practice of the professio n .  This 
section is essent ia l  to ensuri ng the 
boa rd has authority over a l l  persons,  
not just Appl ica nts and Licensees.  

• 

• 

• 
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SECTION 404. U N LAWFUL 

ADVERTISING 

(A ) It i s  u n l awfu l for a ny person or  
busi ness entity to : 

( 1 )  Advertise o r  use the words 
Massage Therapy, massage, 

massage-bodywork therapy, 

bodywork therapy, or massage­

bodywork therapist, massage 

therapist, bodywork therapist, or 
the letters " LMT" or  any other 
words,  abbrev iat ions or  i ns ig n ia  
i nd icati ng or im p ly ing that 
Massage Therapy is  provided,  or 
supp l ied ,  u n less such persons 
prov id ing the services a re 
l icensed p u rsuant to th is Act . 

( 2 )  Advertise a service ,  the provis ion 
of w h ich wou ld  constitute a 
v io lat ion of th is  Act or  ru les 
esta b l ished by the Boa rd . 

SECTION 405. CRIM INAL PENALTIES 

Noth ing  here in  sha l l  be construed to 
proh i b it  cri m i n a l  prosecutions u nder the 
app l icab le cri m i n a l  code fo r v io lat ions of 
this Act . 
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SECTION 404. U NLAWFUL 

ADVERTISING 

This section ensu res that  persons 
ca n not ho ld  themselves out as  
Massage Therap ists u n less d u l y  
l i censed . It a lso requ i res l icensure 
for persons us ing the acro nyms and 
derivatives of  the  various tit les used 
in the professio n .  



ARTICLE V. OTH E R  

SECTION 501 . SEVERABILITY 

If any  provis ion of th is Act is declared 
u nconstitutiona l  or i l lega l ,  or the 
a p p l icab i l ity of this Act to any person 
or  c i rcumsta nce is held i nva l id  by a 
cou rt of com petent j u risd iction ,  the 
co nstitutio na l i ty or  lega l ity of the 
rem a i n i ng provis ions of this Act and the 
a ppl ication of this Act to other persons 
or  c i rcumsta nces sha l l  not be affected 
a nd sha l l  rema in  i n  fu l l  force and 
effect without the  i nva l id  provision or  
a ppl ication . 

SECTION 502. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Act sha l l  be in fu l l  force and effect 
on ( i nsert date ) .  

SECTION 501 . SEVERABILITY 

This section esta bl ishes that if a ny 
pa rt of th is  Act is u nconstitutiona l  or  
i l lega l ,  the Act wi l l  rema in  i n  fu l l  force 
without the i nva l id  provis ions .  

SECTION 502.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

The enactment date and the date 
that the law goes i nto effect may be 
two d i fferent dates . For exa m p le ,  
the b i l l  w i l l  b e  enacted one yea r  
b u t  the next yea r i t  w i l l  go i nto 
effect beca use fu nd ing has to be 
appropriated . Because th is  is a M ode l  
Practice Act, no date is specified . 

• 

• 
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4 Testimony Jon S immons 

952-2 10-5689 

Jon .s im mons@ l ive.com 

45-2 5-05 

Section 1 

Subsection A 

There are many variations to board com position both in massage boa rds across the country and l icensing boards in  
genera l .  The current operating structure was assigned by the legislatu re more than 12 yea rs ago.  We have conti nued to 
push forward and made significa nt strides through the current board structure. The term l im its we imp lemented have 
resu lted in an entirely new board since I first bega n .  Those l imits cha nge the composition from a perso nne l  sta ndpo int ove r 
t ime.  The re have been issues that have resu lted in  much debate and much compromise. I am proud of the work the board 
has done and on the whole we have been ab le  to achieve a good result for the protection of the consu mer. We have not 
a lways had u nan imous votes or agreed on  every issue but we are functioning as a voting body should .  My sim ple questions 
for co nsideration of changing board com position to 4 massage therap ists and one consumer member: 

Would cha nging board com position necessari ly result in improved consu mer protect ion? 

Would cha nging the board com positio n be guaranteed to f ix or  im prove the concerns you have heard? 

Would changing the board com position increase or  decrease opportun ity for confl icts of i nterest? 

Does changing add to the d iversity of perspective or  homogenize the board? 

Could there be u n intended consequences from the cha nge? 

Section 2 

Su bsection B 1 

Lim iting consumer members fro m having been a massage thera pist is a good idea in my op in ion .  Having an 
a lternate perspective is im porta nt. However in  th is  case a co nsumer member is not a massage therap ist by defi n ition .  The 
law as cu rrently written a l lows the governor's office to make use discretion as to previous service in  the fie ld .  

Does the governor's office have the tools  to make these decision or  does it need fu rther d i rection? 

Su bsection B 4 

Previous mem bers of other  l icensing boards or comm issions may have a wealth of knowledge and be a n  asset to 
our  board in the future. They bring experience from working with others through both board operations a nd the legislative 
process. 

Would l im it ing people who have served other boa rds and commissions we l l  protect the consumer in a ny 
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·ana l  way? Wo uld it im prove board function or efficiency? 

Subsection B 3 

I nd iv iduals who cu rrently own or a re affi l iated with a massage school must cu rrently d isclose th is at the t ime of their 
app l icat ion.  

Does the governor's office need add itio na l  guida nce to their a ppointment process through a cha nge in state law? 

Su bsection  B 5 

We a l l  want to e l im inate confl icts of i nterests. I n  the se lection process app l ica nts a re req u i red to d isclose fid uc iary 
ob l igations or potentia l  co nflicts. As it sta nds, if the d isclosed confl icts a re a concern to the appointment process then the 
a pp l icant is not selected.  

Would this subsection he lp  the governor's office appointment process in  a ny additio na l  meaningfu l way? 

Su bsection B 6 

A fi nancia l  interest in rendering health services could conceiva bly be a conflict. As previously mentioned the 
gove rnor's office a l ready screens fo r potentia l  confl icts. However it is assumed that members a re ab le to separate their 
persona l  financia l  interests. If it were not the case there would be no massage therapists on  the board who wo uld 
otherwise have a 100% financia l i nterest conflict. We are clea rly a l l  entrusted to not a l low financ ia l  conflicts of interest to 

he work we have comm itted to do.  

Would  l im it ing a doctor, dentist, nurse, group home operator, para medic, or other hea lth service provider 
help protect the consumer in  any add it iona l  meaningfu l way? 

I ask that you reject SB2294. Some provisions were re moved by a previous comm ittees. The remain i ng provisions a im to 
cha nge a board structure that has worked for many yea rs. The governor's office has the tools and d iscretion it needs should 
a n  issue arise. 

In add it ion I ask that yo u vote in  favor of SB2085 in its enti rety. Yd u have heard and been provided a deta i led t imel ine of 
the thoughtfu l approach the board has taken when developing SB2085. The hard work, due d i l igence, and open fo rmat 
have resu lted in a stro ng b i l l  with broad support that wil l  be of benefit to the consumer and bolster the ind ustry. 
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Subject: 

'gkeiser@nd.gov'; 'gsukut@nd.gov'; 'bamerman@nd.gov'; 'tbeadle@nd.gov'; 

'rcbecker@nd.gov'; 'jboschee@nd.gov'; 'bdevlin@nd.gov'; ' rfrantsvog@ nd.gov'; 

'bwhanson@nd.gov'; 'jkasper@nd.gov'; 'vrlaning@nd.gov'; ' mlefor@nd.gov'; 

'sclouser@ nd.gov'; 'menelson@nd.gov'; 'druby@nd.gov' 
SB 2085 and 2294 

Dear Industry, Business and Labor Committee 

My name is Dr. Todd Salwey and I serve on the North Dakota State Board of Massage. I have been serving 
for about 2 Yi years now. I am currently the secretary treasurer. I am writing in support of Senate Bill 2085 .  

This bill was written with input from the Massage Board, massage therapists, and the local chapter o f  the 
American Massage Therapy Association. We believe changes this bill brings about will help in moving the 
massage profession forward and to further protect consumers. I urge you to consider passing this bill as it 
stands. 

There is a second bill that has come forth, Senate Bill 2294. This bill was heard on the Senate side by the 
Government and Veterans Affairs Committee. I have the following issues with this bill. 

1 .  Bill 2294 requires the Massage Board members be changed from 3 LMTs and 2 consumer members 
to 4 LMTs (Licensed Massage Therapists) and 1 consumer member. I feel consumer members give a voice 
to the public and also give a different point of view to situations that arise at the Board. This bill would 
restrict any future Board member from working in or being associated with any health care field or 
profession or having any association with any massage school. I feel that a medical doctor, nurse, or 
chiropractor would have valuable insight and be able to make an informed decision as a consumer member 
on this Board. This bill would eliminate their expertise in the health field and eliminate consumer 
protection. This bill would also eliminate instructors or teacher that are teaching future massage therapists. 
Wouldn't you want someone teaching students exactly what the board and state want them to know? Again 
the purpose of this Board is to protect the public. By eliminating people from these professions, does that 
further protect the public? I think it lessens the protection. The current make-up of the Board gives LMTs a 
majority in any voting situation. I do feel that a consumer would have enough knowledge of massage or the 
massage industry to make an informed decision any regarding issues that may arise. The legislature required 
that 2 consumer members be added to the Board several years ago. I feel it would be a mistake to change the 
composition of the Board to appease two of the current LMT board members because they are not getting 
their way. 

2. The issue of inspecting every massage therapist and their facility every year is a monumental task 
both financially and logistically. Currently over 700 LMTs are practicing in North Dakota. The Board does 
not have the manpower to inspect them all or the financial capability to hire staff to inspect them all .  I 
would recommend a yearly self-inspection with attestation when licenses are renewed and continuing with 
the random inspections the Board currently performs. This would let the LMTs know what is expected of 
them, and they would be attesting that they acknowledge and are compliant. The random inspections would 
let them know we are still watching. This would also allow the Board to inspect for any other problem or 
reason that may arise. 
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Le� me ask you this. What is the reason for changing the composition of the Board? Is it because the 
consumer members are unable to make informed decisions that only a massage therapist can make? Or is it 
because two of the massage therapists currently serving on the Board are not getting their way? The main 
reason the Board of Massage exists is to protect the public. By changing the composition of the Board to • 
four massage therapists and one consumer member, does that protect the public more or less? Does 
changing the Board composition and eliminating a consumer member give the public more voice or less 
voice? Bill 2294 would eliminate a consumer member and add another massage therapist, does this help 
diversify the Board and give different perspectives? There will always be disagreements with any Board, but 
is that any reason to change law? The law currently has time limits on board terms. That was changed last 
legislative session, and I think that is a good thing as well .  

Senate Bill 2294 was introduced by two current Massage Board members and one former Board member. 
All of these issues were brought to the Board from a committee of Board members, LMTs, public and the 
state chapter of the American Massage Therapy Association. Senate Bill 2085 was voted on and passed by 
the Massage Board to move forward to legislature. When the two current Board members and a former 
Board member did not get the results they wanted in the bill, they drafted Bill 2294. It reminds me of asking 
your mother for something, not getting it, then asking your father, and hoping for a different result. 

I would hope that you look at this situation and fmd that Bill 2085 should be passed as it did in the Senate 
and you choose to kill Bill 2294 for the reasons I stated above. Thank you for your time and please feel free 
to email or call with any questions you may have. You can reach me at 70 1 -49 1 -0 1 77. Thank you for your 
time, and consideration. 

Sincerely 

Dr. Todd Salwey • 

• 
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SB2085 AND SB2294 ,\lb.rd) �Lf 1 (JO lb 
COM MON AMENDMENTS - AMEND SB2085 

ISSUE 

CRIM INAL HISTORY CHECKS 

CONTINUING ED CREDITS 

SB2085 

Page 2, lines 9-15 

Amended 

Page 2, line 23 

Reduce 32 to 24 

SB2294 

Page 3, lines 8-12 

Page 3, Line 21 

Reduce 32 to 24 

3 HOURS OF ETHICS Page 2, line 24 Page 3, line 22 

Amend - requ ired for l5t year LMT - Every 6 years for experienced LMT 

9 CEU's HOURS BY REMOTE 

INSERT SHALL, STRIKE THEIR 

From SB2294 

BASICALLY THE SAME 

Page 4 l ines 1-14 

Section 4, 3b  

SAME Section 4 

Sub-Sections 4,5,6 

INCREASE PENALTY 

$100 TO $200 

CLEAN UP 

Compensation 

SECTION 3 

Board Powers 

RECIPROCITY 

BOARD OF M ESSAGE 

/Joti.t- VoTirJ<j 
EX-OFFICIO MEMBER 

Page 2, line 26 

INCLUDE-Page 2, line 29 

Page 3, lines 1-15 

Page 3, lines 16-28 

Page 4, lines 25,26 

Includes Paragraphs 1-4 

Page 5, lines 4-8 

Replace with SB2294 

Insert SB2294,Page 2,line 8 

Page 5, lines 11-20 

Replace with SB2294 

Page 3, l ine 24 

Page 3, line27 

Page3, lines30,31 

Page 4, l ines 15-27 

Page 4, lines 30,31 

Only paragraph 2 

�age 5, lines 9-13 

Page 2, lines 27-31 

Page 3, lines 1-7 

Page 5, lines 16-25 

Page 1, line 17 - after message enter "earning at least 75% 

of their income as a practicing licensed massage therapist" 

Member of Massage Therapy Education Community 
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